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TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC.
FORWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS

This Annual Report on Form 10-K contains “forwaabking” statements within the meaning of Section 27,
the Securities Act of 1933 and Section 21E of theufities Exchange Act of 1934, including, withbatitation,
statements regarding future financial results arfopmance, potential sales revenue, legal conticige and tax
benefits, and the existence of adverse litigatioth @her risks, uncertainties and factors set fonitier Item 1A.,
entitled “Risk Factors”, of this Annual Report oarfh 10-K and in our reports and documents filechwlite
Securities and Exchange Commission (“SECTese statements are subject to various risksyaoektainties, mar
of which are outside our control, including thedeof market demand for our services, competitirespure, the
ability to achieve reductions in operating costd tmcontinue to integrate acquisitions, environtaematters, the
application of Federal and state tax laws and edguils, and other specific factors discussed henaéhin other SE
filings by us. We believe that all forward-lookistatements are based on reasonable assumptionsweaiten
however, we caution that it is impossible to predrtual results or outcomes or the effects ofsiisincertainties or
other factors on anticipated results or outcomelstlat, accordingly, one should not place unduameé on these
statements. Forward-looking statements speak antyf the date they were made, and we undertakdligaton to
update these statements in light of subsequent®wvenlevelopments. Actual results may differ niatigrfrom
anticipated results or outcomes discussed in anyaial-looking statement.

PART I

ltem 1. Business

In this Form 10-K, unless otherwise stated or iretext otherwise indicates, references to “TSI hiwd,”
“Town Sports,” “TSI,” “the Company,” “we,” “our” ag similar references refer to Town Sports Inteorail
Holdings, Inc. and its subsidiaries and referenoé3 S|, LLC” and “TSI, Inc.” refer to Town Sporisternational,
LLC (formerly known as Town Sports Internationai¢l), our wholly-owned operating subsidiary.

General

Based on the number of clubs, we are the secogddaowner and operator of fitness clubs in theidast an
Mid-Atlantic regions of the United States and tbarth largest fitness club owner and operator éunited States.
As of December 31, 2008, the Company, throughuitsisliaries, operated 166 fitness clubs under aur Key bran
names; “New York Sports Clubs,” “Boston Sports GllitiPhiladelphia Sports Clubs” and “Washington 8po
Clubs”. These clubs collectively served approxinyafd.0,000 members, excluding pre-sold, short-tend
seasonal memberships, as of December 31, 2008ré\bealargest fitness club owner and operator amhhttan
with 40 locations (more than twice as many as @arast competitor) and owned and operated a tbidl2clubs
under the “New York Sports Clubs” brand name withih20-mile radius of New York City as of DecemBgr
2008. We owned and operated 25 clubs in the Basigion under our “Boston Sports Clubs” brand nat®eglubs
(two of which are partly-owned) in the WashingténC. region under our “Washington Sports Clubs’hickaame
and seven clubs in the Philadelphia region undef'®hiladelphia Sports Clubs” brand name as of Dewer 31,
2008. In addition, we owned and operated threescimtswitzerland as of December 31, 2008. We emiglcglized
brand names for our clubs to create an image andsgthere consistent with the local community anfdster
recognition as a local network of quality fithessbs rather than a national chain.

We have developed and refined our fitness club itbdeugh our clustering strategy, offering fitnehsbhs
close to our members’ workplaces and homes. Ol miodel targets the “upper valueiarket segment, comprisii
individuals aged between 21 and 60 with incomeltelletween $50,000 and $150,000 per year. We leelfeat the
upper value segment is not only the broadest segofi¢he market, but also the segment with the tgstayrowth
opportunities. Our goal is to be the most recoghlzealth club network in each of the four major roslitan
regions we serve. We believe that our strategyusitering clubs provides significant benefits t@ members and
allows us to achieve strategic operating advantdgesach of our markets, we have developed clsgtginitially
opening or acquiring clubs located in the more r@ntrban markets of the region and then brancbirtgrom these
urban centers to suburbs and neighboring commanitie

We currently offer three types of memberships indubs, “Passport”, “Regional Passport” and “Gol@ihe
Regional Passport Membership was added in theHfaurarter of 2008 and allows a member access af alir
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clubs within a single region, while the Passpormdership allows access to all clubs in all fouriwag. As of
December 31, 2008, approximately 38% of our memparsticipated in our Passport or Regional Passport
Memberships and 62% of our members participateGold Membership, which allows unlimited accesa to
designated or “home” club at all times and accessltof our other clubs during off-peak hours. Mesrs can elect
to commit to a predetermined minimum contract pegbone or two years in order to benefit from regtlidues ar
joining fees. Alternatively, our memberships araik@ble on émonth-to-month basis.

Over our 35-year history, we have developed aridedfour club formats that allow us to cost-effeely
construct and efficiently operate our fitness cliubthe different real estate environments in whighoperate. Our
fitness-only clubs average approximately 20,00@Gsgfeet, while our multi-recreational clubs averag
40,000 square feet. The aggregate average sizieobfoar clubs is approximately 26,000 square f€air clubs
typically have an open fithess area to accommotti#iovascular and strength-training equipmentyelsas
special purpose rooms for group fitness classeotrat exercise programs. We seek to provide adbaoay of
high-quality exercise programs and equipment theapapular and effective, promoting the qualityreise
experience that we strive to make available torsembers. When developing clubs, we carefully exarttie
potential membership base and the likely demanddpplemental offerings such as swimming, basketbal
children’s programs, tennis or squash and, provalgble real estate is available, we will add onmore of these
offerings to our fitness-only format. For exam@enulti-recreational club in a family market maglinde Sports
Clubs for Kids programs, which can include swinstess and sports camps for children.

Industry Overview

Total U.S. fitness club industry revenues increastealcompound annual growth rate of 7.7% from $dli®n
in 1998 to $18.7 hillion in 2007, according to théernational Health, Racquet and Sportsclub Asdimei, or
IHRSA. Total U.S. fitness club memberships increlaatea compound annual growth rate of 3.9% frond 28illion
in 1998 to 41.5 million in 2007, according to IHRSA

Demographic trends have helped drive the growtleeepced by the fitness industry over the pastdiecahe
industry has benefited from the aging of the “babpmer” generation and the coming of age of thiapaing, the
so-called “echo boomers” (the generation born betwk982 and 1994). With 66% of American adults 32% of
American children considered overweight or obegklaralthcare entering a period of severe econorisis cfithes:
may be a remedy for many physical and psychologii¢atulties. Government-sponsored reports, susthe
Surgeon General's Report on Physical Activity & He§1996) and the Call to Action to Prevent ancci2ase
Overweight and Obesity (2001), have helped to emeehe general awareness of the benefits of @iysiercise to
these demographic segments over those of priorgeoes.

Membership penetration (defined as club membesspscentage of the total U.S. population ovemathe of
six) has increased significantly from 12.1% in 19885.6% in 2007 according to the IHRSA/Americgoo®$s Date
Health Club Trend Report. The industry continueattoact new members and keep them, with 48% of neesn
indicating that they were “first-time” members 8@ and 52% having a membership life of three yearaore,
according to the IHRSA/American Sports Data He@lilb Trend Report.

As a large operator with recognized brand namesljig regional market shares and an establisheehtimg
history, we believe we are well positioned to bérfedm these industry dynamics.

Competitive Strengths
We believe the following competitive strengths imstrumental to our success:

Strong market position with leading brand&ased on the number of clubs, we are the foartpekt fithess
club owner and operator in the United States aad#tond largest fitness club owner and operatihreiNortheast
and Mid-Atlantic regions of the United States. We the largest fitness club owner and operatonénNew York
and Boston regions, the second largest owner aachtmy in the Washington, D.C. region and the ttardest
owner and operator in the Philadelphia region. Whbate our leadership positions in these marketsart to the
strength of our localized owner and operator brzenties, which foster recognition as a local netvedrguality
fitness clubs.

Regional clustering strategy providing signific&r@nefits to membersBy operating a network of clubs in a
concentrated geographic area, the value of our ragships is enhanced by our ability to offer memlagess to
any of our clubs through our Passport or Regioaakport Memberships, which provide the conveniefid¢aving
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fitness clubs near a membekvorkplace and home. Approximately 38% of our merslhave a Regional Passpo
Passport Membership, and because these membeoéieipsnhanced privileges and greater convenighes,
generate higher monthly dues than single club meshijes. Regional clustering also allows us to piespecial
facilities within a local area, such as swimmin@liscand squash, tennis and basketball courts, utithibering therr
at every location.

Regional clustering strategy designed to maximeenues and achieve economies of scalée believe our
regional clustering strategy allows us to maxinmeeenue and earnings growth by providing high-dyali
conveniently located fitness facilities on a cdétaive basis, which new entrants into the maviithave
difficulty achieving. Regional clustering is atttae to corporations seeking to promote a healflegtyle by
providing group memberships to their employeesdiseount. We also partner with many groups thateseur
communities; including the New York City Police afidle Departments in our New York Sports Clubs eagthe
Southeastern Pennsylvania Transportation Auth@BBPTA) transportation company in our PhiladelByperts
Clubs region and the District of Columbia Governmércluding all city agencies in our Washingtoro8p Clubs
region. We believe that potential new entrants wamded to establish or acquire a large numberutifscin a market
to compete effectively with us. We believe thastivould be difficult given the relative scarcitysafitable sites in
our urban markets. Our clustering strategy alsdlkesaus to achieve economies of scale with regasales,
marketing, purchasing, general operations and catp@dministrative expenses and to reduce outatapiending
needs. Regional clustering also provides the oppiyt for members who relocate to remain membeisuoftlubs,
thus aiding in member retention.

Expertise in site selection and development procéd'e believe that our expertise in site selectiot a
development provides an advantage over our coropgtiiven the complex real estate markets in theeapelitan
areas in which we operate and the relative scaofiyitable sites. Before opening or acquiringgew iclub, we
undertake a rigorous process involving demograghttcompetitive analysis, financial modeling, siéection and
negotiation of lease and acquisition terms to enthat a location meets our criteria for a modebcWe believe
our flexible club formats are well suited to theltbnging real estate environments in our markets.

Business Strategy

In the long-term, we intend to maximize our revenarnings, cash flows and net member growth uhimg
following strategies:

Enhance the quality of the member experien@rir company’s mission is “Improving Lives Through
Exercise.” We have commenced a program which weexp inspire members to embrace regular exeacide
achieve their fitness goals by securing their ltyytlirough customer service and providing stat¢hefart facilities,
programs and services. We tailor the hours of eadihto the needs of the specific member demogcayilizing
each club; offer a variety of ancillary servicegluding group classes, small group training, peabstraining, Spor
Clubs for Kids programs, and the XpressLine progtarsupervised, high-intensity, efficient workoubgram);
offer a variety of different sports facilities ima@h regional cluster of clubs; offer modern, vaaed wellmaintainec
exercise and fitness equipment; and offer an aseaitof additional amenities including access toyisdting, sport
massage and pro shops. Through hiring, developidgdraining a qualified and diverse team that isspEnate about
fitness and health and maintaining and expandimgpmgrams and services, we expect to demonsttaite o
commitment to increase the quality of the membgeernce, and thereby increase net membership.

Drive comparable club revenue and profitability gith by implementing our business strategyur future
financial performance will depend, in part, on gtwf revenue at clubs that we have operated foenian
12 months. Comparable club revenue growth is défawerevenues for the thirteenth month at a sgelediub and
thereafter as compared to the same period atlifataring the prior year. Historically, comparablab revenue
growth has been a significant factor in our revegrgavth, with comparable club revenue growth faeheaf the five
years from 2004 to 2008, ranging between 2.2%93&07However, in part as a result of the currenneatc
environment, we experienced higher member attritioth lower average revenue per member in 2008ith2007.
As a result, for the year ended December 31, 20@8¢omparable club revenue growth was 2.2%, aedser
compared to 5.2% for the year ended December 3I7.20e experienced a comparable club revenue decda
1.4% in the fourth quarter of 2008, and we expeatarable club revenue to continue to decreaseghiaut 2009.
Comparable club revenue growth is dependent upmimtplementation of our strategic initiatives, undihg
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our “commit” membership plan and our focus on dagilrevenues. Our commit membership model encasrag
new members to commit to a one- or two-year menhiiees a discount to our month-to-month plan, which
encourages member retention and loyalty. We apefatsising on ancillary services, which enhancentleenber
experience and provide us with a means for incngasbmparable club revenues without a similar iaseen fixed
costs. Despite current challenges, we continuedid o differentiate our brand through having exiserin fithess,
group exercise and small group training, and anhesig on operational excellence. We will contirméotus on
reducing member attrition and increasing ancill@yenues by making improvements to our memberstppréence
and expect to return to positive comparable revgmaeith in the future.

Increase number of clubs by expanding within regi@tusters. We have increased the total clubs under
operation from 129 as of January 1, 2004 to 166 &ecember 31, 2008. Our plan for 2009 is to dioen new
clubs and close between four and seven clubs. \ffecéxeal estate and construction costs to decrkagey 2009
and will monitor such trends before returning teeapansion mode. We intend to strengthen our mgd&tion ant
to increase revenues and earnings in our existengteis principally through the opening of new claby
opportunistic acquisitions of existing clubs cuthgmun by other operators that fill a market néadus. Our
expertise in the site selection and developmertge® combined with our established club-level endamodel
enables us to generate attractive returns fronople@ing of new clubs. We have currently identifteer 173
fitness-only and multi-recreational locations irr edisting and secondary markets that we beliewsgss the
criteria for a model club.

Grow ancillary and other non-membership revenu&¥e intend to grow our ancillary and other non-
membership revenues through a continued focusarasing the additional value-added services teginovide to
our members as well as capitalizing on the oppdrasifor other non-membership revenues such atuin-
advertising and retail sales. Non-membership resemave increased from $57.9 million, or 16.4%evEnues for
the year ended December 31, 2004, to $92.1 milbod8.2% of revenues for the year ended Decembe2(®8.
We intend to continue to expand the current rafg@loie-added services and programs that we affeut
members, such as personal training and “SportssGiKids”. These sources of ancillary and otham-n
membership revenues generate incremental profitsminimal capital investment and assist in attrecand
retaining members.

Realize benefits from maturation of recently operiatls. From January 1, 2007 to December 31, 2008, we
opened or acquired 24 clubs. Based on our experiengew club tends to achieve significant incre@seevenues
during its first three years of operation as thebar of members grows. Because there is relatlitdlyincrementa
cost associated with such increasing revenues ther greater proportionate increase in profitgbNVe believe
that the revenues and profitability of this grodf24 clubs will improve as the clubs reach maturity

Marketing

Our marketing strategy primarily focuses on growang membership base, increasing profitability grea
customer basis and building and sustaining branéyedn pursuit of these objectives, we have tbmbined
advantages, relative to many of our competitorgxidting high levels of brand awareness and peefsr, leading
market positions and the ability to derive econantiescale from a regional multi-club platform andentralized
marketing function. We are organized to enableectmdlaboration between our marketing, sales amdatipns
staff, all under the direction of our chief opengtiofficer. This helps align efforts around operatil objectives and
ensures a primary focus on customer experience.

Brand awareness and preference is aided by a nuhbstors, including the visibility of multipleetail
locations and associated signage across each regmembership base of 510,000 as of December08B, 2vho
generate word-of-mouth and referrals, a thirty-fpear operating history and continual advertisimgestment. All
of these factors provide a strong foundation farangoing marketing and advertising efforts.

Our regional concentration and clustering strategate economies of scale in our marketing andrédivey
investments which increase their overall efficieacyl effectiveness. Clustering enables broadehraad higher
frequency for regional advertising campaigns tipicilly include a mix of traditional media includj radio,
newspapers, magazines, out-of-home (especiallgitrhased) and some television and geo-targeted and
behaviorally targeted digital media, such as pa#tch, email blasts, online banners and video,edisas other
emerging new media vehicles. These broader mafiaatseare bolstered by local marketing plans awdits, whict
include
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direct mail, local sponsorships and co-promoti@asnmunity relations and outreach and street-leaxd Igeneration
activities. Optimization of marketing mix througreasurement and modeling of the effectiveness abwsamedia
investments and formats continues to be a priority.

We are positioned in the upper-value segment oh#adth club market and our advertising and manketi
communications support and reinforce this positigrdy consistently conveying high quality, markesding
convenience and a relevant and differentiated polifiering. In contrast to most health club adisémg, we
generally forego depicting images of hard bodiasilities and gym equipment. Instead, we favor ragisg) focuse
on the widely accepted and numerous benefits atesee In January 2009, we launched a new ad campimnown
as “Fit Facts,” that supports this positioning. Wédieve this approach has a universal appeal ak@smaur product
more approachable for consumers who have littleodnealth club experience.

Promotional marketing campaigns will typically fes opportunities to participate in valadeed services su
as personal training. From time to time, we alderafeduced initiation fees to encourage enrolimAdtitionally,
we frequently sponsor member referral incentiveggpams and other types of member appreciation siegvand
internal promotions to enhance loyalty and angillservices.

We also engage in public relations, sponsorshipssgacial events to promote our brand image retijoaad
in our local communities. As an example, we areua-time sponsor of the JPMorgan Chase Corporatdie€tiye
Series running event in both the New York and Bost@torpolitan regions. In 2008, this popular athevant
attracted nearly 40,000 participants in New Yorl 44,000 in Boston. Boston Sports Clubs is als@attme
sponsor of the Tufts 10K for Women, an event thiadeted 7,000 competitors in 2008. New York SpQiisbs’
sponsorship of the annual Commerce Bank Five Bdke Bour helps turn out a team of nearly 500 membed
employees — all riding in New York Sports Clubsdggrseys — who complete the 42-mile ride alondngid,000
other cyclists.

Our association with professional sports teams efdmnces our brands and their status in the coitisgiim
which we operate. Boston Sports Clubs is the “@fibealth club” of the Boston Red Sox and Waslindgsports
Clubs has the same designation with the Washing#dionals baseball team, as well as an associafibnthe
Washington Redskins Cheerleaders. The basebalssmsiips include interactive in-stadium promotiasch
energize the fans during home games.

Our philosophy of giving back to our communitieslirdes sponsoring company-wide and local charitable
efforts. Saints and Spinners, our 24-hour spinea+-tind fundraiser for HealthCorps, an organizdioused on
stemming the crisis of childhood obesity, raiseB®%200 in early 2008 to fund school-based progremesiucate
children about eating smart and exercising. Oup ahkanagement teams and staff are also encouragedanize
and engage in charitable activities. Some recemttsvbenefited organizations such as the AmeriGat€r Society
the Muscular Dystrophy Association, Susan G. KoiRane for the Cure, Avon Walk for Breast Cancer, M3,
Toys for Tots, as well as many smaller local chesit

We are committed to enhancing our online brand eveayd developing our online sales and service digab
in 2009. Our principal web site, www.mysportsclaosn, currently provides information about club locato
program offerings, exercise class schedules aed gagbmotions. The site also allows our membegivi® us direct
feedback about our service levels and enables gctisp members to sign-up for a paid two-week mambership
in our clubs. Prospective members can also initteg& membership enroliment process using our siteb In
addition, job seekers can begin the employmentiegtjin process through the site and investorsacanss
financial information and resources.

Sales

Sales of new memberships are generally handledraitithe club level or through our corporate arig sale
division. We employ approximately 420 “in-club” mbership consultants who are responsible for new lbeeship
sales. Each club generally has between two andcfmsultants. These consultants report directtheoclub gener:
manager, who in turn reports to a district managées.provide additional incentive-based compensatidhe form
of bonuses contingent upon individual, club and pany-wide enroliment goals. Membership consultamist
successfully complete a two-month, in-house tragigirogram through which they
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learn our sales strategy. In making a sales prasent membership consultants attempt to matcimélesls to each
prospective member by emphasizing:

* the proximity of our clubs to concentrated commearand residential areas convenient to where pobisige
members live and worl

« the variety and selection of equipment and exeld&sgses

« the obligation on the part of the enroll

« the price/value relationship of a Town Sports mersiti@; anc
* access to vali-added service:

Our corporate and group sales division consistgppfoximately 20 full-time employees located thioogt our
markets, who concentrate on building long-termti@teships with local and regional companies andgdagroups.
Corporate and group members account for approxlynai€s of our total membership base as of Decerber
2008. We offer numerous programs to meet our catpand group client’s needs including an onlinekment
program as well as a fully operational call cefiderenrollment. We believe this focus on relatidpgbuilding,
providing the customer with options for enrollment our clustering strategy will continue to leachéw group
participation in the future.

In mid-December 2008, we launched the selling dividual memberships online for our standard meisitier
types. This new sales channel links directly topnimcipal site and an existing web site, whickaitored to selling
memberships for pre-established corporate and gooograms. The online sales channel offers a hagivek of
convenience for customers who know and trust camdiand do not require up-front interaction witm@mbership
consultant to make their decision. In additionlisglonline significantly reduces our cost of s#arly indications
are that the newly implemented online sales wilitdaue to grow and offer leverage for our markeiimgestments.

We believe that clustering clubs allows us to selimberships based upon the opportunity for mentbers
utilize multiple club locations near their workpéaand their home. As of December 31, 2008, outiagisnembers
were enrolled under three principal types of mersthies:

« The Passport Membership, currently selling at grieenging from $96 to $106 per month based on e
area of enrollment, is our higher priced membershig entitles members to use any of our clubsyn an
region at any time. This membership was held by@pmately 36% of our members as of December 31,
2008. In addition, we have a Passport Premium Meshljeat two select clubs, which includes a greater
array of member services and facilities, at prieegying from $105 to $116 per mon

« The Regional Passport Membership, currently sebingrices ranging from $72 to $96 per month based
the market area of enrollment, is our mid-pricednbership and entitles members to use any of otnsclu
within one region at any time. We began sellingRiegional Passport Membership in the fourth quater
2008 and it was held by approximately 2% of our lera as of December 31, 2008. This percentage is
expected to increase as it continues to gain aaceptin 2009

» The Gold Membership, currently selling at pricesgiag from $39 to $89 per month based on club $peci
facilities and services, the market area of enrefitrand length of the membership contract, enablrsbers
to use a specific club at any time and any of duibsduring off-peak times. This membership wasl ol
approximately 62% of our members as of Decembe2@Q28. During the third quarter of 2008, senior
management performed an extensive club-by-clubngrieview of its Gold Membership. In general, pric
at our suburban clubs were reduced while pricinguaturban clubs remained consistent or were irse

By operating a network of clubs in a concentratedggaphic area, the value of our memberships iareggd b
our ability to offer members access to any of dubg in a specific geographic area through the &ediPassport
Membership or access to our clubs in all geograpFgons through a Passport Membership. These nrshipe
plans provide the convenience of having fithesb<lnear a member’s workplace and home. Approxiyn&@do of
our members have the Regional Passport or Paddparbership and because these memberships offeddiroa
privileges and greater convenience, they geneigteehmonthly dues than single club
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memberships. Regional clustering also allows ysdwide special facilities within a local area, Buis swimming,
basketball, children’s programs, tennis and squaghput offering them at each location.

We sell both “month-to-month” and “commit” membeispayment plans. Month-to-month memberships are
cancellable by our members at any time with 30 detice. The commit model encourages new membarsrtonil
to a one or two year membership, because these emnshifps are priced at a moderate discount to the
month-to-month membership. During 2008, 97% ofrewly enrolled members opted for a commit membgrshi
As of December 31, 2008, approximately 14% of oanthers originated under a month-to-month non-commit
membership and 86% originated under a commit meshierWwhen a members’ commit period is over, thetgin
their membership as a month-to-month member urgi thoose to cancel. As of December 31, 2008,
approximately 57% of our total members are montmémth. We believe members prefer to have thelilbixi to
choose between committing for one or two year® goih under the month-to-month non-commit membigrsh

In joining a club, a new member signs a memberapgieement that obligates the member to pay a ome-ti
initiation fee, if applicable, and monthly duesamongoing basis. Monthly electronic funds transéelEFT, of
individual membership dues on a per-member basimged approximately $70 per month for the yeaeénd
December 31, 2008. Together, initiation fees amndgssing fees collected for new EFT members avdrage
approximately $50 for the year ended December 308 Zompared to $72 for the year ended Decembet(BY,. Ir
the third quarter of 2008, we combined the one-fimieessing and initiation fees and have promoésd n
memberships by discounting these fees. We expeaxtrtinue to discount these fees in 2009 and Heaaverage
amount collected per member in 2009 will be lesstim 2008. We collect approximately 95.0% of atirthly
membership dues through EFT and EFT membershipueveonstituted approximately 74.9% of consolidated
revenue for the year ended December 31, 2008. &iimty all other membership dues are paid inifuthdvance.
Our membership agreements call for monthly dudsetoollected by EFT based on credit card or baokw debit
authorization contained in the agreement. Durimfiftst week of each month, we receive the EFT doethat
month after the payments are initiated by a thadypEFT processor. Discrepancies and insuffidientls incidents
are researched and resolved by oundnise account services department. We typicalkgase our existing memkt
dues annually by between 1% and 3% on averagaennlith increases in the cost of living.

Usage

Our suburban clubs are generally open 5:00 AM t6@PM on weekdays and 7:00 AM to 8:00 PM on
weekends while our urban clubs are generally op@d AM to 11:00 PM on weekdays and 8:00 AM to 98 on
weekends. Where membership demand is high, catliatis are open 24 hours. We generally considepeak
usage times to be between 6:00 AM and 8:30 AM a@d BM and 8:30 PM on weekdays. Our hours of bgsimae
based on usage at each individual club. Our tdtdl gsage was 28.0 million and 24.7 million memdisits for the
years ended December 31, 2008 and 2007, respgcfivahl club usage increased 15.8% from the fogudrter of
2007 to the fourth quarter of 2008. Usage per merhas increased approximately 9.5% from the foguarter of
2007 to the fourth quarter of 2008 and 5.7% inyth& ended December 31, 2008 compared to 200fe Iypear-
ended December 31, 2008, approximately 38% of tetafe or club visits was to members’ non-homesclub

Non-Membership Revenue

Over the past five years, we have expanded thé ¢éancillary club services provided to our menshédon-
membership club revenue has increased by $34.Bbmfllom $57.9 million in 2004 to $92.1 million 2008.
Increases in personal training revenue in partiduidae contributed $26.9 million of the increasamtillary
revenue during this period. In addition, we havdestlSports Clubs for Kids and Small Group Trair(imgth
additional fee for service programs) at selectedx!| Nonmembership club revenue as a percentage of totahue
has increased from 16.4% for the year ended Deae&ih@004 to 18.2% for the year ended Decembe?(®083.
Personal training revenue as a percentage ofrtahue increased from 9.9% of revenue in 200£212% of total
revenue in 2008. The growth of our non-membersévenue has slowed during 2008. Total non-membership
revenue as a percent of total revenue was 18.2%otbryears ended December 31, 2008 and 2007. @amnsu
confidence and consumer spending deteriorateckisdhond half of 2008 and as this trend is expdotedntinue il
2009, our non-membership revenue is expected tmber pressure and decreases in demand for thesmesas
likely.
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For the Year Ended December 31, (in $000

2008 % 2007 % 2006 % 2005 % 2004 %
Total revenu $506,70¢ 100.(% $472,91"! 100.(% $433,08( 100.(% $388,55¢ 100.(% $353,03: 100.(%
Non-Membership Revenue:
Personal training revent 61,75: 12.2% 56,10¢ 11.% 49,51 11.4&6 42,277 10.% 34,82 9.€%
Other ancillary club revent 24,32¢  4.8% 24,247 51% 22,86: 53% 20,13¢ 52% 18,19¢ 5.1%
Fees and Other reven 6,031 1.2% 5,61¢ 1.2% 4,94; 1.2% 4,41: 1.1% 4,85¢€ 1.4%

Total nor-membership revent $ 92,11 18.2%$ 85,96¢ 18.2%$ 77,31¢ 17.9%$ 66,82¢ 17.2%$ 57,87¢ 16./%

Club Format and Locations

Our clubs are typically located in middle- or upjperome residential, commercial, urban and suburban
neighborhoods within major metropolitan areas #natcapable of supporting the development of aelws clubs.
Our clubs generally have high visibility and arsiaaccessible. In the New York metropolitan, Rost
Washington, D.C. and Philadelphia markets, we ltagated clusters of clubs in urban areas and tbeimuter
suburbs aligned with our operating strategy ofrrfifg our target members the convenience of multgpdations
close to where they live and work, reciprocal useilpges and standardized facilities and services.

Approximately 70% of the clubs we operate are fiaenly clubs and the remaining clubs are multi-
recreational. Our fitness-only clubs generally mimgsize from 15,000 to 25,000 square feet andagee
approximately 20,000 square feet. Our multi-reéoea clubs generally range in size from 25,000esqueet to
65,000 square feet, with one club being 200,00@smfeet. The average multi-recreational club sze
approximately 40,000 square feet. Membership fohedub generally ranges from 2,000 to 4,500 memhber
maturity. Although club members represent a csexgion of the population in a given geographickegrour targe
member is between the ages of 21 and 60 and hasnaral income of between $50,000 and $150,000.

We have experienced significant growth over the fias years primarily through developing and opgnnew
club locations that we have constructed. In addjtwe have acquired existing, privately owned ®ragld multi-
club businesses. From January 1, 2004 to Decenih@088, we acquired seven existing clubs, contgdi43 new
clubs and closed 13 clubs to increase our totéscinder operation from 129 to 166. For the yededn
December 31, 2008, we opened nine new clubs aseédlimur clubs, to increase our total clubs ungeration
from 161 to 166.

We engage in detailed site analyses and selectamegses based upon information provided by our
development software to identify potential targetas for additional clubs based upon populationatgaphics,
psychographics, traffic and commuting patternsjlabity of sites and competitive market informati Since
December 31, 2008, we have opened three clubsiditi@an, we currently have four lease commitmemid have
identified approximately 173 target areas in whighmay add clubs under our New York Sports Clulmst&n
Sports Clubs, Washington Sports Clubs or Philadalfports Clubs brand names. In addition, we hdeetified
further growth opportunities in secondary marketated near our existing markets. In the futuremag explore
expansion opportunities in other markets in thetéthBtates that share similar demographic charsiitsrto those
in which we currently operate.

Our facilities include a mix of state-of-the-arrd@mvascular equipment, including upright and rebent bikes,
steppers, treadmills and elliptical motion machjrsteength equipment and free weights, includinp&y Nautilus,
TechnoGym, Strive, Precor, Star Trac and Hamm&n§th equipment; group exercise and cycling stydies
Sportsclub Network entertainment system; lockenteaincluding shower facilities, towel service ariber
amenities, such as saunas; babysitting; and alfmp-&ach of our clubs is equipped with automatedraal
defibrillators. Personal training services are wtkat all locations for an additional charge. Attain locations,
additional facilities are also offered, includingisiming pools and racquet and basketball courtsoAlve have
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fee-based programming at many of our clubs, indggirograms targeted at children, members and rembar
adult customers.

We also offer our Xpressline strength workout &babur clubs. Xpressline is an eight-station kdiady circui
workout designed to be used in 22 minutes andd¢oramodate all fithess levels. This service is pedifor free to
our members.

We have over 7,600 Sportsclub Network personalreitenent units installed in our clubs. The units a
typically mounted on individual pieces of cardiovalsir equipment and are equipped with a flat-pankdr screen
for television viewing. We believe our members prahe flexibility to view and listen to the progma of their
choice during their cardiovascular workout. The iSgmub Network also broadcasts our own personaimasic
video channel that provides us with a direct medraglvertising products and services to our menfitigizase.

Club Services and Operations
We emphasize consistency and quality in all of@ub operations, including:

Management. We believe that our success is largely depenaiethe selection and training of our staff and
management. Our management structure is desigme@fore, to support the professional developmehighly
motivated managers who will execute our directized support growth.

Our business is divided into regional operatingdinvith each reporting to a regional vice presideeporting
to these officers are regional functional departimas well as district managers. Reporting to tliésteict managel
are the individual club general managers. Geneaslagers are responsible for the day-to-day managesheach
club. At each level of responsibility, compensati®structured to align our goals for profitabiligith those of each
region, district or club.

Corporate functional departments have been estaiolito complement each specific area of our clsbslices
such as sales, training, group exercise programsesé equipment, programming, personal trainiagilify and
equipment maintenance, procurement and laundryh&Ve established a Learning and Development depattio
assume the management of existing sales and fitreessg programs and to build training programstipport
training in leadership, operations managementsin&ion technology and customer service. This edintition
allows local general managers at each club to foousales, customer service, club staffing andighog a high-
quality exercise experience.

Our club support group acts as the coordinatoafladepartments and ensures consistency of poligids
procedures across the entire organization.

Personal Training. All of our fitness clubs offer one-on-one perdanaining, which is sold by the single
session or in multi-session packages. We have imgriéed a comprehensive staff education curriculunich
progresses from basic knowledge and practicaksiilbdvanced concepts and training techniquese@uoation
program provides professional standards to enbateour personal trainers provide superior serait fitness
expertise to our members. We believe the qualificatof the personal training staff helps ensuat thembers
receive a consistent level of quality service tigtoaut our clubs and that our personal training mog provide
valuable guidance to our members and a signifisantce of incremental revenue for us. There areléuels of
professional competency for which different level€ompensation are paid, with mandatory requirdm@ainers
must meet in order to achieve and maintain sughsstén 2007, we implemented a revenue split payctire for
personal trainers, providing a compensation packaged on a percentage of revenue earned fromsesions.
We also offer introductory personal training sessiat discounted prices. We believe that membecspalticipate
in personal training programs typically have a lengembership life.

Group Fitness. Our commitment to providing a quality workout exignce to our members extends to the
employment of program instructors, who teach mdagses including: aerobics, cycling, strength ciowing,
boxing, yoga, Pilates and step aerobics classem@uthers. All program instructors report diredtljo club
management and are further supported by regionadtdis of group exercise who are responsiblerieugng class
content, scheduling, high quality training techrg@and instruction. We also provide small groujmitng offerings
to our members, which are fee-based programs et $maller groups and provide more focused ariday
more advanced classes. Some examples of thesag#fénclude Pilates, boxing camps and cycling camp
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Sports Clubs for Kids.We offer programs for children under the Spoiitg€ for Kids brand. As of
December 31, 2008, Sports Clubs for Kids was beffeyed in 30 locations throughout our New York 8p&lubs
Boston Sports Clubs and Philadelphia Sports Cleg®ns. In addition to extending fitness offerings
demographic group not previously served by us, xgeet that Sports Clubs for Kids programming wélgh
position our multirecreational clubs as family clubs, which we bediguill provide us with a competitive advanta
Depending upon the facilities available at a lamatiSports Clubs for Kids programming can includelitional
youth offerings such as day camps, sports camps) Bgsons, hockey and soccer leagues, gymnagénsge ant
birthday parties. It also can include sports penfance-based programming such as our Ignite Progvaioh
specializes in training young athletes ages emlf/tyears of age to improve their athletic skillgl increase their
speed, agility and strength and non-competitivarfieto-play” sports programs.

Employee Compensation and Benefits

We provide performance-based incentives to our gamant. Senior management compensation, for example
is tied to our overall performance. Departmentegctors, district managers and general manageraatdaave
bonuses tied to financial and member retentioretarfpr a particular club or group of clubs. Wesofbur
employees various benefits including health, desmal disability insurance; pre-tax healthcare, coimg and
dependent care accounts; and a 401(k) plan. Wevieethe availability of employee benefits providsswith a
strategic advantage in attracting and retainindityumanagers, program instructors and professipeasonal
trainers and that this strategic advantage inthamslates into a more consistent and higher-quatirkout
experience for those members who utilize such sesvi

Centralized Information Systems

We use an integrated information system to sell beships, bill our members, track and analyze salds
membership statistics, the frequency and timinmember workouts, cross-club utilization, membag, lifalue-
added services and demographic profiles by memidech enables us to develop targeted direct margeti
programs and to modify our broadcast and print etbieg to improve consumer response. This systismassists
us in evaluating staffing needs and program oféeinin addition, we rely on certain data gathehedugh our
information systems to assist in the identificatidmew markets for clubs and site selection withiose markets.

Information System Developments

We recognize the value of enhancing and extendiegises of information technology in virtually evarea o
our business. After developing an information testhgy strategy to support our business strategydeweloped a
comprehensive multi-year plan to replace or upgkagesystems and to improve upon them.

We currently utilize a club management systemiti@irporates functionality for member services,tcact
management, electronic billing, point of sale, sttHimg resources and reservations. This club managesystem
extends support for new business functionalitiesr@@w club models and integrates with other apfting. During
2005, we developed a related application utilizinginess intelligence tools and data warehousipghikties to
enable enhanced managerial and analytical reparfisgles and operations. Currently, we are devedop global
information management system (“GIM3hat we expect will be ready for pilot testing g8exond half of 2009 wii
a deployment to our clubs in the first half of 20¥0e expect this system to incorporate sufficiemictionality to
support all club sales and operations, customatioelship management, document management, woxk flo
management and additional executive informationagament capabilities. This system is intended tsclidate
various internal legacy systems and internet systenprovide enhanced capabilities for managindtisiness,
improving productivity and expanding and enrichtihg member experience and increasing revenuegotdle
estimated cost of this project is between $12.0oniland $15.0 million.

In 2007, we implemented a human resources manageystem that provides enhanced capabilities fenta
management, including recruiting, employee and menself-service and evaluations and financial mitag for
staffing. The system was merged with the existimgkeeping system and integrated with payroll atevant
financial applications for comprehensive automatbnompensation processing and management fenaloyees

In 2005, we re-launched our web site utilizing remehitecture to allow for flexibility in product fefrings,
online corporate and group sales, promotion antesbpresentations, member self-service, survest
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enhanced member options. The internet capabilitere expanded to include more member-focused fesamd
sales of trial memberships. In 2008, we launchetitiatial web capabilities for selling our suiteraémberships for
all clubs. We have built an intranet to provideoatal for the various browser-based applicatioss te utilize
internally. Our intranet features support for cogte communications, human resources programsraiming.

We have implemented numerous infrastructure chattgescommodate our growth, provide network
redundancy, better manage telecommunications aadcdats, increase efficiencies in operations angfove
management of all components of our technical gechire. In 2005, we brought our disaster recogégyonline.
The disaster recovery facility utilizes replicatimols to provide fail-over capabilities for suppiog our club
operations and company communications. During 2@@7deployed several advanced tools for enhanced
management and monitoring of our infrastructurectimpliance and improved security.

During 2007, we enhanced both internal and exteegrting capabilities with the implementatiortioé
Oracle suite of accounting programs throughoubtiganization. We replaced legacy general ledgeraaedunts
payable and fixed asset accounting systems witkl®systems that include a fully integrated suftaazounting
applications as well as lease management and casagament capabilities. Migration of our curremstauction
accounting system to the Oracle systems and exgandéne procurement was completed in 2008.

Intellectual Property

We have registered various trademarks and servackawith the U.S. Patent and Trademark Office,
including, NEW YORK SPORTS CLUBS and NYSC, WASHINGTON SPORTS CLUBS and WSC,
BOSTON SPORTS CLUBS and BSG PHILADELPHIA SPORTS CLUBS and PSC,
COMPANIESGETFIT.COM, SPORTS CLUBS FOR KIDS, “ BETTER.”, andTOWN SPORTS
INTERNATIONAL. We continue to register other trademarks and semwiarks. We believe that our rights to tt
properties are adequately protected.

Competition

The fitness club industry is highly competitive arahtinues to become more competitive. The numbbkeailtt
clubs in the U.S. has increased from 14,001 in 1698,636 in January 2008. In each of the maiiketghich we
operate, we compete with other fitness clubs, may$itness and recreational facilities.

We consider the following groups to be our primemynpetitors in the health and fitness industry:

« health club operators, including Bally Total Fita¢$olding Corporation, LA Fitness International, €L
Equinox Holdings, Inc., Lifetime Fitness, Inc. addl Hour Fitness Worldwide, Inc

« the YMCA and similar no-profit organizations

 physical fithess and recreational facilities essdi@d by local governments, hospitals and busiise
« local salons, cafes and businesses offering sirailaillary services

« exercise and small fitness clubs and stuc

* racquet, tennis and other athletic clu

* amenity gyms in apartments and condominiu

« weigh-reducing salons

 country clubs; an

 the hom-use fitness equipment indust

The principal methods of competition include pricend ease of payment, required level of members’
contractual commitment, level and quality of seegictraining and quality of supervisory staff, siral layout of
facility and convenience of location with respexttcess to transportation and pedestrian traffic.

We consider our service offerings to be in the naidge of the value/service proposition and desigoegpeal
to a large portion of the population who attenddis facilities. Competitors offering lower priciagd a lower level
of service could attract members away from us.
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We also face competition from club operators offgrcomparable or higher pricing with higher levefs
service. The trend to larger outer-suburban fafitifess centers, in areas where suitable realesistamore likely to
be available, could also compete effectively agains suburban fithess-only formats.

Competitive Position Measured by Number of Clubs

Number of
Market _Clubs Position
Boston metropolital 25 Leading owner and operat
New York metropolitar 11z  Leading owner and operat
Philadelphia metropolita 7  # 3 owner and operator, leader in urban ce
Washington, D.C. metropolite 19  # 2 owner and operator, leader in urban ce
Switzerland 3 Local owner and operator on

We also compete with other entertainment and rbtainesses for the discretionary income in owgetar
demographics. There can be no assurance that Weendble to compete effectively in the futurehe markets in
which we operate. Competitors, who may include camigs that are larger and have greater resourapsut) may
enter these markets to our detriment. These cotiyeetionditions may limit our ability to increasaet without a
material loss in membership, attract new membedsastnact and retain qualified personnel. Additibna
consolidation in the fitness club industry coulduk in increased competition among participangstipularly large
multi-facility operators that are able to compededttractive acquisition candidates and/or newalystructed club
locations. This increased competition could inceemsr costs associated with expansion through d&aghisitions
and for real estate availability for newly constagetclub locations.

We believe that our market leadership, experienckeoperating efficiencies enable us to providecthresumer
with a superior product in terms of conveniencelity service and affordability. We believe thagte are
significant barriers to entry in our metropolitaneas, including restrictive zoning laws, lengthyrpi processes and
a shortage of appropriate real estate, which coigicburage any large competitor from attemptinggen a chain ¢
clubs in these markets. However, such a competitold enter these markets more easily throughana series o
acquisitions.

Government Regulation

Our operations and business practices are subjéetderal, state and local government regulatigdhénvariou
jurisdictions in which our clubs are located, irdihg: (1) general rules and regulations of the FaldErade
Commission, state and local consumer protection@gs and state statutes that prescribe certaimsfand
provisions of membership contracts and that gottegradvertising, sale, financing and collectiorsawch
memberships and (2) state and local health regukti

Statutes and regulations affecting the fithesssirgithave been enacted in jurisdictions in whichcaraduct
business and other states into which we may exjatie future have adopted or may adopt similaislagon.
Typically, these statutes and regulations presandrtain forms and provisions of membership comsraafford
members the right to cancel the contract withipectied time period after signing or in certainccimstances, such
as for medical reasons or relocation to a certatadce from the nearest club, require an escrofwrafs received
from pre-opening sales or the posting of a bongroof of financial responsibility and may establiehximum
prices for membership contracts and limitationgrenterm of contracts. The specific proceduresraadons for
cancellation vary due to differing laws in the resjive jurisdictions, but in each instance, theceding member is
entitled to a refund of unused prepaid amounts Masntly, several states have proposed legislétiainwould
prohibit the automatic rollover of membership oacmember’s commitment period expires. In additioa,are
subject to numerous other types of federal ané séagulations governing the sale of membershipss@ttaws and
regulations are subject to varying interpretatiopg number of state and federal enforcement agsmeid courts.
We maintain internal review procedures in ordezdmply with these requirements and believe thatagtivities ar
in substantial compliance with all applicable stesiirules and decisions.

The tax treatment of membership dues varies bg.dtarecent years, some states in which we opé&ale
Connecticut and New Jersey) have passed legislaticequire sales tax to be collected on membeiigs and, in
some cases on personal training sessions (e.gneCticut). In January 2009, New York State propdsgislation
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that would require members to pay sales tax on neeship dues and personal training sessions. Thaes have
the effect of increasing the payments by our memhehich could impede our ability to attract newmnters or
induce members to cancel their membership.

Changes in any statutes, rules or regulations doaNvg a material adverse effect on our financiabldtmn and
results of operations.

Employees

At December 31, 2008, we had approximately 9,30pleyees, of whom approximately 2,600 were employed
full-time. Approximately 430 employees were nonkchersonnel. We are not a party to any collectaggining
agreement with our employees. We have never expieany significant labor shortages or had arficdlfy in
obtaining adequate replacements for departing erapk We consider our relations with our employeds good.

Available Information

We make available through our web sitevatw.mysportsclubs.coim the “Investor Relations — SEC Filings”
section, free of charge, all reports and amendntertt®ose reports filed or furnished pursuant toti®a 13(a) or 15
(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as atedr{the “Exchange Act”gs soon as reasonably practicable
we electronically file such material with, or fushiit to, the SEC. Occasionally, we may use our Witebas a
channel of distribution of material company infotioa. Financial and other material information nedjag the
Company is routinely posted on and accessibletpi/ftiorporate.mysportsclubs.carn addition, you may
automatically receive email alerts and other infation about us by enrolling your email by visitithg “Email
Alert” section at http://corporate.mysportsclubsaéo

The foregoing information regarding our website @adontent is for convenience only. The contdriuw
website is not deemed to be incorporated by refer@mto this report nor should it be deemed to Haeen filed witt
the SEC.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

Investors should carefully consider the risks digsat below and all other information in this AnniRéport on
Form 1(-K. The risks and uncertainties described belowrasethe only ones that we face. Additional riskd a
uncertainties not presently known to us or thattwerently deem immaterial may also impair our besis and
operations. If any of the following risks actuatlgcur, our business, financial condition, cash 8aw results of
operations could be materially adversely affected.

Risks Related to Our Business
We may be unable to attract and retain members, aihiould have a negative effect on our business.

The performance of our clubs is dependent on ollityatw attract and retain members and we mayhwot
successful in these efforts. Many of our membensczacel their club membership at any time unddaire
circumstances. In addition, there are numerousfathat have in the past and could in the futeael to a decline
membership levels at established clubs or thatdcprdvent us from increasing our membership at nelubs,
including a decline in our ability to deliver quglservice at a competitive cost, the presencearettdand indirect
competition in the areas in which the clubs arated, the public’s interest in sports and fitndabsand general
economic conditions.

The current volatility and disruption to the capéad credit markets have reached unprecedentetsland
have significantly adversely impacted global ecoitoronditions, resulting in additional significaneicessionary
pressures and further declines in consumer confeland economic growth. These conditions have anliic
further lead to reduced consumer spending in treséeable future. In the current depressed ecoremuiconment,
consumers and businesses may postpone spendiegpionse to tighter credit, negative financial news
and/or declines in income or asset values, whicthdchave a material negative effect on the demanthie
Company’s services and products and such decliderimand may continue as the current recessionaigdpe
continues and disposable income declines. Othéoriathat could influence demand include increasésel and
other energy costs, conditions in the residential estate and mortgage markets, labor and hegdthoats, access
to credit, consumer confidence and other macroeoanfactors affecting consumer spending behavibe gurrent
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downturn and uncertain outlook in the global ecoponay materially adversely affect our business @und
revenues and profits. As a result of these factoesnbership levels might not be adequate to mairchai
operations at current levels or permit the expanefoour operations.

In addition, to the extent our corporate clients aglversely affected by negative economic condititrey may
decide, as part of expense reduction strategiesirtail or cancel club membership benefits proditietheir
respective employees. Any reductions in corporaenbrerships may lead to membership cancellatiomgeasan nc
assure that employees of corporate customers dlbge to continue their memberships without empleybsidies
A decline in membership levels may have a matadakrse effect on our business, financial conditiesults of
operations or cash flows.

Our geographic concentration heightens our exposuceadverse regional developments.

As of December 31, 2008, we operated 112 fithagssdh the New York metropolitan market, 25 fitnekss
in the Boston market, 19 fitness clubs in the Wagtan, D.C. market, seven fitness clubs in thed@leilphia market
and three fitness clubs in Switzerland. Our gedgiaponcentration in the Northeast and Mid-Atlamégions and,
in particular, the New York area, heightens ourasxpe to adverse developments related to competamwell as
economic and demographic changes in these reglansgeographic concentration might result in a miatadvers:
effect on our business, financial condition, cdetw$ or results of operations in the future.

The level of competition in the fithess club indugtcould negatively impact our revenue growth ratasd
profits.

The fitness club industry is competitive and comis to become more competitive. In each of the etaik
which we operate, we compete with other fitnesbglphysical fithess and recreational facilitielelshed by loc:
governments, hospitals and businesses for theitoyegs, amenity and condominium clubs, the YMCA simdilar
organizations and, to a certain extent, with ratque tennis and other athletic clubs, country gluteight reducin
salons and the home-use fitness equipment industeyalso compete with other entertainment andlretsinesses
for the discretionary income in our target demobgieg We might not be able to compete effectivalyhie future in
the markets in which we operate. Competitors inelcdmpanies that are larger and have greater @sthran us
and they may enter these markets to our detrinid¢rgise competitive conditions may limit our abilityincrease
dues without a material loss in membership, atineet members and attract and retain qualified persio
Additionally, consolidation in the fitness club umstry could result in increased competition amoadigipants,
particularly large multi-facility operators thatsable to compete for attractive acquisition caatdid or newly
constructed club locations, thereby increasingscassociated with expansion through both acquisitemd lease
negotiation and real estate availability for neadynstructed club locations.

Competitors offering lower pricing and a lower legéservice compete against our facilities. Funthere,
smaller and less expensive weight loss facilitiesent a competitive alternative for consumers.ai¥e face
competition from competitors offering comparabléhagher pricing with higher levels of service. Tinend to larger
outer-suburban, multi-recreational family fithessters, in areas where suitable real estate is likefhg to be
available, also compete against our suburban sitomly models.

In addition, large competitors could enter the arbmrkets in which we operate to attempt to opehaén of
clubs in these markets through one, or a seriescgfjisitions.

If we are unable to identify and acquire suitablées for new clubs, our revenue growth rate and fite may be
negatively impacted.

To successfully expand our business over the leng,twe must identify and acquire sites that meette
selection criteria we have established. In additofinding sites with the right geographical, degraphic and other
measures we employ in our selection process, veenalsd to evaluate the penetration of our compstitothe
market. We face competition from other health atwes center operators for sites that meet oteri@iand as a
result, we may lose those sites, our competitontdccopy our format or we could be forced to paghleir prices for
those sites. If we are unable to identify and aggsites for new clubs on attractive terms, ouenexe growth rate
and profits may be negatively impacted. Additiopail our analysis of the suitability of a siteifcorrect, we may
not be able to recover our capital investment wettgping and building the new club.
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We may experience prolonged periods of losses inreaently opened clubs

We have opened a total of 24 new club locationswigahave constructed in the 24-month period ended
December 31, 2008. Upon opening a club, we typi@{perience an initial period of club operatingdes.
Enroliment from pre-sold memberships typically gates insufficient revenue for the club to iniyadjenerate
positive cash flow. As a result, a new club tydicglenerates an operating loss in its first fukiyef operations and
substantially lower margins in its second full yepperations than a club opened for more tham@dths
(“mature club”). These operating losses and lowargims will negatively impact our future resultsogferations.
This negative impact will be increased by the @hitixpensing of pre-opening costs, which includal@nd other
costs associated with lease negotiations and pergnénd zoning requirements, as well as depreciand
amortization expenses, which will further negatpiehpact net income. We may, at our discretiongbarate or
expand our plans to open new clubs, which may teamnip adversely affect results from operations.

We could be subject to claims related to healthsafety risks at our clubs.

Use of our clubs poses some potential health etysaks to members or guests through physicattiexeand
use of our services and facilities, including eisr@quipment. Claims might be asserted againfstrusjury
suffered by, or death of members or guests whitga@sing at a club. We might not be able to sudodigsiefend
such claims. As a result, we might not be able &ntain our general liability insurance on accefgdérms in the
future or maintain a level of insurance that woplldvide adequate coverage against potential claims.

Depending upon the outcome, these matters maydenaerial effect on our consolidated financialipas,
results of operations or cash flows.

Security and privacy breaches may expose us tallitgtand cause us to lose customers.

Federal and state law requires us to safeguardusiomers’ financial information, including credérd
information. Although we have established secysitycedures to protect against identity theft amdtitteft of our
customers’ financial information, our security grdting measures may not prevent security breaambreaches
of our customers’ privacy may occur, which couldrha@ur business. For example, a significant nunobeur users
provide us with credit card and other confidentiédrmation and authorize us to bill their credird accounts
directly for our products and services. Typicallig rely on encryption and authentication technolibiggnsed from
third parties to enhance transmission securityoofidential information. Advances in computer captds, new
discoveries in the field of cryptography, inade@uaicility security or other developments may resub
compromise or breach of the technology used by psdtect customer data. Any compromise of our sgccould
harm our reputation or financial condition and réfere, our business. In addition, a party whabig &0 circumvent
our security measures or exploit inadequacies irseaurity measures, could, among other effectsappropriate
proprietary information, cause interruptions in operations or expose customers to computer virmsether
disruptions. Actual or perceived vulnerabilitiesym@ad to claims against us. To the extent the oreasve have
taken prove to be insufficient or inadequate, wg liecome subject to litigation or administrativea#ons, which
could result in significant fines, penalties or dayas and harm to our reputation.

Loss of key personnel and/or failure to attract anetain highly qualified personnel could make it me difficult
for us to develop our business and enhance our fig@l performance.

We are dependent on the continued services ofemioismanagement team, particularly Alexander A.
Alimanestianu, our Chief Executive Officer. We leek the loss of Mr. Alimanestianu could have a m@tadverse
effect on us and our financial performance. Cutyemte do not have any long-term employment agregseith
any of our executive officers and we may not be ablattract and retain sufficient qualified perssirito meet our
business needs.

Terrorism and the uncertainty of armed conflicts mdave a material adverse effect on clubs and operating
results.

Terrorist attacks, such as the attacks that ocdunrélew York and Washington, D.C. on September2DD1
and other acts of violence or war may affect theketa in which we operate, our operating resultdhiermarket on
which our common stock trades. Our geographic aunagon in the major cities in the Northeast anidMtlantic
regions and, in particular, the New York and Wagton, D.C. areas, heightens our exposure to arty fsmiagre
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terrorist attacks, which may adversely affect dubs and result in a decrease in our revenuespotential near-
term and long-term effect these attacks may havedomembers, the markets for our services andudet for
our common stock are uncertain; however, their betice can be expected to further negatively affest
United States economy generally and specificallyrgional markets in which we operate. The coreecps of
any terrorist attacks or any armed conflicts angredictable; and we may not be able to foreseetsvhat could
have an adverse effect on our business.

Disruptions and failures involving our informatiorsystems could cause customer dissatisfaction angeasely
affect our billing and other administrative functios.

The continuing and uninterrupted performance ofinformation systems is critical to our successt Ou
members may become dissatisfied by any systemspdiisn or failure that interrupts our ability togwide our
services to them, including programs and adequating. Disruptions or failures that affect oullinig and other
administrative functions could have an adversecaffa our operating results.

We use a fullyintegrated information system to sell membersHigbpur members, track and analyze sales
membership statistics, the frequency and timinmember workouts, cross-club utilization, membag, lifalue-
added services and demographic profiles by menithés.system also assists us in evaluating staffeeds and
program offerings. Correcting any disruptions diufes that affected our proprietary system cowdditfficult, time-
consuming and expensive because we would neecttoamgracted consultants familiar with our system.

In 2008, we commenced the development of GIMS, whie expect to roll out to our clubs in the firsifrof
2010. We estimate that the total cost of creatimjinplementing GIMS to be approximately betweef.8Imillion
and $15.0 million. Any failure of this new systemite operational in the expected time frame outxfion as
expected could adversely affect our business agdtseof operations.

We have implemented numerous infrastructure chattgescommodate our growth, provide network
redundancy, better manage telecommunications aadcdats, increase efficiencies in operations angfove
management of all components of our technical ggchire. In 2005, we brought our disaster recoségyonline.
The disaster recovery facility utilizes replicatimols to provide failover capabilities for suppogt our club
operations and company communications. Fire, flpedghquakes, power loss, telecommunicationsrés|wreak-
ins, acts of terrorism and similar events could dgeneither our primary or back-up systems. In &idicomputer
viruses, electronic break-ins or other similar ajigive problems could also adversely affect oumansites. Any
system disruption or failure, security breach dreotdamage that interrupts or delays our operationgl cause us
to lose members and adversely affect our busimebsesults of operations.

The opening of new clubs by us in existing locat®may negatively impact our comparable club revenue
increases and our operating margins.

We currently operate clubs throughout the NorthaadtMid-Atlantic regions of the United States. dfened
nine clubs in 2008 and three clubs since Decembe?@8. In addition, we currently have four cléitmswhich we
have signed lease commitments in existing markéiih respect to existing markets, it has been apegence that
opening new clubs may attract some memberships &wayother clubs already operated by us in thoagkats
and diminish their revenues. In addition, as altegunew club openings in existing markets andause older cluk
will represent an increasing proportion of our chase over time, our mature club revenue increasgsbe lower i
future periods than in the past.

Another result of opening new clubs is that oubadperating margins may be lower than they have bee
historically while the clubs build a membershipda#/e expect both the addition of pre-opening egpsrand the
lower revenue volumes characteristic of newly-opleciabs to affect our club operating margins aséheew clubs.

Our continued growth could place strains on our magement, employees, information systems and intérna
controls, which may adversely impact our business.

Over the past five years, we have experiencedfgignt growth in our business activities and ogeres,
including an increase in the number of our cluhgufe expansion will place increased demands on our
administrative, operational, financial and othesorerces. Any failure to manage growth effectivaduld seriously
harm our business. To be successful, we will neembhtinue to improve management information systand our
operating, administrative, financial and accounsggtems and controls. We will also need to traw employees
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and maintain close coordination among our execugégeounting, finance, marketing, sales and operatiunctions
These processes are time-consuming and expensivease management responsibilities and divert geanent
attention.

Our cash and cash equivalents are concentrated e dpank.

Our cash and cash equivalents are held, primamilg,single commercial bank. These deposits are not
collateralized. In the event the bank becomes west| we would be unable to recover most of ouheaxl cash
equivalents deposited at the bank. Cash and castedents held in a single commercial bank as afdbeber 31,
2008 were $6.9 million.

Because of the capital-intensive nature of our bnsss, we may have to incur additional indebtednesssue
new equity securities and, if we are not able tdaib additional capital, our ability to operate axpand our
business may be impaired and our results of opeyas could be adversely affected.

Our business requires significant levels of capadinance the development of additional sitesrfew clubs
and the construction of our clubs. If cash fromilatde sources is insufficient or unavailable doedstrictive credit
markets, or if cash is used for unanticipated ne@dsmay require additional capital sooner thaicgated. In the
event that we are required or choose to raiseiadditfunds, we may be unable to do so on favoradstas or at all.
Furthermore, the cost of debt financing could digantly increase, making it cost-prohibitive tortmw, which
could force us to issue new equity securities.dfigsue new equity securities, existing sharehsldety experience
additional dilution or the new equity securitiesyniave rights, preferences or privileges senidhtse of existing
holders of common stock. If we cannot raise fundacceptable terms, we may not be able to executeiwent
growth plans, take advantage of future opportusitierespond to competitive pressures. Any inaghiditraise
additional capital when required could have an esheffect on our business plans and operatindtsesu

We may incur rising costs related to constructiohreew clubs and maintaining our existing clubs. ¥fe are not
able to pass these cost increases through to oumipers, our returns may be adversely affected.

Our clubs require significant upfront investmefibur investment is higher than we had plannedmag need
to outperform our operational plan to achieve angéted return. Over the longer term, we beliea¢we can offset
cost increases by increasing our membership duksther fees and improving profitability througtsto
efficiencies; however, higher costs in certain oegiwhere we are opening new clubs during any geridime may
be difficult to offset in the short-term.

Risks Related to Our Leverage and Our Indebtedness
We may be negatively affected by the economic siiisithe United States and key international market

We must maintain liquidity to fund our working ctadj service our outstanding indebtedness and dman
investment opportunities. Without sufficient liqitid we could be forced to curtail our operatiomsve may not be
able to pursue new business opportunities. If oarent resources do not satisfy our liquidity regmients, we may
have to seek additional financing. The principalrses of our liquidity are funds generated fromrafing activities
available cash and cash equivalents and borrowindsr our $260.0 million senior secured creditligcfthe “2007
Senior Credit Facility”).

The capital and credit markets have been expengrextreme volatility and disruption during the fpgsar. As
a result, one or more of our current lenders cedfaerience financial difficulty, and as a resuit ta provide the
required lending amounts under our 2007 Credit Agrent. If this should occur, we may need to seelitiadal
financing from other sources. The availability imfancing will depend on a variety of factors, sasheconomic and
market conditions, the availability of credit andgr @redit ratings, as well as the possibility tleatders could develc
a negative perception of the prospects of our coyppa the fitness industry in general. We may retble to
successfully obtain any necessary additional fimgnon favorable terms, or financing altogether.

Economic conditions, both domestic and foreign, mfgct our financial performance. Prevailing ecoino
conditions, including unemployment levels, inflatj@vailability of credit, energy costs and othercno-economic
factors, as well as uncertainty about future ecanamwonditions, adversely affect consumer spendimd) a
consequently, our business and results of operation
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Our leverage may impair our financial condition ande may incur significant additional deb

We currently have a substantial amount of debtofABecember 31, 2008, our total consolidated dedst w
$338.0 million. Our substantial debt could have égm@nt consequences, including:

< making it more difficult for us to satisfy our ofitions with respect to our outstanding indebtestr
« increasing our vulnerability to general adverseneooic and industry condition

« limiting our ability to obtain additional financing fund future working capital, capital expenodésiy
acquisitions of clubs and other general corporatgiirements

 requiring a substantial portion of our cash floanfroperations for the payment of interest on otat,dehich
is variable on our 2007 Senior Credit Facility anol Revolving Loan Facility, and reducing our alilio use
our cash flow to fund working capital, capital erddures and acquisitions of new clubs and general
corporate requirements; a

« limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reaatig to, changes in our business and the industmhinh we
operate

These limitations and consequences may placeais@npetitive disadvantage to other less-leveraged
competitors.

The indenture governing our 11% Senior DiscouneNatue in 2014 (“Senior Discount Notes”) will petrons
and our subsidiaries to incur substantial additlide#t, subject to compliance with provisions af thdenture. In
addition, as of December 31, 2008, we had $42.Bomibf unutilized borrowings under our senior sexu
revolving credit facility. If new debt is addeddar and our subsidiariesurrent debt levels, the related risks that
and they currently face could intensify.

We may not have access to the cash flow and otfssets of our subsidiaries that may be needed toenak
payments on our outstanding Indebtedness.

Our operations are conducted through our subsidiamd our ability to make payments on our outstand
Senior Discount Notes is dependent on the earrindghe distribution of funds from our subsidiaridewever,
none of our subsidiaries are obligated to makeduaailable to us for payment on our outstanding@eDiscount
Notes. In addition, the terms of the Credit Agreetated as of February 27, 2007 (2007 Credit Agreement”)
governing the 2007 Senior Credit Facility, sigrafitly restrict TSI, LLC and its subsidiaries fromypg dividends
and otherwise transferring assets to us. Furtherpoan subsidiaries are permitted under the teifiseo2007
Credit Agreement and other indebtedness (includimder the Senior Discount Notes indenture) to iralditional
indebtedness that may severely restrict or proHieitmaking of distributions, the payment of divide or the
making of loans by such subsidiaries to us.

We cannot assure that the agreements governirguthent and future indebtedness of our subsidiaviks
permit our subsidiaries to provide TSI, LLC witHfazient dividends, distributions or loans to fuacheduled
interest and principal payments on the 2007 Crkglieement when due.

Covenant restrictions under our indebtedness mawitiour ability to operate our business and, in $uan
event, we may not have sufficient assets to settleindebtedness.

The indenture governing our Senior Discount Na28€,7 Credit Agreement and certain of our other egent:
regarding our indebtedness contain, among othegshicovenants that may restrict our ability tafioe future
operations or capital needs or to engage in otheinbss activities. The indenture governing ouli@dbdiscount
Notes, the 2007 Credit Agreement and certain ofotler agreements regarding our indebtednessatestmonc
other things, may impact our ability and the apitf our restricted subsidiaries to:

« borrow money

 pay dividends or make distributior
* purchase or redeem stot

* make investments and extend cre

* engage in transactions with affiliat¢
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* engage in sa-leaseback transactior
* consummate certain asset sa

- effect a consolidation or merger or sell, trangkgise or otherwise dispose of all or substantalllpf our
assets; an

« create liens on our asse

In addition, the 2007 Credit Agreement requires@oenpany, on a consolidated basis, to maintaireaipd
financial ratio and satisfy certain financial caimh tests that may require us to take action tluce our debt or to
act in a manner contrary to our business objectiVes 2007 Credit Agreement requires the Compamy o
consolidated basis, to maintain a maximum totaddage ratio not greater than 4.25:1.00 of constaaia
indebtedness to consolidated EBITDA, as definettién2007 Credit Agreement. As of December 31, 2@@8were
in compliance with such ratio test, with a ratid2a835:1.00. In the year ended December 31, 2008ee@ded a
goodwill impairment charge of $17.6 million primamlated to our Boston Sports Clubs region. As e¢&mber 31
2008, we had $32.6 million of goodwill remaining omr consolidated balance sheet. If we were to Eempee
material additional goodwill impairment chargewduld increase our total leverage ratio and depgndpon the
amount of goodwill impairment charges recordedhsart impairment could result in a failure to maimtide
required minimum total leverage ratio of 4.25 tdQland would result in a breach of our covenantutite 2007
Credit Agreement. See “ltem 7. Management’s Disonsand Analysis of Financial Condition and Resofts
Operations — Liquidity and Capital Resources — 28@wior Credit Facility” for further discussion adir
covenants under our 2007 Senior Credit Facility.

Events beyond our control, including changes inegaineconomic and business conditions, may affgct o
ability to meet certain financial ratios and fina@condition tests. We may be unable to meet thesis and the
lenders may decide not to waive any failure to nieese tests. A breach of any of these covenantddwesult in a
default under the indenture governing our Senigcbiint Notes and the 2007 Credit Agreement. Ifvemteof
default under the 2007 Credit Agreement occurslehders could elect to declare all amounts oudstan
thereunder, together with accrued interest, tarbmediately due and payable. In the event of defader the
indenture governing our Senior Discount Notes,nibie holders could elect to declare due all amooutstanding
thereunder, together with accrued interest. If sugh event should occur, we might not have sufficéssets to pay
our indebtedness.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Commen
None

Item 2. Properties

We own the 151 East 86th Street location, whictskeia fitness club and a retail tenant that gesrat
$1.7 million of rental income for us for the yeaided December 31, 2008. We lease the remainderditoess
clubs pursuant to long-term leases (generally 1Zbtgears, including options). In the next five igar the period
from January 1, 2009 through December 31, 2013ave leases for six club locations that are diexfore
without any renewal options and leases for 38 tdahtions which expire during this period but hageewal
options. In each case, we will endeavor to extbeddase or relocate the club or its membership happropriate.

We lease approximately 47,000 square feet of offfiace in New York City and have smaller regiorfites
in Fairfax, VA and Boston, MA, for administrativacigeneral corporate purposes. We also lease waselznd
commercial space in Brooklyn, NY and Queens, NYsforage purposes and for the operation of a dexetda
laundry facility for certain of our clubs in the Nerork metropolitan area.

Beginning January 1, 2009, we lease approximat2}9® square feet in ElImsford, NY for the operatiba
centralized laundry facility for New York Sportsubk offering towel service and for construction agdipment
storage. This space will replace the laundry facdf 14,000 square feet currently in Queens, Nie $pace will
also serve as corporate office space and will cepdgoproximately 10,800 square feet of corpordteenspace in
Manhattan.
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The following table provides information regardiogr club locations:

Date Opened or Managemen

Location Address Assumed

New York Sports Clubs:
Manhattar 151 East 86th Stre January 197
Manhattar 61 West 62nd Stre: July 1983
Manhattar 614 Second Avenu July 1986
Manhattar 151 Reade Stre: January 199
Manhattar 1601 Broadway September 199
Manhattar 50 West 34th Stres August 1992
Manhattar 349 East 76th Stre April 1994
Manhattar 248 West 80th Stre: May 1994
Manhattar 502 Park Avenu February 199!
Manhattar 117 Seventh Avenue Sol March 199t
Manhattar 303 Park Avenue Sou December 199
Manhattar 30 Wall Stree May 1996
Manhattar 1635 Third Avenut October 199¢
Manhattar 575 Lexington Avenu November 199t
Manhattar 278 Eighth Avenu December 199
Manhattar 200 Madison Avenu February 199
Manhattar 2162 Broadwa November 199
Manhattar 633 Third Avenue¢ April 1998
Manhattar 1657 Broadway July 1998
Manhattar 217 Broadway March 199¢
Manhattar 23 West 73rd Stret April 1999
Manhattar 34 West 14th Stree July 1999
Manhattar 503-511 Broadway July 1999
Manhattar 1372 Broadwa) October 199¢
Manhattar 300 West 125th Stre May 2000
Manhattar 102 North End Avenu May 2000
Manhattar 19 West 44th Stret August 200(
Manhattar 128 Eighth Avenu December 200
Manhattar 2527 Broadwa August 2001
Manhattar 3 Park Avenut August 2001
Manhattar 10 Irving Place November 200:
Manhattar 160 Water Stree November 200:
Manhattar 230 West 41st Stre November 200:
Manhattar 1221 Avenue of the Americi January 200
Manhattar 200 Park Avenu December 200
Manhattar 232 Mercer Stree September 200
Manhattar 225 Varick Stree August 200¢
Manhattar 885 Second Avenu February 200°
Manhattar 301 West 145th Stre October 200°
Manhattar 1400 5th Avenu December 200
Bronx, NY 1601 Bronxdale Avenu November 200°
Brooklyn, NY 110 Boerum Plac October 198!
Brooklyn, NY 1736 Shore Parkwe June 199¢
Brooklyn, NY 179 Remsen Stre May 2001
Brooklyn, NY 324 Ninth Stree August 200:
Brooklyn, NY 1630 E 15th Stre August 2007
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Date Opened or Management
Location Address Assumed

Brooklyn, NY
Brooklyn, NY
Queens, NY
Queens, NY
Queens, NY
Queens, NY
Queens, NY
Queens, NY
Queens, NY
Staten Island, N®
Scarsdale, N
Mamaroneck, NY
Crotor-on-Hudson, NY
Larchmont, NY
Nanuet, NY
Great Neck, NY
East Meadow, N\
Commack, NY
Oceanside, N\
Long Beach, NY
Garden City, NY
Huntington, NY
Syosset, NY
West Nyack, NY
Woodmere, NY
Hartsdale, NY
Somers, NY

Port Jefferson Station, N

White Plains, NY
Hawthorne, NY
Dobbs Ferry, NY
Smithtown, NY
Carmel, NY
Hicksville, NY
New Rochelle, NY
Deer Park, NY
Garnerville, NY
Stamford, CT
Stamford, CT
Danbury, CT
Stamford, CT
Norwalk, CT
Greenwich, C1
Westport, CT
Greenwich, C1
West Hartford, C1
East Brunswick, N
Princeton, N.

7118 Third Avenut

439 86th Stree

69-33 Austin Stree
153-67 A Cross Island Parkwz
285€-2861 Steinway Stres
8000 Cooper Avenu
99-01 Queens Boulevai
39-01 Queens Blvd
17E-61 Hillside Avenue
300 West Service Roz
696 White Plains Roa
124 Palmer Avenu

420 South Riverside Driv
15 Madison Avenu

58 Demarest Mill Roa

15 Barstow Roa

625 Merrick Avenue

6136 Jericho Turnpik
2909 Lincoln Avenut

265 East Park Avent

833 Franklin Avenuu

350 New York Avenut

49 Ira Roac

3656 Palisades Center Dri
158 Irving Stree

208 E. Hartsdale Avent
Somers Commons, 80 Routt
200 Wilson Stree

4 City Centel

24 Saw Mill River Roat
50 Livingstone Avenu

5 Browns Roat

1880 Route ¢

100 Duffy Avenue

Trump Plaza, Huguenot Stre
455 Commack Avenu

20 W. Ramapo Ros

6 Landmark Squar

106 Commerce Roe

38 Mill Plain Roac

1063 Hope Stree

250 Westport Avenu

6 Liberty Way

427 Post Road, Ea

1 Fawcett Plac

65 Memorial Roac

8 Cornwall Courn

301 North Harrison Stre:

23

May 2004

April 2008
April 1997
June 199¢
February 200:
March 2007
June 200°
December 200
Future Opening
June 199¢
October 199!
January 199
January 199
December 199
May 1998

July 1989
January 199
January 199
May 1999

July 1999

May 2000
February 200:
March 2001
February 200:
March 2002
September 200
February 200!
July 2005
September 200
January 200
June 200¢
December 200
July 2007
November 200t
March 200€
March 200¢
Future Opening
December 199
Reopened February 20
January 199
November 199t
March 199¢
May 1999
January 200;
February 200:
November 200°
January 199
May 1997
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Date Opened or Management

Location Address Assumed
Freehold, N. 200 Daniels Wa April 1998
Matawan, N. 450 Route 3« April 1998
Marlboro, NJ 34 Route 9 Nortl April 1998
Ramsey, N. 1100 Route 17 Nort June 199¢
Mahwah, N¢ 7 Leighton Plact June 199¢

Parsippany, N
Springfield, NJ

2651 Route 1|
215 Morris Avenug

August 199¢
August 199¢

Colonia, NJ 1250 Route 2 August 199¢
Somerset, N 120 Cedar Grove Lar August 199¢
Hoboken, N. 221 Washington Stre: October 199¢
West Caldwell, N. 913 Bloomfield Avenug April 1999
Jersey City, N. 147 Two Harborside Financial Cen June 200:
Newark, NJ 1 Gateway Cente October 200:
Ridgewood, N. 129 S. Broad Strei June 200
Westwood, N. 35 Jefferson Avenu June 200:¢
Livingston, NJ 39 W. North Field Rd. February 200!
Princeton, N. 4250 Route 1 Nort April 2005
Hoboken, N. 210 14th Stree December 200
Englewood, N. 34-36 South Dean Stre December 200
Clifton, NJ 202 Main Avenue March 2007
Montclair, NJ 56 Church Stree January 200
Butler, NJ 1481 Route 2. January 200!
East Brunswick, N 300 State Route 1 March 200¢
Bayonne, N. 550 Route 440 Nort Future Opening

Boston Sports Clubs:

Boston, MA 1 Bulfinch Place August 199¢
Boston, MA 201 Brookline Avenut June 200(
Boston, MA 361 Newbury Stree November 200:
Boston, MA 350 Washington Stre: February 200:
Boston, MA 505 Boylston Stree January 200
Boston, MA 560 Harrison Avenu February 200t
Boston, MA 695 Atlantic Avenue October 200t
Allston, MA 15 Gorham Stree July 1997
Natick, MA Sherwood Plaza, 124 Worcester September 199
Weymouth, MA 553 Washington Stre: May 1999
Wellesley, MA 140 Great Plain Avent July 2000
Andover, MA 307 Lowell Stree July 2000
Lynnfield, MA 425 Walnut Stree July 2000
Lexington, MA 475 Bedford Avenu July 2000
Franklin, MA 750 Union Stree July 2000
Cambridge, MA 625 Massachusetts Aven January 200.
West Newton, MA 1359 Washington Stre November 200:
Waltham, MA 840 Winter Stree November 200:
Watertown, MA 311 Arsenal Stree January 200
Newton, MA 135 Wells Avenut August 200¢
Somerville, MA 1 Davis Squarn December 200
Medford, MA 70 Station Landinq December 200

Westborough, M#£

1500 Union Stree
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Location

Address

Date Opened or Management
Assumed

Woburn, MA
Providence, R
Providence, R

Washington Sports Clubs:

Washington, D.C
Washington, D.C
Washington, D.C
Washington, D.C
Washington, D.C
Washington, D.C
Washington, D.C
Washington, D.C
Washington, D.C
Washington, D.C
North Bethesda, MI
Germantown, ML
Silver Spring, MD
Bethesda, ML
Alexandria, VA
Sterling, VA
Fairfax, VA

West Springfield, VA
Clarendon, VA

Philadelphia Sports Clubs:

Philadelphia, P/
Philadelphia, P/
Chalfont, PA
Cherry Hill, NJ
Philadelphia, P/
Ardmore, PA
Radnor, PA

Swiss Sports Clubs

Basel, Switzerlan
Zurich, Switzerlanc
Basel, Switzerlan

300 Presidential Wa
131 Pittman Stree
10 Dorrance Stre¢

214 D Street, S.E

1835 Connecticut Avenue, N.W

2251 Wisconsin Avenue, N.V

1211 Connecticut Avenue, N.\

1345 F Street, N.\

5345 Wisconsin Ave., N.W\
1990 K Street, N.W

783 Seventh Street, N.\
3222 M Street, N.W

14th Street, N.W

10400 Old Georgetown Ro:
12623 Wisteria Drive

8506 Fenton Stre:

6800 Wisconsin Avenu
3654 King Stree

21800 Town Center Pla:
11001 Lee Highwa

8430 Old Keene Mil

2700 Clarendon Bouleva

220 South 5th Stre:

2000 Hamilton Stree

One Highpoint Drive

Route 70 and Kings Highwe
1735 Market Stree

34 W. Lancaster Avent
555 East Lancaster Aven

St. Johanr-Vorstadt 41
Glarnischstrasse &
Gellerstrasse 23

December 200
December 200
January 200!

January 198
January 199
May 1994

July 2000
August 200z
February 200:
February 200:
October 200
February 200!
June 200¢
June 199¢

July 1998
November 200!
November 200°
June 199¢
October 199¢
October 199¢
September 200
November 200:

January 199
July 1999
January 200!
April 2000
October 200(
March 200z
December 200

August 1987
August 1987
August 2001

Item 3. Legal Proceeding:

On or about March 1, 2005, in an action sty&dah Cruz, et al v. Town Sports International, tleaw York
Sports Club plaintiffs commenced a purported class actionregahe Company in the Supreme Court, New York
County, seeking unpaid wages and alleging that MIST, violated various overtime provisions of thevN¥ork
State Labor Law with respect to the payment of wagecertain trainers and assistant fitness masa@er or about
November 2, 2005, the complaint and the lawsuievetayed upon agreement of the parties pendingati@uali On
or about November 28, 2006, the plaintiffs gavaasothat they wished to lift the stay. On or abdwihe 18, 2007,
the same plaintiffs commenced a second purporgess @ction against the Company in the Supreme Qoemt
York County, seeking unpaid wages and alleging Ti&if LLC violated various wage payment and oveetim
provisions of the New York State Labor Law withpest to the payment of wages to all New York putgahourly
employees. While we are unable at this time torestt the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome erpbtential
loss to the Company in the event of such an outcaraentend to contest this case vigorously. Dependpon the
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ultimate outcome, this matter may have a matedaéese effect on the Company’s consolidated firenmasition,
results of operations, or cash flows.

In addition to the litigation discussed above, weiavolved in various other lawsuits, claims amdgeedings
incidental to the ordinary course of business. fEsalts of litigation are inherently unpredictatAay claims
against us, whether meritorious or not, could beetconsuming, result in costly litigation, requsignificant
amounts of management time and result in diversfaignificant resources. The results of theserdthesuits,
claims and proceedings cannot be predicted wittaicey. We believe, however, that the ultimate heson of these
current matters will not have a material adver$ecen our financial statements taken as a whole.

Item 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Hold¢

Not applicable

PART Il

Item 5. Market for Registran’s Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters dasuer Purchases ¢
Equity Securities

Price Range of Common Stock

Our common stock currently trades on The NASDAQKaldMarket, a new market tier created by The
NASDAQ Stock Market that became effective on Julgd06 under the symbol CLUB. Our common st
commenced trading on The NASDAQ National Marketamtie symbol CLUB on June 2, 2006, the first tngdi
day of our common stock following our initial pubbffering (“IPO”). The following table sets fortfgr each
quarterly period in the last two fiscal years, tigh and low sales prices (in dollars per share@usfcommon stock
as quoted or reported on The NASDAQ Global Market:

High Low

Year ended December 31, 20!

First Quarte! $10.6( $ 6.41

Second Quarte $10.2( $ 6.1C

Third Quartel $10.7¢ $ 5.92

Fourth Quarte $647 $ 1.97
Year ended December 31, 20!

First Quartel $22.41 $16.3¢

Second Quarte $24.00 $18.3:

Third Quartel $20.0z  $14.6¢

Fourth Quarte $16.21  $ 9.0¢
Holders

As of February 26, 2009, there were approximat8iy@lders of record of our common stock. There are
additional holders who are not “holders of recdodt who beneficially own stock through nominee leotdsuch as
brokers and benefit plan trustees.

Dividend Policy

We intend to retain future earnings, if any, tafice the operation and expansion of our business@amot
anticipate paying any cash dividends in the foraBksefuture. Consequently, stockholders will needell shares of
our common stock to realize a return on their ibwest, if any. No dividends were paid by the Compiarthe
fiscal years ended December 31, 2007 and 2008.

The terms of the indenture governing our Senioc@ist Notes and the 2007 Senior Credit Facility
significantly restrict the payment of dividendsum: Our subsidiaries are permitted under the tefrttze 2007
Senior Credit Facility (including under the indergtgoverning our Senior Discount Notes) to incutigonal
indebtedness that may severely restrict or proHikipayment of dividends by such subsidiariesstaQur
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substantial leverage may impair our financial ctodiand we may incur significant additional defad “ltem 1A.
Risk Factors”).

Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

The Company’s share repurchase activity for eadhefmonths during the three month period ended
December 31, 2008 were as follows:

Maximum Dollar Value

Total Number of Shares of Shares that may
Purchased as Part o yet be Purchasec
Total Number of Share:  Average Price Paic Publicly Announced under the Programs
Purchased(1) per Share Programs(1) (1)
October 1, 200— October 31, 200 — 3 — — 3 25,000,00
November 1, 200— November 30,
2008 1,011,011 $ 2.34 1,011,010 $ 22,594,227
December 1, 2008 — December 31,
2008 837,94: $ 2.6% 837,94 $ 20,355,38

(1) On April 29, 2008, the Board of Directors approweplan to repurchase up to an aggregate of $23li0mof
Common Stock through December 31, 2009. The stplrchase program may be modified, extended or
terminated by the Board of Directors at any til

Recent Sales of Unregistered Securities

We did not sell any securities during the year eridecember 31, 2008 that were not registered uhéer
Securities Act of 1933, as amended.
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Stock Performance Graph

The graph depicted below compares the annual prg@eichange in our cumulative total stockholdarrret
with the cumulative total return of the Russell @@hd the NASDAQ composite indices.

COMPARISON OF 31 MONTH CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*
Among Town Sports International Holdings, Inc, TW&SDAQ Composite Index
And The Russell 2000 Index

$140

F120 -

$100

580

$20

$0 : : -
/2108 12106 12107 12/08

—B— Town Sports International Heldings, Ine
— A — NASDAQ Composite
= O - -Russell 2000

* $100 invested on 6/2/06 in stock & 5/31/06 in indexiuding reinvestment of dividends.
Fiscal year ending December :

December 31,

June 2,
2006 2006 2007 2008
Town Sports International Holding $100.0C $124.3¢ $ 72.1t $24.0¢
NASDAQ $100.0C $112.0¢ $122.3¢ $71.3(C
Russell 200( $100.0C $110.0¢ $108.3¢ $71.7¢

Notes:

(1) The graph covers the period from June 2, 2006fitstetrading day of our common stock following d&O, to
December 31, 200!

(2) The graph assumes that $100 was invested at tHeeh@dose on June 2, 2006 in our common stockyen t
Russell 2000 and in the NASDAQ composite indexekthat all dividends were reinvested. The Rus<i02
Index has been chosen for comparative purposesibeeee do not have a readily definable peer groapis
publicly traded. No cash dividends have been dedlan our common stock in the period cove

(3) Stockholder returns over the indicated period sthoot be considered indicative of future stockhola¢urns.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set fdrttany of our previous or future filings under t8ecurities
Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities ExchArgef 1934, as amended, that might incorporatedfigrence
this Annual Report on Form 10-#¢ future filings made by the Company under thaéatites, the Stock Performar
Graph is not deemed filed with the Securities archBnge Commission, is not deemed soliciting redtarid shall
not be deemed incorporated by reference into artlyaxfe prior filings or into any future filings mady the
Company under those statutes, except to the eki@nthe Company specifically incorporates such
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information by reference into a previous or futditimg, or specifically requests that such infornoat be treated as
soliciting material, in each case under those g&du

Iltem 6. Selected Financial Dat:

SELECTED CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL AND OTHER DATA
(In thousands, except share, per share, club and mmbership data)

The selected consolidated balance sheet datalzeceinber 31, 2008 and 2007 and the selected cdatali
statement of operations and cash flow data foy#aes ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 leavederive
from our audited consolidated financial statemémthided elsewhere herein. The selected consotidsdtance
sheet data as of December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2@Dtha selected consolidated statement of opesaéind cash
flow data for the years ended December 31, 20052804 have been derived from our audited cons@itat
financial statements not included herein. Othea daid club and membership data for all periodsetesl have
been derived from our unaudited books and rec@ds historical results are not necessarily indieabf results for
any future period. You should read these seleaedalidated financial and other data, together tieh
accompanying notes, in conjunction with the “Mamagat’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Comditand
Results of Operations” section of this annual repad our consolidated financial statements andelaed notes
appearing at the end of this annual report.

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Statement of Operations Data
Revenue! $506,70¢ $472,91! $433,08( $388,55¢ $353,03:
Operating expense
Payroll and relate 193,58 177,35 162,70¢ 151,92( 138,30:
Club operatin¢ 172,40¢ 156,66( 146,24 130,21¢ 116,84°
General and administratiy 33,95: 35,09: 30,24¢ 26,58: 24,71¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 52,47¢ 45,96¢ 40,85( 39,58: 36,86¢
Impairment of fixed asse 3,861 — — — —
Goodwill impairment(1 17,60¢ — — — 2,002
Operating incomi 32,817 57,84: 53,03( 40,25: 34,29:
Loss on extinguishment of debt( — 12,52: 16,11: — —
Interest expense, net of interest incc 23,58: 25,32¢ 33,37 39,20¢ 38,60(

Equity in the earnings of investees and rentalrime (2,307%) (1,799 (1,817%) (1,749 (1,497
Net income (loss) before provision for corpor

income taxe: 11,54: 21,79: 5,36: 2,78¢ (2,815
Provision for corporate income tax 9,20¢ 8,14 71t 1,02( 1,09(
Net income (loss 2,337 13,64¢ 4,64 1,76¢ (3,905
Accreted dividends on preferred stc — — — — (784)
Net income (loss) attributable to comrr

stockholders $ 2,337 $1364t $ 4647 $ 1,76¢ $ (4,689
Earnings (loss) per weighted average number of

shares

Basic $ 00 $ 052 $ 02 $ 01C $ (0.2¢

Diluted $ 00 $ 051 $ 02 $ 01C $ (0.26
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As of December 31,

2008 2007 2006 2005 2004
Balance Sheet Data
Cash and cash equivalel $10,39¢ $ 546: $ 6,81 $ 51,300 $ 57,50¢
Working capital (deficit (67,217  (73,48()  (58,36¢€) (2,262) 7,03¢
Total asset 511,63{  488,76. 423,52 433,77 390,95t
Long-term debt, including current installmel 338,01( 316,02 281,12¢ 411,16: 396,46
Total stockholder equity (deficit)(3) 772 18z (17,829 (115,68) (117,01)
Year Ended December 31
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Cash Flow Data:
Cash provided by (used ir

Operating activitie: $95,62. $82,74¢ $7512( $63,25¢ $57,12¢

Investing activities (95,109 (97,230) (67,117 (66,33¢) (40,68¢)

Financing activitie: 4,19¢ 12,93: (52,599 (3,120 26&
Other Data:
Non-cash rental expense, net of non-cash rental

income (411 50¢ 1,76¢ 1,461 52t
Non-cash compensation expense incurred in

connection with stock options and common stock

grants 1,26¢ 91z 1,13¢ 27¢ 64

Year Ended December 31,
2008 2007 2006 2005 2004

Club and Membership Data:
New clubs opene 9 14 10 5 5
Clubs acquiret — 1 1 2 3
Clubs closed, relocated or s¢ 4) 3 3 3 —
Wholly owned clubs operated at end of pel 164 15¢ 147 13¢ 13t
Total clubs operated at end of period 16€ 161 14¢ 141 137
Members at end of period( 510,00( 486,00( 453,00( 409,00( 383,00t
Comparable club revenue increase 2.2% 5.2% 7.%% 6.S% 2.5%
Revenue per weighted average clut $ 314: $ 3,158 $ 3,021 $ 2,81 $ 2,68C
Average revenue per member $ 99C $ 1000 $ 98z $ 968 $ 96C
Annual attrition(9) 40.2% 38.2% 36.1% 38.2% 37.2%

(1) Goodwill impairment testing requires a comparisetween the carrying value and fair value of eagoning
unit. If the carrying value exceeds the fair valgeodwill is considered impaired. The amount ofithpairment
loss is measured as the difference between thgimguvalue and the implied fair value of goodwailhich is
determined based on purchase price alloca

(a) As a result of our annual review as of March 31)£2Qve determined that the goodwill at one of @mote
clubs was not recoverable. The goodwill impairmasgociated with this underperforming club amoumted
$2,002. A deferred tax benefit of $881 was recoiidezbnnection with this impairment. Since thistig
remote from one of our clusters, it does not berfiefin the competitive advantage that our clustetats
have and as a result it is more susceptible to etitign.

(b) The Company performed an interim impairment tesifd3ecember 31, 2008. As a result of the testas
determined that all of the goodwill in our Bostgmo&s Clubs region, amounting to $15,766, and galb«
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of $1,843 at two of our outlier clubs that did beinefit from being part of a regional cluster wapaired. /
deferred tax benefit of $1,755 was recorded in eation with these impairment charg

(2) The $16,113 loss on extinguishment of debt foryér ended December 31, 2006 consists of the folpiwo
transactions

(@) On June 8, 2006, the Company paid $93,001 to re@&8&001 of the outstanding principal of the
Company’s previously outstanding 9s % Senior Notes (“2003 Senior Notes”), together @796 of
early termination fees and $1,204 of accrued istef2eferred financing costs totaling $1,601 wertten
off and fees totaling $222 were incurred in conioectvith this early extinguishmer

(b) On July 7, 2006, the Company paid $62,875 to rede&¥h of the Senior Discount Notes. The aggregate
accreted value of the Senior Discount Notes oméHemption date totaled $56,644 and early ternonati
fees totaled $6,231. Deferred financing costsitadeb1,239 were written off and fees totaling $2&rev
incurred in connection with this early extinguishm

The $12,521 loss on extinguishment of debt recofdethe year ended December 31, 2007 resulted fhem
repayment of the $169,999 remaining outstandingcgral of the 2003 Senior Notes with the proceedsfthe
2007 Senior Credit Facility obtained on FebruaryZJ07. We incurred $8,759 of tender premium artb&#¥
call premium together with $335 of fees and expsmskated to the tender of the Old Senior Notes.dgéerrec
financing costs related to the Company’s previars® secured revolving credit facility enteredbiim 2003
(the “2003 Senior Credit Facility”) and the 200 Notes totaling approximately $3,212 were exgaehin
the first quarter of 2007

(3) In 2004, we paid a common stock distribution toig$68,900, or $3.75 per share (adjusted for thi bhe
common stock split affected in 200

(4) Includes wholly-owned and partly-owned clubs. ldi&idn, during 2004 and 2008 we managed four ulsiter
fitness clubs in which we did not have an equitgiiest. During 2005, 2006 and 2007 we managed five
university fitness clubs in which we did not haveesyuity interest

(5) Represents members at wh-owned and part-owned clubs

(6) Total revenue for a club is included in comparaihld revenue increase beginning on the first dayef
thirteenth full calendar month of the c¢’s operation

(7) Revenue per weighted average club is calculateédtalsrevenue divided by the product of the totainter of
clubs and their weighted average months in operattoa percentage of the peri

(8) Average revenue per member is total revenue fopéhied divided by the average number of membesstuip
the period, where average number of membershipghéoperiod is derived by dividing the sum of th&at
memberships at the end of each month during thegby the total number of months in the peri

(9) Annual attrition is calculated as total member éssfor the year divided by the average monthly nesmabunt
over the year excluding g-sold, shoi-term and seasonal members during each respectwe

Item 7. Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition Results of Operation

You should read the following discussion and anslgsour financial condition and consolidated riswf
operations in conjunction with the “Selected Coidated Financial and Other Data” section of thisraral report
and our consolidated financial statements and tiated notes appearing at the end of this annyabre In
addition to historical information, this discussiand analysis contains forward-looking statemehéd involve
risks, uncertainties and assumptions (SE@RWARD-LOOKING STATEMENTS' discussion). Our actual
results may differ materially from those anticiphia these forwardeoking statements as a result of certain fact
including, but not limited to, those set forth iltein 1A. Risk Factors” of this annual report.

Overview

We are the second largest owner and operatomafsfit clubs in the Northeast and Mid-Atlantic regiohthe
United States. As of December 31, 2008, we owneldoperated 166 clubs that collectively served axiprately
510,000 members. We develop clusters of clubsriestensely populated major metropolitan regiord\aa
service such populations by clustering clubs neahighest concentrations of our target custonagests of both
employment and residence. Our clubs are locatethétimum convenience to our members in urban onrkamn
areas, close to transportation hubs or office @ilreenters. Our target member is between theo&gé and 60 and
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has an annual income of between $50,000 and $1&0/06 believe that this “upper-value” segment isordy the
broadest segment of the market, but also the seigmitnthe greatest growth opportunities.

Our goal is to be the most recognized health cktivark in each of the four major metropolitan regiave
serve. We believe that our strategy of clustering< provides significant benefits to our memberd allows us to
achieve strategic operating advantages. In eaohraiarkets, we have developed clusters by injtiglening or
acquiring clubs located in the more central urbamkets of the region and then branching out froes¢hurban
centers to suburbs and neighboring communitiesit@ling on this clustering of clubs, as of DecamnB1, 2008,
approximately 38% of our members participated ingmassport or regional passport memberships wHictva
unlimited access to all of our clubs in our clusteithin one, or all of, our regions, respectivdby, a higher
monthly membership fee. The remaining 62% of ouminers participate in a gold membership which allows
unlimited access to a designated club and accesdbdther clubs during off-peak hours.

We have executed our clustering strategy succégsfihe New York region through the network dhiss
clubs we operate under our New York Sports Clubsdmname. We are the largest fithess club opeirator
Manhattan with 40 locations (more than twice asyrasour nearest competitor) and operated a tbtel 2 clubs
under the New York Sports Clubs brand name withl2@mile radius of New York City as of December 3Q08.
We operated 25 clubs in the Boston region undeBasgton Sports Clubs brand name, 19 clubs (twolothkvare
partly-owned) in the Washington, D.C. region under our Nifagton Sports Clubs brand name and seven clutie
Philadelphia region under our Philadelphia Spoftd€brand name as of December 31, 2008. In additie
operated three clubs in Switzerland as of Decer@beP008. We employ localized brand names for tubrscto
create an image and atmosphere consistent witlo¢hbcommunity and to foster recognition as a loedwork of
quality fitness clubs rather than a national chain.

We consider that we have two principal sourcegeénue:

« Membership revenut¢ Our largest sources of revenue are dues andtioitifees paid by our members.
These dues and fees comprised 81.8% of our tatahtee for the year ended December 31, 2008. We
recognize revenue from membership dues in the mohén the services are rendered. Approximately%!
of our members pay their monthly dues by Electréninds Transfer, or EFT, while the balance is paid
annually in advance. We recognize revenue fronaiion fees over the expected average life of the
membership

« Ancillary club revenue For the year ended December 31, 2008, we genetat@% of our revenue from
personal training and 4.8% of our revenue from o#imeillary programs and services consisting of
programming for children, group fitness traininglarther member activities, as well as sales of
miscellaneous sports produc

In addition, we receive revenue (approximately 1df%ur total revenue for the year ended December 3
2008) from the rental of space in our facilitieoferators who offer wellness-related offeringghsas physical
therapy and juice bars. In addition, we sell inbchdvertising and sponsorships and generate marggdéees from
certain club facilities that we do not wholly owdve refer to this as Fees and Other revenue.

Revenue (in $'000s) is comprised of the following the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Membership due $400,87: 79.1% $374,63: 79.2% $346,20. 79.%%
Initiation fees 13,72  2.7% 12,31¢ 2.€% 9,56: 2.2%

Membership revenu 41459 81.8% 386,94t 81.6% 355,76 82.1%
Personal training revent 61,75: 12.2% 56,10¢ 11.9% 49,511 11.4%
Other ancillary club revent 24,32¢ 4.&% 24,24 5.1% 22,86: 5.2%
Ancillary club revenue 86,08, 17.(% 80,35: 17.(% 72,374 16.7%
Fees and Other reven 6,031 1.2% 5,61¢€ 1.2% 4,94: 1.2%
Total revenue $506,70¢ 10C% $472,91! 100.(% $433,08( 100.(%
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Our revenues, operating income and net incoméhfoyear ended December 31, 2008 were $506.7 million
$32.8 million and $2.3 million, respectively. O@venues, operating income and net income for the greded
December 31, 2007 were $472.9 million, $57.8 nmillamd $13.6 million, respectively.

Our operating and selling expenses are comprisedtbffixed and variable costs. Fixed costs inclcidé and
supervisory salary and related expenses, occupansty, including most elements of rent, housekegeaim
contracted maintenance expenses, as well as dafioeciVariable costs are primarily related to pdlyassociated
with ancillary club revenue, membership sales camsption, advertising, utilities, certain facilitgpairs and club
supplies.

General and administrative expenses include cektting to our centralized support functions, sash
accounting, insurance, information and communicasigstems, purchasing, member relations, legatandulting
fees and real estate development expenses.

As clubs mature and increase their membership liaed, costs are typically spread over an increasavenue
base and operating margins tend to improve. Coalyerehen our membership base declines at matutes aur
operating margins are negatively impacted. Durid@®membership at our clubs open over 24 monthedsed
approximately 2.5%. This decrease in membershipgreatest in the fourth quarter of 2008. As consume
confidence and spending continues to be underymesthese negative membership trends may confirhese
membership base declines are expected to reduagetating margins in 2009.

Our primary capital expenditures relate to the tmesion or acquisition of new club facilities andgrading
and expanding our existing clubs. The construddioth equipment costs vary based on the costs ofraotisn
labor, as well as the planned service offeringssinel and configuration of the facility. We perforautine
improvements at our clubs and partial replacemgtiteofitness equipment each year for which we letidg
approximately 4.0% to 4.5% of projected annual néxe Expansions of certain facilities are alsogrened from
time to time, when incremental space becomes dlaitan acceptable terms and utilization and denfianthe
facility dictate. In this regard, facility remodetj is also considered where appropriate.

During the last several years, we have increasezhtgees and cash flows provided by operating ais/iy
expanding our club base in New York, Boston, Wagtain, D.C. and Philadelphia. In 2008, operatingpine
decreased $25.0 million from 2007 in large part ttugoodwill and fixed asset impairment chargesreéed in
2008. Our operating income has decreased from $B6ii0n for the year ended December 31, 2006 to
$32.8 million for the year ended December 31, 2@&h flows provided by operating activities insgéfrom
$57.1 million in 2004 to $95.6 million in 2008. Necome decreased to $2.3 million in 2008 from $Aillion in
2006.

2008 2007 2006
Operating incom: $32,817  $57,84: $53,03(
Increase (decrease) over prior pei (43.9% 9.1% 31.%
Net income (loss $ 2,337  $13,64¢ $ 4,641
Increase (decrease) over prior pet (82.9% 193.%  162.1%
Cash flows provided by operating activit $95,62:  $82,74¢ $75,21f
Increase (decrease) over prior pet 15.€% 10.(% 18.%

We have focused on building or acquiring clubsraaa where we believe the market is underservedere
new clubs are intended to replace existing clulibeit lease expiration. Based on our historicglegience, a new
club tends to experience a significant increagewenues during its first three years of operadisiit reaches
maturity. Because there is relatively little inciemal cost associated with such increasing revehees is a greater
proportionate increase in profitability. We belighat the revenues and operating income of our imraalubs will
increase as they mature. In contrast, operatinghecmargins may be negatively impacted in the texar by our
new club openings.

As of December 31, 2008, 164 of the existing finelsibs were wholly owned by us and our consolidiate
financial statements include the operating resfltl such clubs. Two locations in Washington, Dw@re manage
and partly owned by us, with our profit sharingqegrtages approximating 20% (after priority disttibas) and
45%, respectively, and are treated as unconsotlagsdtdiates for which we apply the equity methdd o
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accounting. In addition, we provide managementisesvat four fithess clubs located in colleges amigersities in
which we have no equity interest.

Historical Club Growth

Year Ended
December 31,
2008 2007 2006

Wholly owned clubs operated at beginning of pe 15¢ 147 13¢
New clubs opene 9 14 10
Clubs acquiret — 1 1
Clubs closed(1 @ B B
Wholly-owned clubs operated at end of pel 164 15¢ 147
Partly-owned clubs operated at end of pel 2 2 _2
Total clubs operated at end of perioc 16€ 161 14¢

(1) Includes a club we temporarily closed for a renmvaand expansion in 2005 and reopened in Febi2@06.

(2) Includes wholly-owned and partly-owned clubs. ldiéidn, during 2008 we managed four university égs
clubs in which we did not have an equity interBatring 2006 and 2007, we managed five universttyeis
clubs in which we did not have an equity inter

Comparable Club Revenue

We define comparable club revenue as revenue s¢ ttlabs that were operated by us for over 12 nscauthl
comparable club revenue growth as revenue for 3tie rhonth and thereafter as applicable as compartée same
period of the prior year.

Comparable Club
Revenue Growth

Quarter Full Year

2006

Q1 7.6%

Q2 8.2%

Q3 7.8%

Q4 7.% 7.%
2007

Q1 7.€%

Q2 5.7%

Q3 4.1%

Q4 3.2% 5.2%
2008

Q1 4.5%

Q2 3.2%

Q3 2.2%

Q4 (1.9% 2.2%

Key determinants of comparable club revenue grasthnew memberships, member retention rates, gricin
and ancillary revenue growth.
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Results of Operations
The following table sets forth certain operatingedas a percentage of revenue for the periodsatetic

Year Ended December 31
2008 2007 2006

Revenue: 100.(% 100.(% 100.(%
Operating expense
Payroll and relate 38.z 37.t 37.€
Club operating 34.C 331 33.¢
General and administrati\ 6.7 7.4 7.C
Depreciation and amortizatic 10.4 9.7 9.4
Impairment of fixed asse 0.8 — —
Impairment of goodwil 3.5 — —
Operating incom: 6.4 12.: 12.2
Loss on extinguishment of de — 2.7 3.7
Interest expens 4.7 5.€ 8.2
Interest incom (0.) (0.2 (0.5
Equity in the earnings of investees and rentalime (0.5 (049 (0.9
Income before provision for corporate income te 3 4.€ 1.2
Provision for corporate income tax 1.8 1.7 0.2
Net income 0.5 2.6 1.C

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2008 COMPARED TO
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007

Revenue (in $°000s) was comprised of the followirfgr the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007
Revenue % Revenue Revenue % Revenue % Growth

Membership due $400,87- 79.1% $374,63: 79.2% 7.C%
Initiation fees 13,72 2.7% 12,31¢ 2.6% 11.4%
Membership revenu 414,59 81.6% 386,94t 81.8% 7.1%
Personal training revent 61,75: 12.2% 56,10¢ 11.% 10.1%
Other ancillary club revent 24,32¢ 4.8% 24,24 5.1% 0.2%
Ancillary club revenut 86,08 17.(% 80,35: 17.(% 7.1%
Fees and other reven 6,031 1.2% 5,61¢ 1.2% 7.4%
Total revenus $506,70! 100.(% $472,91! 100.(% 7.1%

Revenue increased $33.8 million, or 7.1%, to $5@llion for the year ended December 31, 2008 from
$472.9 million for the year ended December 31, 20Wifs increase in revenue was driven primarilygbywth in
membership dues and personal training revenuethegrear ended December 31, 2008, revenues indrease
$3.6 million, or 0.8%, at our clubs opened or aceghiprior to December 31, 2006 and increased #8ilibn at the
24 clubs opened or acquired subsequent to Decedib@006. These increases in revenue were offsat by
$6.1 million revenue decrease related to the seldrs that were closed subsequent to December0BB, 2

Comparable club revenue increased 2.2% for thegmeded December 31, 2008. Of this 2.2% increadép 1.
was due to an increase in membership, 0.6% wasodare increase in price and 0.5% was due to aeaserin
ancillary club revenue and fees and other reveldoeiever, in part as a result of the current ecorea@nvironment,
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we experienced higher member attrition and lowerage revenue per member in 2008 than in 2007.rAsuat, fol
the year ended December 31, 2008, our comparaliberelenue growth was 2.2%, a decrease compafed%ofor
the year ended December 31, 2007. We experiencethparable club revenue decrease of 1.4% in thehfou
quarter of 2008, and we expect comparable clubmex¢o continue to decrease throughout 2009.

Operating expenses (in $'000s) were comprised ofaHollowing for the periods indicated:

Year Ended
December 31,
2008 2007 % Variance
Payroll and relate $193,58( $177,35 9.1%
Club operating 172,40¢  156,66( 10.1%
General and administrati 33,95: 35,09: (3.2%
Depreciation and amortizatic 52,47¢ 45,96¢ 14.2%
Impairment of fixed asse 3,861 — N/A
Impairment of goodwil 17,60¢ — N/A
Operating expenst $473,89. $415,07: 14.2%

Operating expenses increased in 2008 due to tlevioh factors:

Payroll and related. The increase in 2008 was attributable to a 7168teise in the total months of club
operation from 1,799 to 1,935 and discounting afraember initiation fees. We discounted our new fpem
initiation fees in 2008 in an effort to drive memdt@p sales. Our deferred payroll costs relateteie membership
contracts are limited to the amount of these itiittafees, thus causing an increase in currentgbagxpense of
approximately $6.0 million when compared to thepyiear. In addition, payroll costs directly rethte our
personal training, group fitness training and paogming for children increased $5.1 million, or 24,lprincipally
due to the increase in revenue related to thegg as.

Club operating. The increase in 2008 was primarily due to thefaihg:

* Rent and occupancy expenses increased $11.5 millid@08. Rent and occupancy costs increased
$9.9 million at clubs that opened in 2008 and 200that are currently under construction. Renteased
$2.3 million at our clubs opened prior to 2007. Ramd occupancy expenses decreased $939,000 etibar
that were closed during 2007 and 2C

« Ultilities, consisting of electric, gas, and oil exges, increased $2.4 million in 2008 primarily tluéve
clubs added in 2008, net of closures and 12 clddsdin the fourth quarter of 2007, net of closu

+ Cleaning, laundry and towel expenses increasedr#illi®n in 2008 due to new club openings, an irseir
the number of clubs that used an outsourced lauseinice, as well as an overall increase in merolodér
usage of 13.4%

 Advertising and marketing expenses decreased $#lidmio $7.9 million in 2008 from $10.3 milliomi
2007 primarily due to a reduction in general awassradvertising in 200

Depreciation and amortization.The increase in 2008 was principally due to coststed to expanded clubs
and nine new clubs opened in the year ended Dege3ith@008. Offsetting these increases are inserpniceeds
of approximately $600,000 received for fixed astehages at two of our clubs.

Impairment of fixed assetsDuring the year ended December 31, 2008, we decbfixed asset impairment
charges of $3.9 million. There were charges of $2illion on fixed assets at six of our underperforgclubs and
$1.2 million related to the planned closures of tludbs prior to the lease expiration dates. Thezeevno such
charges in the year ended December 31, 2007.

Impairment of goodwill: During the year ended December 31, 2008, we decba goodwill impairment
charge of $17.6 million. The Company performedraarim impairment test as of December 31, 2008 and
concluded that goodwill of $15.8 million of goodirdlssociated with the Boston Sports Clubs repottimitywas
impaired and $1.8 million of goodwill at two of thieree outlier clubs that did not benefit from leepart of regione
clusters was impaired. The Company did not haveoawill impairment charge in the New York Sportsilid
reporting unit given the profitability of this unit
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Loss on Extinguishment of Debr

For the year ended December 31, 2007, loss ongeshment of debt was $12.5 million. The proceedsf
the 2007 Senior Credit Facility obtained on Feby®f, 2007 were used to repay $170.0 million, repnéing the
remaining outstanding principal of the 2003 Sehotes. We incurred $8.8 million of tender premiund 215,00
of call premium together with $335,000 of fees argdenses related to the tender of the 2003 SemitasNNet
deferred financing costs related to the 2003 Sewaies and the related facility totaling approxietat$3.2 million
were expensed in the first quarter of 2007. Thexs=wo such costs in the year ended December 88, 20

Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased $2.5 million, or 9.6%¢he year ended December 31, 2008 compared tyetre
ended December 31, 2007. This decrease is a tdghlt February 27, 2007 refinancing of the 2008i@eNotes
with our $185.0 million term loan facility (the “fim Loan Facility”), at a variable rate. For the yeaded
December, 2007, the average variable interestwraseapproximately 7.7%, while the average variaitkrest rate
for the year ended December 31, 2008 decreasqiptoxamately 4.8%.

Interest Income

Interest income decreased $752,000, or 70.2%hé&y¢ar ended December 31, 2008 compared to the yea
ended December 31, 2007 due to a decrease indhtates, as well as a decrease in the monthlyagearash
balance.

Provision for Corporate Income Taxes

We recorded an income tax provision of $9.2 millfionthe year ended December 31, 2008 compared to
$8.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2@alulated using the Company’s effective tax rbte.the year
ended December 31, 2008 we recognized a $4.7 mitharge for the non-deductible goodwill impairmehtlubs
that were acquired in stock-based transactionsiirBoston Sports Clubs region. Also in 2008, wegrized tax
benefits of $399,000 principally related to adjusiits to our estimated 2007 tax positions, includidyistments
that were made to our Net Operating Loss Carryfad&and we recognized a $150,000 tax benefit graiigi
related to Federal employment credits and reliefdderal surcharges on our communication expemsasgously
incurred. For the year ended December 31, 200%a&gnized a $251,000 tax benefit principally reldte Federal
employment credits and relief for federal surchargie our communication expenses previously incurésb in
2007, we recognized state tax benefits of $5380&ipally related to adjustments to our estima®2666 tax
positions, including adjustments that were madautoNet Operating Loss Carryforwards.

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2007 COMPARED TO
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2006

Revenue (in $°000s) was comprised of the followirfgr the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 31,

2007 2006
Revenue % Revenue Revenue % Revenue % Growth

Membership due $374,63: 79.2% $346,20: 79.% 8.2%
Initiation fees 12,31¢ 2.6% 9,56: 2.2% 28.8%
Membership revenu 386,94t 81.6% 355,76 82.1% 8.8%
Personal training revent 56,10¢ 11.% 49,51 11.4% 13.2%
Other ancillary club revent 24,24, 5.1% 22,86: 5.2% 6.1%
Ancillary club revenut 80,35: 17.(% 72,37¢ 16.7% 11.(%
Fees and other reven 5,61¢ 1.2% 4,94 1.2% 13.€%
Total revenue $472,91! 100.% $433,08( 100.(% 9.2%
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Revenues.Revenues increased $39.8 million, or 9.2%, ta2¥twillion for the year ended December 31, 2
from $433.1 million for the year ended DecemberZI6. This increase in revenue was driven primdnyl growth
in membership revenue and ancillary club revenoetlie year ended December 31, 2007, revenuesaseunle
$16.1 million, or 3.9%, at our clubs opened or a&gliprior to December 31, 2005. For the year ended
December 31, 2007, revenue increased $25.7 mdliaghe 26 clubs opened or acquired subsequentderbteer 31,
2005. These increases in revenue were offset y3ardillion revenue decrease related to the sikcthat were
closed and/or relocated subsequent to January0s, 20

Comparable club revenue increased 5.2% for thegmeded December 31, 2007. Of this 5.2% increagép 2.
was due to an increase in membership, 1.0% wasodare increase in price and 1.5% was due to aeaserin
ancillary club revenue and fees and other revenue.

Operating expenses (in $°000s) were comprised ofdhollowing for the periods indicated:

Year Ended December 3! 2007 2006 % Variance
Payroll and relate $177,35° $162,70! 9.C%
Club operating 156,66( 146,24: 7.1%
General and administrati 35,09: 30,24¢ 16.(%
Depreciation and amortizatic 45,96¢ 40,85( 12.5%
Operating expenst $415,07¢ $380,05( 9.2%

Operating expenses increased $35.0 million, or 9t8%415.1 million for the year ended DecemberZD7,
from $380.1 million for the year ended DecemberZI)6. The increase was due to the following factor

Payroll and related. Payroll and related expenses increased $14.ibmibr 9.0%, to $177.4 million for the
year ended December 31, 2007, from $162.7 millartHe year ended December 31, 2006. This incieas
attributable to a 4.6% increase in the total mowoftdub operation from 1,720 to 1,799 as welltssfollowing:

» Payroll costs directly related to our personahirad, group fitness training and programming foitdrien
increased $4.3 million or 11.9%, due to an incréeaskemand for these progran

» Payroll costs related to severance agreementsatetés1.0 million. For the year ended Decembe3Q7,
we incurred $639,000 of charges related to severageeements with our former CEO and certain enggle
while for the year ended December 31, 2006, weriedu$1.6 million of charges relating to severance
agreements with our former Chairman and certainleyeps.

Club operating. Club operating expenses increased $10.4 milbo7,1%, to $156.7 million for the year eni
December 31, 2007, from $146.3 million for the yeaded December 31, 2006. This increase was pailiip
attributable to the following:

* Rent and occupancy expenses increased $5.8 mitient and occupancy costs at clubs that opened afte
January 1, 2006, or that are currently under caostm, increased $5.5 million. The remaining $800,
increase in rent and occupancy expenses relatestat our clubs that were open prior to Januag006.

« As part of a customer service initiative, we hatsourced towel laundry service in 96 clubs as of
December 31, 2007 as compared to 51 clubs as afrbleer 31, 2006. As our clubs have become more
intensely clustered in our markets and member arsage becomes more prevalent, we have found it
increasingly necessary to offer towel laundry ssggiat more of our clubs. Accordingly, we have erpeec
a $2.3 million increase in laundry expenses foryisar ended December 31, 2007 when compared feetive
ended December 31, 20(

General and administrative General and administrative expenses increasé@din$dlion, or 16.0%, to
$35.1 million for the year ended December 31, 206m $30.3 million during the same period in thepyear.

 Corporate rent increased $864,000, primarily dudeéaelocation of our corporate headquartersen th
beginning of June 2007. The costs for the remainfire lease obligation of the vacated locatiomene
recorded in the three months ended June 30, :
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« Liability and related insurance expense increadef fillion related to an increase in premiums eisged
with the Company’s growth as well as an increasgeimeral liability reserves. General liability regs are
based on the actuarial analysis of claims incul

» Professional fees in connection with Sarbanes-Oatel/other first-time public company expenses nsee
approximately $1.6 million

« The remaining increase of general and adminiseaikpense was due to increased costs to support the
growth in our business in 20C

Offsetting these increases was a decrease of $lli@melated to the examination of strategic ficing
alternatives. For the year ended December 31, 200@ncurred $1.7 million of such costs, while danicosts for
the year ended December 31, 2007 were $545,000.

Depreciation and amortization.Depreciation and amortization increased $5.lionij/lor 12.5%, to
$46.0 million for the year ended December 31, 206 $40.9 million for the year ended DecemberZ1)6,
principally due to costs related to new and expdrdiebs.

Loss on Extinguishment of Debt

For the year ended December 31, 2007, loss ongexsihment of debt was $12.5 million compared to
$16.1 million for the year ended December 31, 200& proceeds from the 2007 Senior Credit Fadiliitained on
February 27, 2007 were used to repay $170.0 mjlliepresenting the remaining outstanding prinoifahe 2003
Senior Notes. We incurred $8.8 million of tendegrpium and $215,000 of call premium together witB%800 of
fees and expenses related to the tender of the 200®r Notes. Net deferred financing costs reltaidtie 2003
Senior Credit Facility and the 2003 Senior Notealteg approximately $3.2 million were expensedha first
quarter of 2007.

During the second quarter of 2006, we paid $93I0amito redeem $85.0 million of the outstandingnpipal
of the 2003 Senior Notes, together with $6.8 millaf early termination fees and $1.2 million of amd interest.
Deferred financing costs totaling $1.6 million wevstten off and fees totaling $222,000 were inedrin
connection with this early extinguishment of ddélaring the third quarter of 2006, we paid $62.9limmil to redeem
35% of the Senior Discount Notes. The aggregatectant value of the Senior Discount Notes on themgation
date totaled $56.6 million and early terminatioesf¢otaled $6.2 million. Deferred financing costsling
$1.2 million were written off and fees totaling $2d0 were incurred in connection with this earlyirguishment.

Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased $9.1 million to $26lbmior the year ended December 31, 2007 from
$35.5 million for the year ended December 31, 20Q0s decrease was a result of the repayment ofi@lirin
connection with the IPO completed on June 7, 20@bthe refinancing of a portion of our debt atwdo interest
rate in February 2007. On June 8, 2006, we rede&8®&® million of the 2003 Senior Notes and on JYl2006 we
redeemed $56.6 million of the Senior Discount Notes

Interest Income

Interest income decreased $1.0 million to $1.liamlfor the year ended December 31, 2007 from &#llion
for the year ended December 31, 2006 due to a aleeia the average cash balance for the year éhelsginber 3!
2007 when compared to the year ended Decembe088, 2

Provision for Corporate Income Taxes

We have recorded an income tax provision of $8llianifor the year ended December 31, 2007 comptred
$715,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006theoyear ended December 31, 2007 we recognize8B &0
tax benefit principally related to Federal employneredits and relief for federal surcharges onammmunication
expenses previously incurred. Also in 2007, we gaced state tax benefits of $538,000 principadhated to
adjustments to our estimated 2006 tax positiortduding adjustments that were made to our Net Qipgr&oss
Carryforwards. For the year ended December 31, 280 come tax charge totaling $751,000 was resgbtd
reflect the reduction in state tax assets that @iewed were not more likely than not to be realizeassociation
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with the interest related to the pay-down of dedsulting from our use of the proceeds from the,lRBich was
closed on June 7, 2006.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Historically, we have satisfied our liquidity negtisough cash generated from operations and various
borrowing arrangements. Principal liquidity needsédincluded the acquisition and development of alelvs, debt
service requirements and other capital expenditueesssary to upgrade, expand and renovate exdtibg.

Operating Activities. Net cash provided by operating activities for ylear ended December 31, 2008 was
$95.6 million compared to $82.7 million for the yesded December 31, 2007, for an increase of 15Té#al cash
paid for interest decreased $7.1 million to $10illion. Cash paid for income taxes decreased $4liiomto
$15.9 million for the year ended December 31, 2008.

Net cash provided by operating activities for tearyended December 31, 2007 was $82.7 million cosapa
$75.1 million for the year ended December 31, 2@d6ncrease of 10.2%. Net cash flows from openattad
increased due to the increase in operating incomle@ing the effects of accreted interest expedspreciation and
amortization. For the year ended December 31, 20@6Company paid interest of $13.0 million on
notes related to the Senior Discount Notes. Taahaid for interest decreased $18.2 million f&86.3 million to
$17.1 million. Net changes in operating assetsliabdities, including smaller increases in accaurgceivable and
prepaid and other current assets further contribttiéhe overall increase in cash. The decreaseryorate income
taxes payable offset the increase in cash flows fperations. Cash paid for income taxes incre@i&éd million
to $20.7 million for the year ended December 30720

Investing Activities. Investing activities consist primarily of consttion of new clubs and the purchase of new
fitness equipment. In addition, we make capitalezitures to expand and remodel our existing clhles.cash use
in investing activities was $95.1 million and $9hilion for the years ended December 31, 200820Q¥,
respectively. During the year ended December 308 2@e spent $23.6 million on upgrading existingpsl, $9.1 to
enhance our management information systems, $3lidmfor the construction of a new regional laupdcility in
our NYSC market and the remaining $57.8 milliontfee building of new clubs or the expansion of gxgsclubs.
We also received $1.1 million in insurance procesging 2008.

For the year ending December 31, 2009, we estimateill invest a total of $50.0 million to $53.0 liron in
capital expenditures. This amount includes $23l0anito continue to upgrade existing clubs, $8 #liam to
enhance our management information systems anch§ilién for the construction of corporate officasd the
completion of our new regional laundry facilityar NYSC market. The remainder of our 2009 caikgenditure
will be committed to building, acquiring or expandiclubs. These expenditures will be funded by ¢ash
provided by operations, available cash on hand tanithe extent needed, borrowings from the $75I0ami
revolving credit facility (the “Revolving Loan Fdity”).

Net cash used in investing activities was $97.2ianiland $67.1 million for the years ended Decen83er200’
and 2006, respectively. Capital expenditures w83million and $66.3 million for the years end2ecember 31,
2007 and 2006, respectively. The increase in dagxf@enditures was primarily due to the increasth@number of
clubs under construction in 2007 compared to 20@8ing the year ended December 31, 2007, we spent
$18.5 million on upgrading existing clubs, $4.5lait for the relocation of our Manhattan corporatfce,
$3.8 million to enhance our management informasigstems, and the remaining $66.5 million for thiéding of
new clubs or the expansion of existing clubs.

Financing Activities. Net cash provided by financing activities was2%illion for the year ended
December 31, 2008 compared to $12.9 million forytear ended December 31, 2007, a decrease of $ichnfor
the year ended December 31, 2008, we paid $4.®miktlated to repurchases of 1.8 million sharesusfcommon
stock. There were no common stock repurchaseipehr ended December 31, 2007. For the year ended
December 31, 2008, we increased the outstandimgwings under our Revolving Credit Facility by $@nillion,
and made $1.9 million of principal payments on outstanding Term Loans.

On February 1, 2009, our Senior Discount Notes vélfully accreted with an outstanding balance of
$138.5 million. Semi-annual cash interest paymeh/.6 million will be required commencing August2009.
From January 1, 2009 through February 26, 2009 aie $5.4 million for an additional 2.0 million giea of
common stock.
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The decrease can also be attributed to the refimgmoé our debt on February 27, 2007. The net prdseafter
issuance costs from the 2007 Senior Credit Fa@fit§182.4 million were used to repay the remairpnigcipal of
$170.0 million of the 2003 Senior Notes. In additio the year ended December 31, 2007, we pardrmipm and
fees in connection with the extinguishment of d&t#9.3 million. These transactions accounted f§8#® million
increase in cash related to financing activitiestfie year ended December 31, 2007. There wa9andiion
decrease in cash received upon the exercise & sfiimns in the year ended December 31, 2008 wberpared t
the year ended December 31, 2007.

Net cash provided by financing activities was $1RiBion for the year ended December 31, 2007 caexgbéo
cash used in financing activities of $52.6 millfon the year ended December 31, 2006 for an inergafinancing
cash of $65.5 million.

In June 2006, we filed a registration statemeni Wit SEC in connection with our Initial Public &fhg
(“IPQO”). Our sale of 7,650,000 shares of CommorcEt@sulted in net proceeds of $91.8 million. Thecgeds
from the IPO were used for the redemption of 35%hefaggregate principal amount of our outstan&iegior
Discount Notes, and the remainder of the proceagitiier with cash on hand was used to consumntatelar
offer for $85.0 million of the 2003 Senior Notedh€eBe transactions, including premium and fees mmection with
the extinguishment of debt of $13.3 million, tothpproximately $50.2 million.

This increase can also be attributed to the refimanof our debt on February 27, 2007. The net¢eds after
issuance costs from the 2007 Senior Credit Fa@fit§182.4 million were used to repay the remairpnigcipal of
$170.0 million of the outstanding principal of th@03 Senior Notes. In addition, we paid a premiumeh f@es in
connection with the extinguishment of debt of $®iion. These transactions accounted for a $3llianiincrease
in cash related to financing activities for the yeaded December 31, 2007. In addition, for the geaed
December 31, 2007, there was a $2.1 million in@éasash received upon the exercise of stock pptichen
compared to the year ended December 31, 2006 &8danillion increase for borrowings on the Revotyioan
Facility in December 2007.

February 4, 2004 Offering of Senior Discount Notes

On February 4, 2004, TSI Holdings completed anroféeof the Senior Discount Notes that will matime
February 2014. These Senior Discount Notes ardaghyidaded. TSI Holdings received a total of $®#illion in
connection with this issuance. Fees and expenk#eddo this transaction totaled approximatelyd$4illion. No
cash interest is required to be paid prior to At@@9. The accreted value of each discount ndtéenerease from
the date of issuance until February 1, 2009 ateacfil1.0% per annum compounded semi-annuallys&uient to
February 1, 2009 cash interest on the Senior Distddotes will accrue and be payable semi-annualriears
February 1 and August 1 of each year, commencirguéiul, 2009. The discount notes are structuralhpsdinatec
and effectively rank junior to all indebtednessT&, LLC. The debt of TSI Holdings is not guaramtdsy TSI, LLC
and TSI Holdings relies on the cash flows of TSICI, subject to restrictions contained in the indeatgyoverning
the Senior Discount Notes, to service its debt.

On July 7, 2006, the Company paid $62.9 milliongdeem 35% of the Senior Discount Notes. The agdeeg
accreted value of the Senior Discount Notes omgtiemption date totaled $56.6 million and earlynieation fees
totaled $6.2 million. Deferred financing costs tivtg $1.2 million were written off and fees totadi$24,000 were
incurred in connection with this early extinguishmheOn February 1, 2009, the accreted value equb&egdrincipal
maturity value of $138.5 million.

The indenture governing our Senior Discount Notegains, among other things, covenants that mdsices
our ability to finance future operations or capitakds or to engage in other business activities.ifdenture
governing our Senior Discount Notes restricts, agnather things, our ability and the ability of aestricted
subsidiaries to: incur additional indebtedness; gigidends or make distributions; purchase or redstock; make
investments and extend credit; engage in trangactigth affiliates; engage in sale-leaseback tretitmas;
consummate certain asset sales; effect consolidationerger or sell, transfer, lease or otherwispase of all or
substantially all of our assets; and create lienewr assets.

The covenant contained in the indenture limiting ithcurrence of additional indebtedness allowsdbmpany
to incur such indebtedness provided that the Cosnpélhcontinue to be in compliance with a “fixetharge
coverage ratio” of greater than 2.00 to 1.00. Tienture does, however, allow the Company and its
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subsidiaries to incur certain “permitted indebtesiavithout regard to the fixed charge coveragerdthe fixed
charge coverage ratio is defined as the ratio nfclidated earnings before interest, taxes, antedigtion and
amortization to consolidated interest expense vétttain adjustments to these items as specifiditeiindenture.
Reference should be made to the indenture forekaildd definitions of the defined terms used forposes of the
fixed charge coverage ratio (see Exhibit 4.1 te BRéport). At December 31, 2008, our fixed chame=rage ratio,
as calculated for purposes of the indenture, wais . 1.00.

2003 Senior Credit Facility

On April 16, 2003 the Company completed a refinagaf its debt. This refinancing included an offieriof
$255.0 million of the 2003 Senior Notes that woliddve matured April 15, 2011 and the entering iritthe 2003
Senior Credit Facility that would have expired oprih15, 2008. The transaction fees of approxima$.6 million
have been accounted for as deferred financing.cbees2003 Senior Notes accrued interest at 9% p&r annum
and interest was payable semiannually on Aprilddb @ctober 15. Effective July 7, 2006, the 2003i&@e@redit
Facility was amended to increase permitted borrga/finom $50.0 million to $75.0 million. Also, inlJuthe
Company paid commitment fees totaling $125,00Qedl#o this amendment. Loans under the 2003 S&mexit
Facility would have at the Company’s option, bareiest at either the administrative agent’s bateplus 3.0% or
the Eurodollar rate plus 4.0%, as defined in thated credit agreement. TSI was required to paynangitment fee
of 0.75% per annum on the daily unutilized amount.

On May 18, 2006 the Senior Credit Facility was adeehto consent to: (1) the use by TSI Holdingefriet
cash proceeds received by TSI Holdings from antiiP@deem the Senior Discount Notes in an aggregatant
not to exceed 35% of the original principal amaainiaturity of such notes, and with the balancsugh net cash
proceeds not so used to be contributed as a corematy contribution to TSI; (2) the use by TSI bétcash
proceeds received pursuant to clause (1) aboveastdon hand to tender for a portion of the 2008d8&otes and
(3) the amendments of, and the waivers with resppedertain provisions of the Indenture goverrtimg 2003 Seni
Notes.

On June 8, 2006 the Company paid $93.0 millioretteem $85.0 million of the outstanding principatied
2003 Senior Notes, together with $6.8 million oflgéermination fees and $1.2 million of accruetknest. Deferre
financing costs totaling $1.6 million were writteff and fees totaling $222,000 were incurred inreation with
this early extinguishment.

2007 Senior Credit Facility

On February 27, 2007, TSI, LLC entered into the@@@énillion 2007 Senior Credit Facility. The 200&rfsor
Credit Facility consists of a Term Loan Facilitget$75.0 million Revolving Loan Facility and anri@mental term
loan commitment facility in the maximum amount d0$.0 million, under which borrowing is subject to
compliance with certain conditions precedent by, TEIC and agreement upon certain terms and comditibereof
between the participating lenders and TSI, LLC. Riegolving Loan Facility replaced the previouslystixg
revolving credit facility of $75.0 million that was mature on April 15, 2008.

A portion of the proceeds were used to purchasé.$1@illion aggregate principal amount of the 2@ior
Notes outstanding on February 27, 2007 and thenbalaf the proceeds were irrevocably depositeah iesgron
account to purchase the remaining $4.5 millionetbgr with a call premium of $200,000, on April 2807, the
redemption date. Accrued interest on the 2003 $é&intes totaling $6.0 million was also paid at aigs The
Company incurred $8.8 million of tender premium apgroximately $300,000 fees and expenses relatdubt
tender of the 2003 Senior Notes.

Deferred financing costs related to the 2003 Sedaies totaling approximately $3.2 million were erped in
the first quarter of 2007.

As of December 31, 2008, TSI, LLC had $181.8 millautstanding under the Term Loan Facility. Bormogs
under the Term Loan Facility will, at TSI, LLC’s tign, bear interest at either the administrativerag base rate
plus 0.75% or its Eurodollar rate plus 1.75%, easlefined in the related 2007 Credit Agreemeng. ifiterest rate
on these borrowings was 3.7% as of December 38.20% Term Loan Facility matures on the earlier of
(a) February 27, 2014 or (b) August 1, 2013 if $emior Discount Notes are still outstanding. TSICLis required
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to repay 0.25% of principal, or $462,500, per qerabeginning June 30, 2007. Total principal paymeiit
$3.2 million have been paid as of December 31, 2008

The Revolving Loan Facility expires on February 2012 and borrowings under the facility currendly TSI,
LLC’s option, bear interest at either the admimistre agens base rate plus 1.25% or its Eurodollar rate pIa§%.
each as defined in the 2007 Credit Agreement. MST's applicable base rate and Eurodollar rate timgrgnd
commitment commission percentage vary with our obdated secured leverage ratio, as defined inaleted
credit agreement. TSI, LLC is required to pay a ecomment fee of 0.50% per annum on the daily urrédi amount

TSI, LLC’s applicable base rate and Eurodollar ragegins and commitment commission percentage wity
the Company’s consolidated secured leverage rHtie following table summarizes the interest rategims and
commitment commission percentages applicable eetheparate secured ratio levels as follows:

Revolving Loans Applicable
Base Commitment
Rate Eurodollar Commission
Level Secured Leverage Ratio Margin Margin Percentage
3 Greater than 1.50 to 1.( 1.25% 2.25% 0.5(%
2 Greater than 1.00 to 1.00 but equal to or less 1thad to 1.0( 1.0(% 2.0(% 0.5(%
1 Equal to or less than 1.00 to 1. 0.75% 1.75% 0.37%%

The Company has been within the Level 3 range gntering into the Revolving Loan Facility in 208rid
expects to be in this range throughout 2009.

The 2007 Credit Agreement contains a covenantréuatires us to comply with a “total leverage ratd’hot
greater than 4:25 to 1:00 during any period in Wwhiorrowings or letters of credit are outstandinger the
Revolving Loan Facility. The total leverage ratiodiefined as the ratio of consolidated indebted(essuding the
Senior Discount Notes and certain contingent olitiga) to consolidated earnings before intereggdaand
depreciation and amortization (with adjustmentstifansaction expenses relating to the repaymettiso2003
Senior Credit Facility and certain other debt, mash deferred compensation expense relating tanssuor
repurchase of stock options and other equity ister@nd deferred rent expense in addition to iceother items).
Reference should be made to the 2007 Credit Agreefoethe detailed definitions of the defined terosed for
purposes of the total leverage ratio (see Exhibit 1o this Report). At December 31, 2008, ourl tieteerage ratio,
as calculated for purposes of the 2007 Credit Agesd, was 2.35 to 1.00. In the year ended DeceBhe2008, we
recorded a goodwill impairment charge of $17.6ionllprimary related to our Boston Sports ClubsargiAs of
December 31, 2008, we had $32.6 million of goodwmithaining on our consolidated balance sheet. fvere to
experience material additional goodwill impairmeharges it would increase our total leverage raio depending
upon the amount of goodwill impairment charges réed, such an impairment could result in a faiborenaintain
the required minimum total leverage ratio of 4.23.100 and would result in a breach of our covenader the
2007 Credit Agreement.

There were $19.0 million in borrowings outstandimgler the Revolving Loan Facility at December 310&,
at an interest rate of 4.5% and outstanding lettecsedit issued totaled $13.2 million. The urigétl portion of the
Revolving Loan Facility as of December 31, 2008 %42.8 million.

In addition, our operations are conducted througihsabsidiaries and our ability to make paymentsun
outstanding Senior Discount Notes is dependenherearnings and distribution of funds from our gtibsies;
however, our subsidiaries are not obligated to nfakds available to us for payment on the outstaspn&ienior
Discount Notes. The terms of the indenture goveroinr Senior Discount Notes and the 2007 SeniodiCFacility
significantly restrict the payment of dividendsum: Our subsidiaries are permitted under the tefrttze 2007
Senior Credit Facility and the indenture governing Senior Discount Notes to incur additional inéelmess that
may severely restrict or prohibit the payment efidiinds by such subsidiaries to us. Our substadetiatage may
impair our financial condition and we may incurrsfgcant additional debt (see “ltem 1A. Risk Fastr

The 2007 Credit Agreement contains covenants imegyéimong others, limitations on the Compangnd eac
of its subsidiaries’ ability to: create, incur, as® or be liable for indebtedness (other than cetypes of permitted
indebtedness); dispose of assets outside the oydinarse (subject to certain exceptions); acquirerge or
consolidate with or into another person or entithér than certain types of permitted acquisitipns)
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create, incur or allow any lien on any of its pnapdexcept for certain permitted liens); make istveents (other
than certain types of investments); or pay divideadmake distributions (each subject to certanitéitions). In
addition, the 2007 Credit Agreement provides fataia events of default such as nonpayment of paiand
interest when due thereunder, breaches of repadBarg and warranties, noncompliance with covenauts of
insolvency, default on indebtedness held by thadips and the occurrence of a change of control.

As of December 31, 2008, we were in compliance withdebt covenants in the 2007 Credit Agreemedt an
given our operating plans and expected performénc2009, we expect we will continue to be in corapte durin
2009. These covenants may limit TSI, LLC’s abitityincur additional debt. As of December 31, 2Q@&mitted
borrowing capacity of $75.0 million was not rediid by the covenants.

As of December 31, 2008 we had $137.2 million afi8eDiscount Notes outstanding.
As of December 31, 2008, we had $10.4 million afrcand cash equivalents.

Consolidated Debt

As of December 31, 2008, our total consolidated dets $338.0 million. This substantial amount dftdeould
have significant consequences, including:

« Making it more difficult to satisfy our obligation
* Increasing our vulnerability to general adverseneooic and industry condition

« Limiting our ability to obtain additional financing fund future working capital, capital expendésy
acquisitions of new clubs and other general cotepaquirements

« Requiring cash flow from operations for the paymafinterest and/or principal on our credit fagilénd
Senior Discount Notes and reducing our ability $e our cash flow to fund working capital, capital
expenditures, acquisitions of new clubs and germnadorate requirements; a

« Limiting our flexibility in planning for, or reaatig to, changes in our business and the industshinh we
operate

These limitations and consequences may placeais@npetitive disadvantage to less-leveraged catopet

We believe that we have, or will be able to, obtaigenerate sufficient funds to finance our curogrerating
and growth plans through the end of 2009. Any ni@tacceleration or expansion of our plans throngiwly
constructed clubs or acquisitions (to the extenhsacquisitions include cash payments) may requre® pursue
additional sources of financing prior to the en@009. There can be no assurance that such firagihbe
available, or that it will be available on acceptaierms.

Notes payable were incurred upon the acquisitiovaoibus clubs and are subject to possible postiaitipn
reductions arising out of operations of the acquakibs. As of December 31, 2008, all notes wellg faid.
Contractual Obligations and Commitments

The aggregate long-term debt and operating led#gatibns as of December 31, 2008 were as follows:

Payments Due by Period

Less than After
Contractual Obligations Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years 5 Years
(In thousands)
Long-term debt(1 $ 41541( $ 28,46 $ 34,15¢ $206,67: $146,11!
Operating lease obligations( 909,08: 82,06: 164,80: 151,15: 511,06
Total contractual cash obligatio $1,324,49. $110,53( $198,96( $357,82: $657,17¢

(1) The lonc¢-term debt contractual cash obligations includegipial and interest payment requireme

(2) Operating lease obligations include base rent dbdytain leases provide for additional rent bagsedeal estate
taxes, common area maintenance and defined ambasesl on the operating results of the les
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The following long-term liabilities included on tleensolidated balance sheet are excluded fronathle t
above: income taxes (including uncertain tax posg), insurance accruals and other accruals. Thep@oy is
unable to estimate the timing of payments for thesas.

The current volatility in the capital and creditnkets has reached extraordinary levels and hagisaymtly
adversely impacted global economic conditions, Itieguin additional significant recessionary pregsuand further
declines in consumer confidence and economic groWthse conditions could lead to reduced consuperding
in the foreseeable future and cause member caticefaand/or a decrease in new memberships. This co
adversely affect our industry, financial positibnsiness and results of operations.

These conditions have also resulted in a substaigtidening of the credit markets, including lengliby
financial institutions, which is the source of dtddr our borrowing and liquidity. It is difficulto predict how long
the current economic and capital and credit masketitions will continue, however, if current leself economic
and capital and credit market volatility continueamrsen, there can be no assurance that we wikbxmerience an
adverse impact, which may be material on our bgsiaaéd therefore our results of operations. Basadformation
available to us, we do not expect that any of thenfcial institutions that are a party to our 2@&hior Credit
Facility would be unable to fulfill their obligatis thereunder as of the filing date of this AnriReport on
Form 10-K.

In recent years, we have typically operated wittoaking capital deficit. We had a working capitafitit of
$67.2 million at December 31, 2008, as comparel $it3.5 million at December 31, 2007. Major compusef
our working capital deficit on the current liabjliside are deferred revenues, accrued expensésdiimg, among
others, accrued construction in progress and earnprpayroll and occupancy costs) and the currertiiqn of long-
term debt. These current liabilities more thanetftae main current assets, which consist of cadicash
equivalents, accounts receivable, and prepaid esgsesind other current assets. Payments underhengutrent
liability for deferred revenue are generally noldh&s cash and cash equivalents, but rather acefaséhe
Company’s business needs, including financing amdsting commitments, which use contributes toabeking
capital deficit. The deferred revenue liabilityatels to dues and services paid-in-full in advamekimitiation fees
paid at the time of enrollment and totaled $40.Bioni at December 31, 2008. Initiation fees recdiaee deferred
and amortized over a 30-morghkriod, which represents the approximate club meshiye life of a member. Prepe
dues are generally realized over a period of ug/edve months, while fees for prepaid services radiyrare
realized over a period of one to six months. Iriqusr when we increase the number of clubs opercansequently
increase the level of payments received in advameegnticipate that we will continue to have deddrrevenue
balances at levels similar to or greater than tloseently maintained. By contrast, any decreasiemand for our
services or reductions in initiation fees colleckemlild have the effect of reducing deferred revdmalances, which
would likely require us to rely more heavily on etlsources of funding. In either case, a signifiganmtion of the
deferred revenue does not constitute a liabiligt thust be funded with cash. At the time a memdiasjour club,
we incur enrollment costs which are deferred oem®nths. These costs are recorded as a long-tet and as
such, do not offset the working capital deficit. \&gect to record a working capital deficit in ftdyperiods and, as
in the past, will fund such deficit using cash flofitom operations and borrowings under our 2007d8&redit
Facility or other credit facilities, which resouscere believe will be sufficient to cover such dific

Recent Changes in or Recently Issued Accounting Stdards

In September 2006, the FASB issued Statement odxtting Financial Standard (“SFAS”) No. 15-air
Value Measuremen{§SFAS 157"), which defines fair value, establislaesamework for measuring fair value in
accordance with GAAP and expands disclosures dhoutalue measurements. SFAS 157 is effective dani,
2008 for the Company. In February 2008, the FAS8dial to issue a final Staff Position to allow &erear
deferral of adoption of SFAS 157 for nonfinancis$ets and nonfinancial liabilities that are recegdior disclosed
at fair value in the financial statements on a rouarring basis. The FASB also decided to amend SFAS0
exclude FASB Statement No. 13 and its related pnétive accounting pronouncements that addresgtgas
transactions. The Company is currently evaluatimgetxpected impact of SFAS 157 on its Consolidatedncial
Statements, however, does not believe it will haweaterial impact.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS, No. 14disgd 2007)Business Combination§ SFAS 141R"),
which replaces SFAS 141. SFAS 141R establishesiptas and requirements for how an acquirer recagnand
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measures in its financial statements the identdialssets acquired, the liabilities assumed, anycoatrolling
interest in the acquiree and the goodwill acquifAS 141R also modifies the recognition for pregsitjon
contingencies, such as environmental or legal &estructuring plans and acquired research avel@ament
value in purchase accounting. SFAS 141R amends $¥A309,Accounting for Income Taxes, require the
acquirer to recognize changes in the amount afgfsrred tax benefits that are recognizable becaluadusiness
combination either in income from continuing opi&nas in the period of the combination or directiycontributed
capital, depending on the circumstances. SFAS KddRestablishes disclosure requirements whichemiible
users to evaluate the nature and financial effaittise business combination. SFAS 141R is effedtivdiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2008. The Companuriently evaluating the expected impact of SFASR .41 its
Consolidated Financial Statements, however, doebei®@ve it will have a material impact.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. T8®& Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Fioal
Liabilities Including an amendment of FASB No. (“SFAS 159”), which permits entities to choose teasure
many financial instruments and certain other itati&ir value. The objective is to improve finarcigporting by
mitigating volatility in reported earnings causedrbeasuring related assets and liabilities sepgiré&8€AS 159
effective January 1, 2008 for the Company. The Comgghas evaluated the impact of SFAS 159 on itsQatatec
Financial Statements and concluded that it willglett the fair value option.

Use of Estimates and Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia
United States of America requires management toenegkkmates and assumptions that affect the repanwunts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of corgittgassets and liabilities at the dates of thenfirad statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expensegdhaneporting periods. Actual results could diffem those
estimates.

Our most significant assumptions and estimateserétathe allocation and fair value ascribed t@tsacquired
in connection with the acquisition of clubs undex purchase method of accounting, the useful iWésng-term
assets, recoverability and impairment of fixed antdngible assets, deferred income tax valuatielfsissurance
reserves, valuation of and expense incurred in@oion with, stock options, legal contingencies Hredestimated
membership life.

Our one-time member initiation fees and relatedadiexpenses are deferred and recognized on ghtttisie
basis in operations over the estimated membergaiprhis estimated membership life has been ddrikem actual
membership retention experienced by us. This egtdnléfe could increase or decrease in future jisrio
Consequently, deferred initiation fees and direpiedses would increase or decrease in similar ptiopo

Fixed assets are recorded at cost and depreciatadiaight-line basis over the estimated usefeslof the
assets, which are 30 years for building and improars, five years for club equipment, furniturgtdres, flooring
and computer equipment and three to seven yeac®foputer software. Leasehold improvements are tadr
over the shorter of their estimated useful livetherremaining period of the lease. Expendituresrfaintenance ar
repairs are charged to operations as incurredcdbtand related accumulated depreciation or apatidin of assets
retired or sold are removed from the respectiveacts and any gain or loss is recognized in opmratiThe costs
related to developing web applications, developirep pages and installing developed applicationthermweb
servers are capitalized and classified as compoféware. Web site hosting fees and maintenands eos
expensed as incurred.

Long-lived assets, such as fixed assets and iriengssets are reviewed for impairment when ewvants
circumstances indicate that the carrying value matybe recoverable. Estimated undiscounted expdatece cash
flows are used to determine if an asset group jmimed, in which case the asset’s carrying valuelevbe reduced
to fair value. Actual cash flows realized couldfeliffrom those estimated and could result in aisspairments in th
future. During the year ended December 31, 200&eserded impairment charges of $3.9 million. Theeze
charges of $2.7 million on fixed assets at sixwfwnderperforming clubs and $1.2 million relatedhe planned
closures of two clubs prior to the lease expiratiates. There were no such charges in the yeaddbeleember 31,
2007.

Goodwill has been allocated to reporting units thasely reflect the regions served by our foudé¢raames:
New York Sports Clubs‘NYSC”), Boston Sports Clubs (“BSC”), Washington®{s Clubs (“WSC”) and
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Philadelphia Sports Clubs (“PSC”), with certain moemote clubs that do not benefit from a regichater being
considered single reporting units (“Outlier Clubai)d our three clubs located in Switzerland (“SSCHe
Company has three Outlier Clubs with goodwill. WI&C and PSC regions do not have any goodwill. Hieyng
value of goodwill was allocated to the Companyjsorting units pursuant to SFAS No. 14&9odwill and Other
Intangible Asset.

In each of the quarters ended March 31, 2008 afid,28e Company performed its annual impairmerit e
March 31, 2008 and 2007 impairment tests suppahtedecorded goodwill balances and as such no impait of
goodwill was required. The valuation of intangibksets requires assumptions and estimates of mitingldactors
including revenue and market growth, operating ¢ksts and discount rates.

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, the Company coteglan interim evaluation of the goodwill by rejrogt
unit due to the existence of a triggering everafddecember 31, 2008. The determination as to vénethriggering
event exists that would warrant an interim revidwaodwill and whether a write-down of goodwillngcessary
involves significant judgment based on short-terd Bpng-term projections of the Company. Due todigmificant
decrease in market capitalization and a decliteénCompany’s business outlook primarily due to the
macroeconomic environment, the Company performedtanm impairment test as of December 31, 2008.

Goodwill impairment testing is a two-step proc&gp 1 involves comparing the fair value of the @any’'s
reporting units to their carrying amount. If thér fealue of the reporting unit is greater thanciésrying amount,
there is no impairment. If the reporting unit'sigémg amount is greater than the fair value, treoad step must be
completed to measure the amount of impairmentyf Step 2 calculates the implied fair value of dyil by
deducting the fair value of all tangible and intduhg assets, excluding goodwill, of the reportingtdrom the fair
value of the reporting unit as determined in StepHe implied fair value of goodwill determinedthris step is
compared to the carrying value of goodwill. If ihgplied fair value of goodwill is less than the igaing value of
goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized equah®difference. The result of the Company’s analyslicated
that there would be no remaining implied valueiatitiable to the Boston Sports Clubs reporting ukicordingly,
in December 2008, the Company wrote off all $15iion of goodwill associated with this reportingittand
$1.8 million at two of the three Outlier Clubs thtid not benefit from being part of regional clustéThe Company
did not have a goodwill impairment charge in the3CYregion as a result of the interim test givenpifeditability of
this unit. There is one remaining Outlier Club wgghodwill totaling $137,000.

Fair value was determined by using a weighted coatlin of two market-based approaches (weighted 25%
each) and an income approach (weighted 50%), asdnmbination was deemed to be the most indicafitiee
Company’s fair value in an orderly transaction betw market participants. Under the market-baserbappes, the
Company utilized information regarding the Compahg, Companys industry as well as publicly available indu:
information to determine earnings multiples an@sahultiples that are used to value the Compargporting units
Under the income approach, the Company determimieddlue based on estimated future cash flowsiofie
reporting unit, discounted by an estimated weiglaegrage cost of capital, which reflects the ovdezkl of
inherent risk of a reporting unit and the rateadfirn an outside investor would expect to earneDahing the fair
value of a reporting unit is judgmental in natunel aequires the use of significant estimates asdraptions,
including revenue growth rates and operating margiiscount rates and future market conditions,raputhers.

Solely for purposes of establishing inputs forfdie value calculations described above relategomdwill
impairment testing, the Company made the follovasgumptions. The Company developed a financiatéste
through 2013 for all reporting units with the extiep of BSC, which was extended through 2016. TBEB
reporting unit has a larger proportion of less mattiubs than the other reporting units. The Corgpesed discount
rates ranging between 12.1% and 18.2%, compoundadhhrevenue growth ranging from (0.7%) to 5.4% an
terminal growth rates ranging between 1% and 3%s&tassumptions are calculated separately forrepohting
unit. The control premium used on all reportingtsinvas 15%, calculated as annual costs associatiedw
Company’s public listing and operating synergies thould be considered by a market participantenivihg fair
value in a hypothetical transaction. The sum offéievalues of the reporting units was reconctiethe Companyg
current market capitalization (based upon the Cawgastock price) plus the estimated control premiu
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Given the current economic environment and the taicgies regarding the impact on the Company’sriass,
there can be no assurance that the Company’s éstimad assumptions regarding the duration of tigeiag
economic downturn, or the period or strength obwecy, made for purposes of the Companydodwill impairmen
testing as of December 31, 2008 will prove to beueate predictions of the future. If the Comparggsumptions
regarding forecasted revenue or margin growth maitegrtain reporting units are not achieved, toen@any may b
required to record additional goodwill impairmehteges in future periods, whether in connectio wie
Company’s next annual impairment testing in thergaranded March 31, 2009 or subsequent to thatyifsuch
change constitutes a triggering event outside e@fjtharter from when the annual goodwill impairntest is
performed. It is not possible at this time to detiee if any such future impairment charge woulditesr, if it does,
whether such charge would be material.

Effective January 1, 2006, we adopted StatemeAtobunting Financial Standard (“SFAS”) No. 123 (s=d
2004) Share Based Payme{iBFAS 123R"), which requires all share-based paysi¢o employees to be
recognized in the financial statements based dnftiie values using an option-pricing model at ttate of grant.
We use a Black-Scholes option-pricing model to walke the fair value of options. This model regsivarious
judgmental assumptions including volatility, fotfeie rate and expected option life. If any of tkeuanptions use
in the model change significantly, shdrased compensation may differ materially in therefrom that recorded
the current period.

In accordance with SFAS No. Accounting for Contingenciesve determine whether to disclose and accrue
for loss contingencies based on an assessmentathertthe risk of loss is remote, reasonably péssibprobable.
Our assessment is developed in consultation witlootside counsel and other advisors and is baseoh @nalysis
of possible outcomes under various strategies. tosngency assumptions involve judgments thairdrerently
subjective and can involve matters that are igdifion, which, by its nature is unpredictable. Vé&dve that our
assessment of the probability of loss contingerisiesasonable, but because of the subjectivitglired and the
unpredictable nature of the subject matter at jssueassessment may prove ultimately to be incgrvehich could
materially impact the Consolidated Financial Staets.

We limit our exposure to casualty losses on instgastaims by maintaining liability coverage subijgrct
specific and aggregate liability deductibles. Se$furance losses for claims filed and claims inedifsut not
reported are accrued based upon our historicakbggsrience and valuations provided by indepenttemnt-party
consultants. To the extent that estimated selfrarsze losses differ from actual losses realizedjraurance
reserves could differ significantly and may reguléither higher or lower insurance expense inriipieriods.

As of December 31, 2008, our net deferred tax asetdled $42.3 million. These net assets represent
cumulative net “temporary differences” that wilktdt in tax deductions in future years. The redlitity of these
assets greatly depends on our ability to genetdfieient future taxable income. We believe thabas club base
continues to expand, we will improve our profitétliin years going forward and realize our defer@dassets. For
2008 and 2007, we generated pre-tax profit of $idilkon and $21.8 million, respectively, and Fealdaxable
income of approximately $16.9 million and $39.5lioil, respectively. Given our profitability in pagtars and
expected future profitability, the weight of avila evidence indicates we will, more likely thart,rme able to
realize these net deferred tax assets. If at soneein the future the weight of available evidedoes not support
the realizability of a portion of or the entire mietferred tax assets, the write-down of this asseld have a
significant impact on our financial statements.

FASB Interpretation No. 48 (“FIN 48”Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, anriptetation of FASE
Statement No. 10&larifies the accounting for uncertainty in ina®maxes recognized in an enterprise’s financial
statements in accordance with FASB Statement N@.A€counting for Income Taxed he interpretation prescrib
a recognition threshold and measurement attritmrta tax position taken or expected to be takemtax return and
also provides guidance on derecognition, classifinainterest and penalties, accounting in intgoeniods,
disclosure and transition. The Company adoptegtbeisions of FIN 48 on January 1, 2007. The Corgpan
recognizes interest and penalties accrued relatadrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense.

Inflation

Although we cannot accurately anticipate the efédééhflation on our operations, we believe thdtation has
not had and is not likely in the foreseeable futorbave, a material impact on our results of diana.
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Seasonality of Busines

Seasonal trends have a limited effect on our oveusliness. Generally, we experience greater meshiger
growth at the beginning of each year and experianc@creased rate of membership attrition durirggsummer
months. In addition, during the summer months, wedence a slight increase in operating expengesalour
outdoor pool and summer camp operations, matchegagonal revenue recognition from season pool raeships
and camp revenue.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About MagkRisk

Our debt consists of both fixed and variable ratietdacilities. As of December 31, 2008 and Decardie
2007, a total of $181.8 million and $183.6 milliohour debt, respectively, consisted of the Terrar.&acility for
which borrowings are subject to variable interasés. Borrowings under this Term Loan Facility fareperiods of
one, two, three or six months in the case of Edtadborrowings and no minimum period in the cabbase rate
borrowings and upon each continuation of an intgresod related to a Eurodollar borrowing the iast rate is
reset and each interest rate would be considemable If short-term interest rates had incredsed00 basis
points for the year ended December 31, 2008, dargst expense would have increased by approxiynatel
$1.9 million. This amount is determined by consiggthe impact of the hypothetical interest ratear debt
balance during this period.

For additional information concerning the term®of fixed-rate debt, see Note 7 to our financiatesnents in
this Annual Report on Form 10-K.

Item 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary D¢

Our Financial Statements appear following the digreapage hereto, are incorporated herein by neéerand
are listed in the index appearing under Item 15.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants orcéenting and Financial Disclosure

None

Iltem 9A. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and ProceduresiWe maintain disclosure controls and procedurasale
designed to ensure that the information requirdaetdisclosed by us in the reports filed or suleditty us under ti
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarizedegutted within the time periods specified in 8C'’s rules
and forms and such information is accumulated amdncunicated to management, including the Chief Etee
Officer and the Chief Financial Officer, as appiaf®, to allow timely decisions regarding requidésclosure. Any
controls and procedures, no matter how well desigmal operated, can provide only reasonable agsesani
achieving the desired controls.

As of December 31, 2008, we carried out an evalnatinder the supervision and with the participatbour
management, including the Chief Executive Officed ¢he Chief Financial Officer, of the effectiveaed the
design and operation of our disclosure controls@dedures (as such term is defined in Rules B8a}kand
15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act). Based uponeiveltiation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chi@fdncial
Officer have concluded that, as of December 3182060r disclosure controls and procedures weretfteat the
reasonable assurance level.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Ovéiinancial Reporting: Our management is
responsible for establishing and maintaining adegjurernal control over financial reporting (aglsterm is
defined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) underBEiehange Act). Under the supervision and with thdigipation
of our management, including our Chief Executivfidef and Chief Financial Officer, we assessedefffiectivenes
of our internal control over financial reporting@sDecember 31, 2008. In making this assessmentpanagemei
used the criteria set forth by the Committee ofi&ooing Organizations of the Treadway CommissioB$0) in
Internal Control— Integrated FrameworkBased on our management’s assessment using those
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criteria, our management concluded that, as of Déee 31, 2008, we maintained effective internaltcmrover
financial reporting.

Our internal control over financial reporting isstied to provide reasonable assurance regardingeliability
of financial reporting and the preparation of cditeded financial statements for external purpasesccordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. Biseaof its inherent limitations, internal contreko financial
reporting may not prevent or detect misstateme¥is®, projections of any evaluation of effectivesés future
periods are subject to the risk that controls magoime inadequate because of changes in conditioiisat the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedunay deteriorate.

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP, our independent regisfeublic accounting firm that audited the finahci
statements included in this Annual Report on Fo@iK1has issued its written attestation reporttanédffectiveness
of the Companys internal control over financial reporting as afd@mber 31, 2008, as stated in their report incl
following the signature page hereto, which is ipavated herein by reference.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reportgn  There have not been any changes in our internal
control over financial reporting (as such termeésined in Rules 13a-15(f) and 15d-15(f) under tlkelange Act)
during the quarter ended December 31, 2008 that heaterially affected, or are reasonably likelyrtaterially
affect, our internal control over financial repodi

Iltem 9B. Other Information

None
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PART IlI
COMPENSATION OF EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND DIRECTORS AN D RELATED INFORMATION

Item 10. Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Govence

The information with respect to directors, execitdfficers and corporate governance of the Comany
incorporated herein by reference to the followiagt®ns of the Company’s definitive Proxy Statenrefdting to
the Company’s 2009 Annual Meeting of Stockholderbé filed with the SEC within 120 days of the Camy's
fiscal year ended December 31, 2008 (the “ProxieStant”): “Matters to be Considered at Annual Megti—
Proposal One — Election of Directors,” “Corporatev@rnance and Board Matters — Corporate Governance
Documents,” “Corporate Governance and Board MatterSommittee Membership — Audit Committee,”
“Section 16(A) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Coimapte,” and “Deadline for Receipt of Stockholdeoptsals.”

The following are the members of our Board of Dioes and our Executive Officers:

Board of Directors:

Alexander A. Alimanestianu Chief Executive Officer and President, Town Sports
International Holdings, Inc

Keith E. Alessi Chairman and Chief Executive Officer, Westmoreland
Coal Compan

Paul N. Arnold Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer,
Cort Business Services, Ir

Bruce C. Bruckmann Managing Director, Bruckmann, Rosser, Sherrill & {
LP

J. Rice Edmond Managing Director, Edmonds Capital, LI

Jason M. Fisl Former President, CapitalSource |

Thomas J. Galligan, IlI Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive Officer,
Papa Gin’s Holdings Corp

Kevin McCall Chief Executive Officer and President, Paradigm

Properties, LLC

Executive Officers:

Alexander Alimanestian Chief Executive Officer and Preside

Martin Annese Chief Operations Office

Daniel Gallaghe Chief Financial Office

David M. Kastin Senior Vice President — General Counsel and
Corporate Secreta

Jennifer H. Pru Chief Information Officel

James Rizz Senior Vice Preside— Human Resource

Item 11. Executive Compensatio

The information with respect to executive compeinsais incorporated herein by reference to theofeihg
sections of the Proxy Statement: “Executive Comatos” and “Corporate Governance and Board Matters
Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Eipgtion.”

The information with respect to compensation oédiors is incorporated herein by reference to dlewing
sections of the Proxy Statement.: “Corporate Gaweee and Board Matters — Directors’ Compensationhe
2008 Fiscal Year.”
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Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners anbnagement and Related Stockholder Matt

Securities Authorized for Issuance Under Equity Corpensation Plans

The following table provides information with regpéo compensation plans (including individual
compensation arrangements) under which our eqedyrgties are authorized for issuance to emplopsesf
December 31, 2008:

Number of Securities

Number of Securities Remaining Available for
to be Issued Upon Weighted-Average Future Issuance Under
Exercise of Exercise Price of Equity Compensation Plan:
Outstanding Options Outstanding Options, (Excluding Securities
Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights Reflected in Column(a))
Plan Categony () (b) (c)
Equity compensation plans approved by
security holder: 1,881,561 $ 8.3¢ 1,016,96!

Equity compensation plans not approved by
security holder: — — —

Total 1,881,561 $ 8.3¢ 1,016,96!

The information with respect to security ownersbiigertain beneficial owners and management isrporatec
herein by reference to the Proxy Statement.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactioand Director Independenc

The information with respect to certain relatiopshénd related transactions and director indepemdisn
incorporated herein by reference to the followiagt®n of the Proxy StatementCé&rtain Relationships and Rela
Transactions” and “Corporate Governance and Boaattdvs — Director Independence.”

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Servict

The information with respect to principal account@es and services is incorporated herein by eafs to the
following section of the Proxy Statement: “Mattéssbe Considered at Annual Meeting — Proposal Two —
Ratification of Independent Registered Public Agdng Firm.”
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PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits And Financial Statement

(a) Financial Statements

(1) Financial statements filed as part of this repo

Page
_Number

Consolidated Annual Financial Statements of Towar8pnternational Holdings, In
Report of Independent Registered Public Accounfinm F-2
Consolidated balance sheets at December 31, 2@DBecember 31, 20C F-3
Consolidated statements of income for the years@émkcember 31, 2008, 2007 and 2 F-4
Consolidated statements of stockhol’ equity for the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007200¢  F-5
Consolidated statements of cash flows for the yeaded December 31, 2008, 2007 and - F-6
Notes to consolidated financial stateme F-7

(2) Financial Statements Schedules:

To the extent applicable, required information hasn included in the financial statements.
(3) Exhibits. See Item 15(b) below.

(b) Exhibits required by Item 601 of Regulation S-K

The information required by this item is incorp@herein by reference from the Index to Exhibits
immediately following page F-39 of this Annual Refpon Form 10-K.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 16f(the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the rtegit has
duly caused this report to be signed on its behathe undersigned, thereunto duly authorized onck&, 2009.

TOWN SPORTSINTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC.

By: /sl ALEXANDER ALIMANESTIANU

Chief Executive Officer
(principal executive officer)

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities &xgh Act of 1934, this report has been signed bélpthe
following persons on behalf of the registrant amthie capacities and on the dates indicated.

Signature Title Date
By: /sl ALEXANDER Chief Executive Officer (principal March 3, 2009
ALIMANESTIANU executive officer), President and Director

Alex Alimanestiant

By: /s/ DANIEL GALLAGHER Chief Financial Officer (principal financi March 3, 2009
Daniel Gallaghe and accounting officer)
By: /sl KEITH ALESSI Director March 3, 2009
Keith Alessi
By: /sl PauL ARNOLD Director March 3, 2009
Paul Arnold
By: /s BRUCE BRUCKMANN Director March 3, 2009

Bruce Bruckmani

By: /sl Rice EDMONDS Director March 3, 2009
Rice Edmond:
By: /sl JasoN FisH Director and Chairman of the Board March 3, 2009
Jason Fisl
By: /sl THOMAS J. GALLIGAN I Director March 3, 2009

Thomas J. Galligan I



By: /sl KevIN McCaLL Director March 3, 2009
Kevin McCall
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Report of Independent Registered Public Accountingrirm

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Town Sports International Holdings, Inc:

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated bzgasheets and the related consolidated statenfents o
operations, stockholders’ equity (deficit) and clistvs present fairly, in all material respectss financial position
of Town Sports International Holdings, Inc. andsitdsidiaries (the “Company”) at December 31, 208 2007,
and the results of their operations and their ¢asts for each of the three years in the periodeghBecember 31,
2008, in conformity with accounting principles geally accepted in the United States of America.QAlsour
opinion, the Company maintained, in all materiajects, effective internal control over financigborting as of
December 31, 2008, based on criteria establishédemal Control - Integrated Framewoiksued by the
Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Tremgd@ommission (COSO). The Company’s management is
responsible for these financial statements, fomtaaiing effective internal control over financraporting and for
its assessment of the effectiveness of internarabaver financial reporting, included in Managertis Annual
Report on Internal Control over Financial Reportappearing under Item 9A. Our responsibility i€xpress
opinions on these financial statements and on trapgany’s internal control over financial reportingsed on our
audits (which were integrated audits in 2008 an@i720We conducted our audits in accordance witrstardards ¢
the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (EdiStates). Those standards require that we pthpenfiorm
the audits to obtain reasonable assurance aboutherttae financial statements are free of mateniaktatement ar
whether effective internal control over financiaporting was maintained in all material respects. &udits of the
financial statements included examining, on aliests, evidence supporting the amounts and diselesa the
financial statements, assessing the accountingiptas used and significant estimates made by neanagt, and
evaluating the overall financial statement preg@maOur audit of internal control over financraporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal control diaincial reporting, assessing the risk that aemaltweakness
exists, and testing and evaluating the design gedating effectiveness of internal control basedhenassessed
risk. Our audits also included performing such offrecedures as we considered necessary in thawstances. W
believe that our audits provide a reasonable fasisur opinions.

A company'’s internal control over financial repogiis a process designed to provide reasonablesass
regarding the reliability of financial reportingdthe preparation of financial statements for exaepurposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting ipieee A company’s internal control over finanaiaporting
includes those policies and procedures that (fppeto the maintenance of records that, in redsergetail,
accurately and fairly reflect the transactions disghositions of the assets of the company; (iiyvjute reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as nactsgarmit preparation of financial statementsdgordance wit
generally accepted accounting principles, andréipts and expenditures of the company are breadg only in
accordance with authorizations of management anedtdirs of the company; and (iii) provide reasoaassurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauittexd acquisition, use, or disposition of the comps assets that
could have a material effect on the financial stegets.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal cohtiver financial reporting may not prevent or dete
misstatements. Also, projections of any evaluatibeffectiveness to future periods are subjechéorisk that
controls may become inadequate because of chamgesditions, or that the degree of compliance Withpolicies
or procedures may deteriorate.

/sl RRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERSLLP

New York, New York
March 3, 2009
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TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
December 31, 2008 and 2007

ASSETS
Current asset:

2008

2007

(All figures in $000's
except share data)

Cash and cash equivalel $ 10,39¢ $ 5,46:
Accounts receivable (less allowance for doubtf@oamnts of $3,001 and $2,797 in 2008
and 2007, respectivel 4,50¢ 5,38
Inventory 143 23C
Prepaid expenses and other current a: 14,15¢ 14,76
Prepaid corporate income tay 8,11¢
Total current asse 37,32( 25,84:
Fixed assets, ni 373,12( 337,15:
Goodwill 32,61( 50,16t
Intangible assets, n 281 AT
Deferred tax assets, r 42,26¢ 44,34
Deferred membership cos 14,46 17,97«
Other asset 11,57¢ 12,80¢
Total asset $511,63¢ $488,76:
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS ' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Current portion of lon-term debt $ 20,85( $ 10,89¢
Accounts payabl 7,267 10,891
Accrued expense 35,56¢ 34,18¢
Accrued interes 523 73¢
Corporate income taxes paya — 811
Deferred revenu 40,32¢ 41,79¢
Total current liabilities 104,53: 99,32:
Long-term debt 317,16( 305,12
Deferred lease liabilitie 69,71¢ 61,221
Deferred revenu 4,55/ 7,30(C
Other liabilities 14,90: 15,61
Total liabilities 510,86¢ 488,58(
Commitments and contingencies (Note
Stockholder' equity:
Common stock, $.001 par value; issued and outsigriz,627,779 and
26,254,773 shares at December 31, 2008 and 20§p&atvely 25 26
Paic-in capital (18,980) (16,977
Accumulated other comprehensive income (curreranystation adjustmen 1,07C 814
Retained earning 18,65 16,32(
Total stockholder equity 772 18z
Total liabilities and stockholde’ equity $511,63( $488,76:

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

F-3




Table of Contents

TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF INCOME
Years Ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006

2008 2007 2006
(All figures in $000’s except share and per share
data)
Revenues:
Club operation: $ 500,67t $ 467,29¢ $ 428,13t
Fees and othe 6,031 5,61¢ 4,947
506,70¢ 472,91! 433,08(
Operating Expenses:;
Payroll and relate 193,58 177,35 162,70¢
Club operating 172,40¢ 156,66( 146,24:
General and administrati\ 33,95: 35,09: 30,24¢
Depreciation and amortizatic 52,47¢ 45,96¢ 40,85(
Impairment of fixed asse 3,861 — —
Impairment of goodwil 17,60¢ — —
473,89. 415,07: 380,05(
Operating Incom 32,817 57,84: 53,03(
Loss on extinguishment of de — 12,52 16,11
Interest expens 23,90: 26,40( 35,49¢
Interest incom (319 (1,077 (2,129
Equity in the earnings of investees and rentalime (2,30%) (1,799 (1,817
Income before provision for corporate income te 11,54: 21,79: 5,36z
Provision for corporate income tax 9,20¢ 8,14¢ 71E
Net income $ 2,337 $ 13,64t $ 4,64
Earnings per shar
Basic $ 0.0¢ $ 05z $ 0.2C
Diluted $ 0.0¢ $ 051 $ 0.2C
Weighted average number of shares used in caloglatirnings per
share:
Basic 26,247,39 26,153,564  22,749,47
Diluted 26,314,95 26,611,22  23,154,81

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS'’ EQUITY
Years Ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006

Accumulated

Common Stock Additional Other Accumulated Total
($.001 par) Paid in Unearned  Comprehensive Retained Stockholder
Shares  Amount Capital Compensatior Income Equity (Deficit) Equity (Deficit)
(All figures in $00C's except share and per share dat:

Balance at January 1, 200( 18,327,72. $ 18 $(113,60) $ (509) $ 38€ $ (1,979% (115,68)
Repurchase of common stao (60,160) — (433 — — — (433)
Common stock issued upon initial public offeri  7,650,00! 8 91,74: — — — 91,75(
Stock option exercise 58,38¢ — 43¢ — — — 43¢
Elimination of unearned compensation under

SFAS 123F — — (509) 50¢ — — —
Compensation related to stock optic — — 1,13¢ — — — 1,13¢
Tax benefit from stock option exercis — — 163 — — — 162
Other comprehensive incon
Net income — — — — 4,647 4,647
Foreign currency translation adjustm — — — — 15z — 15z

Total comprehensive incon — — — — — — 4,80(
Balance at December 31, 20C 25,975,94 26 (21,069 — 53¢ 2,674 (17,829
Stock option exercise 278,82! — 2,09¢ — — — 2,09¢
Compensation related to stock optit — — 91z — — — 913
Tax benefit from stock option exercis — — 1,082 — — — 1,08
Other comprehensive incon
Net income — — — — — 13,64¢ 13,64¢
Foreign currency translation adjustm — — — — 27¢ — 27E

Total comprehensive incon — — — — — 13,92:
Balance at December 31, 20C 26,254,77. $ 26 $ (16,97) $ — $ 814 $ 16,32( $ 18¢
Repurchase of common sta (1,838,961 2 (4,649 (4,64%)
Stock option exercise 195,70( 1 1,19t — — — 1,19¢
Common stock gran 16,26¢ — 87 87
Compensation related to stock optit — — 1,181 — — — 1,181
Tax benefit from stock option exercis — — 177 — — — 177
Other comprehensive incornr
Net income — — — — — 2,331 2,331
Foreign currency translation adjustm — — — — 25€ — 25€

Total comprehensive incon — — — — — 2,59¢
Balance at December 31, 2008 24,627,77 $ 25 $ (18,980 $ — $ 1,07C $ 18,65° $ 77z

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006

Cash flows from operating activities:

Net income

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net caskigdesl by operating activitie

Depreciation and amortizatic
Impairment of fixed asse
Impairment of goodwil

Non cash interest expense on Senior Discount M

Loss on extinguishment of de

Payment of interest cPaymer-in-Kind Notes

Amortization of debt issuance co:

Noncash rental expense, net of noncash rental ie:

Compensation expense incurred in connection witbksbptions and common stock gra
Net change in certain working capital compon¢

Decrease (increase) in deferred tax a

Decrease (increase) in deferred membership

Landlord contributions to tenant improveme

Increase in insurance resen
Other

Total adjustment

Net cash provided by operating activit

Cash flows from investing activities:
Capital expenditures, net of effect of acquiredimesse:

Insurance proceeds receiv

Acquisition of businesses, net of cash acqu
Net cash used in investing activiti
Cash flows from financing activities:

Proceeds from 2007 Credit Facil

Costs related to issuance of 2007 Credit Fac
Proceeds from Initial Public Offering, net of undeting and other cost

Repayment of Senior Noti

Proceeds from borrowings on Revolving Loan Fac
Repayment of borrowings on Revolving Loan Faci
Premium paid on extinguishment of debt and relatesds

Repayment of long term borrowin

Change in book overdraf
Repurchase of common sto

Tax benefit from stock option exercis
Proceeds from stock option exerci:

Net cash provided by (used in) financing activi
Effect of exchange rate changes on ¢

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equis
Cash and cash equivalents beginning of pe

Cash and cash equivalents end of pe

Summary of the change in certain working capital cmponents, net of effects of acquired businesses

Increase in accounts receiva
Decrease (increase) in inventc

Decrease (increase) in prepaid expenses and athrentasset

Increase (decrease) in accounts payable, accryeshegs and accrued inter
Change in prepaid corporate income taxes and catgarcome taxes payat
(Decrease) increase in deferred reve

Net change in certain working capital compon¢

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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2008

2007

2006

(All figures in $000's)

$ 2337 $ 13646 $ 4,64
52,47¢ 45,96 40,85(
3,867 — —
17,60¢ — —
13,931 12,46( 14,41

— 12,52: 16,11
— —  (12,96)
781 81t 1,43¢
(412) 50€ 1,76¢
1,26¢ 91z 1,130

(10,259 1,76¢ 11,16¢
2,07¢ (11,909  (8,05¢
3,512 (227) (4,18
6,591 5,43¢ 6,41°
2,03¢ 2,79¢ 2,561
(20¢ 102 3)
93,28¢ 69,10: 70,47
95,62: 82,74¢ 75,12(
(96,187 (93,280  (66,259)
1,07¢ 50C —

— (4,450) (85¢)
(95,109 (97,230 _ (67,11)
— 185,00 —

— (2,729 —

— — 91,75(

— (169,999 (128,68
19,00( 9,00( —
(9,000 — —
— (9,309 (13,279
(1,949 (1,56 (2,805
(583) (647) 245
(4,645) — (439)
177 1,082 162
1,19¢ 2,09¢ 43¢
4,19¢ 12,931 (52,599
22€ 20z 95
4,93¢ (1,347) (44,499
5,467 6,81( 51,30:
$1039¢ $ 546 $ 6,81
$ 1,78 $ (549 $ (3,169
89 205 (13)

197 1,968 (4,085
77¢ (2,435 2,66%
(8879 (1,726 7,09t
(4,239 4,30¢ 8,67¢
$(10,25¢9 $ 1,768 $ 11,16¢
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TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006
(In $000s, except share data)

1. Basis of Presentatior

As of December 31, 2008, Town Sports Internatidgt@tings, Inc. (the “Company” or “TSI Holdings”),
through its wholly-owned subsidiary, Town Sporteemational, LLC (“TSI, LLC"), operated 166 fitheskibs
(“clubs™) comprised of 112 clubs in the New York tmopolitan market under the “New York Sports Clubsand
name, 25 clubs in the Boston market under the ‘®BoSports Clubs” brand name, 19 clubs (two of wizighpartly-
owned) in the Washington, D.C. market under the stitagton Sports Clubs” brand name, seven clubisan t
Philadelphia market under the “Philadelphia SpGitgs” brand name and three clubs in Switzerland. The Goy
operates in a single segment.

Effective June 30, 2006, Town Sports Internatiohad,, a wholly-owned subsidiary of TSI Holdingserged
with and into TSI Club, LLC, a New York limited bdity company (the “Merger”). TSI Club, LLC waseh
surviving entity in the Merger and changed its nam&own Sports International, LLC (“TSI, LLC”). T$loldings
is the sole member of TSI, LLC.

The Company completed its Initial Public OfferirftP©”) on June 7, 2006. In connection with the IRk
Board of Directors approved a 14 for one commonkssplit. The Company'’s position is that it wasuiegd by the
relevant agreements to adjust the options to pgechammon stock for the stock split. All share padshare data
have been adjusted to reflect this stock split. Chenpany’s sale of 7,650,000 shares of common stsidted in
net proceeds of $91,750. These proceeds are nedefwriting discounts and commissions and offecosts
payable by the Company totaling $7,700. The IPQ@geds were used for the redemption of 35% of tigeeggte
principal amount of its outstanding 11% Senior Distt Notes due 2014 and the remainder of the pdscexgether
with cash on hand was used to consummate the tefféeifor $85,001 of 9 5/ 8% Senior Notes due201

Certain reclassifications were made to the repatedunts for the years ended December 31, 2002@0%i to
conform to the presentation for the year ended e 31, 2008.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated financial statemietade the accounts of Town Sports International
Holdings, Inc. and all wholly-owned subsidiariedl iAter-company accounts and transactions have kéminated
in consolidation.

The share and per share amounts prior to JuneD8§, I28ve been adjusted for the 14 for one commark stplit
on June 2, 2006.

Revenue Recognition

The Company generally receives a one-time non-tefale initiation fee and monthly dues from its mensb
The Company’s members have the option to join oroath-to-month basis or to commit to a one or twary
membership. Month-to-month members can cancel thembership at any time with 30 days notice. Itidiafees
and related direct expenses, primarily sales cosioris and a percentage of salaries payable to mshipe
consultants, are deferred and recognized, on iglstiine basis, in operations over an estimatedhbership life of
30 months. Deferred membership costs were $14462347,974 at December 31, 2008 and 2007, respéctivhe
decrease of $3,512 is related to the discountimgeaf member initiation fees in an effort to drivembership sales.
The amount of costs deferred does not exceed lftededeferred revenue for the periods presentadsihat are
received in advance are recognized on a pro-raia baer the periods in which services are to loeiged.
Revenues from ancillary services are recognizestagces are performed. Management fees earnegifaices
rendered are recognized at the time the relatedcesrare performed.
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TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

The Company recognizes revenue from merchandies sgbn delivery to the member.

In connection with advance receipts of fees or giesCompany is required to maintain surety bdotiing
$3,598 and $3,625 as of December 31, 2008 and 28§fectively, pursuant to various state consumeegtion
laws.

Advertising and Club Pre-opening Costs

Advertising costs and club pre-opening costs aeeged to operations during the period in which they
incurred, except for production costs related kevision and radio advertisements, which are expéngen the
related commercials are first aired. Total adverisosts incurred by the Company for the yeargdnd
December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 totaled $7,868362 and $10,971, respectively and are includexdiin
operations.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers all highly liquid instrumentsch have original maturities of three monthdess
when acquired to be cash equivalents. The carngunts reported in the balance sheets for cashasid
equivalents approximate fair value. The Companysamd operates a captive insurance company intéte &
New York. Under the insurance laws of the StatB@iv York, this captive insurance company is requtre
maintain a cash balance of at least $250. At Deeer®b, 2008 and 2007, $271 and $269, respectioéhash
related to this wholly-owned subsidiary was incldidte cash and cash equivalents.

Deferred Lease Liabilities, Non-cash Rental Experesed Additional Rent

The Company recognizes rental expense for leagbsseheduled rent increases on the straight-lisestaver
the life of the lease beginning upon the commencemiate of the lease.

The Company leases office, warehouse and multeatiomal facilities and certain equipment under-non
cancelable operating leases. In addition to baste ttee facility leases generally provide for aatgial rent to cover
common area maintenance (“CAM”) charges incurreditarpass along increases in real estate taxesSCohmpany
accrues for any unpaid CAM charges and real esiaés on a club-by-club basis.

Certain leases provide for contingent rent basexh wiefined formulas of revenue, cash flows or djgga
results for the respective facilities. These caggint rent payments typically call for additionatreayments
calculated as a percentage of the respective ctaldEnue or a percentage of revenue in excesdioedereak-
points during a specified year. The Company recooadingent rent expense over the related contingpertal
period at the time the respective contingent target probable of being met.

Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Acods

Accounts receivable consists of amounts due fr@rCbmpanys membership base and is $7,509 and $8,1
December 31, 2008 and 2007, respectively befoosvathce for doubtful accounts. The Company maintains
allowances for doubtful accounts for estimateddesgsulting from the inability of the Company’smixers to
make required payments. The Company considersréastich as: historical collection experience, tpe af the
receivable balance and general economic conditlmatsmay affect our members’ ability to pay.
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TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS, INC. AND SUBSID IARIES
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Conti nued)

Following are the changes in the allowance for dimlilaccounts for the years December 31, 2008, 201l
2006:

Balance Beginning Write -offs Net of Balance at

of the Year Additions Recoveries End of Year

December 31, 200 $ 2,797 $843( $ (8,22¢0 $ 3,001
December 31, 20C $ 2,02¢ $ 8,16t $ (7,39 $ 2,797
December 31, 20C $ 1,98 $ 512¢ $ (5,08 $ 2,02¢

Inventory

Inventory consists of supplies, headsets for thb ehtertainment system and clothing for sale tmbers.
Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or redildy the first-in, first-out method.

Fixed Assets

Fixed assets are recorded at cost and depreciatadiaight-line basis over the estimated usefeslof the
assets, which are 30 years for building and impreer@s, five years for club equipment, furniturgtdres and
computer equipment and three to seven years fopatensoftware. Leasehold improvements are amaortizer the
shorter of their estimated useful lives or the rigving period of the related lease. Payroll costedlly related to the
construction or expansion of the Compangfub base are capitalized with leasehold imprarém Expenditures f
maintenance and repairs are charged to operatioimgarred. The cost and related accumulated digicat or
amortization of assets retired or sold are remdrad the respective accounts and any gain or Bbssdognized in
operations. The costs related to developing welicgipns, developing web pages and installing tped
applications on the web servers are capitalizedcassified as computer software. Web site hodteg and
maintenance costs are expensed as incurred.

Intangible Assets, Goodwill and Debt Issuance Costs

Intangible assets consist of membership lists nefigal lease and covenants-not-to-compete. Thesets are
stated at cost and are being amortized by thegbtrline method over their estimated lives. Membgrdists are
amortized over 30 months and covenants-natetmipete are amortized over the contractual lifaegaly one to fiv
years. The beneficial lease is being amortized theeremaining life of the underlying club lea

In accordance with the Statement on Financial Antiag Standards (“SFAS”) No. 14&o0o0dwill and Other
Intangible Asset(“SFAS 142"), goodwill has not been amortized sujusnt to December 31, 2001.

Debt issuance costs are classified within otheztasnd are being amortized as additional intergstnse over
the life of the underlying debt, five to ten yearsing the interest method. Amortization of debugscosts was $7¢
$815 and $1,438, for the years ended DecembelO8B, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Accounting for the Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets, such as fixed assets and iriengssets are reviewed for impairment when ewvants
circumstances indicate that their carrying valug mat be recoverable. Estimated undiscounted egpdature cas
flows are used to determine if an asset is impairedhich case the asset’s carrying value woulddokiced to fair
value.

Insurance

The Company obtains insurance coverage for sigmfiexposures as well as those risks required todoeed
by law or contract. The Company retains a portibrisk internally related to general liability lass Where the
Company retains risk, provisions are recorded baped the Company’s estimates of its ultimate expo$or
claims. The provisions are estimated based on slakperience, an estimate of claims incurred buyebreported
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and other relevant factors. In this connection eaurtile provision of the Deductible Agreement reldtethe
payment and administration of the Company’s insteatiaims, we are required to maintain irrevocédtiers of
credit, totaling $7,900 as of December 31, 2008.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in confeymiith accounting principles generally acceptethia
United States of America requires management tceregkmates and assumptions that affect the repanwunts
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of corgimgassets and liabilities at the dates of thenfiied statements and
the reported amounts of revenues and expensegdhaneporting periods. Actual results could diffem those
estimates.

The most significant assumptions and estimatetertdethe allocation and fair value ascribed t@tsacquired
in connection with the acquisition of clubs undex purchase method of accounting, the useful iésng-term
assets, recoverability and impairment of fixed améngible assets, deferred income tax valuatiafyation of and
expense incurred in connection with stock optiamsyrance reserves, legal contingencies and tireatstd
membership life.

Income Taxes

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are recogniaethe expected future tax consequences of eteatdave
been included in the financial statements or téorns. Under this method, deferred tax liabilitesl assets are
determined on the basis of the difference betwhkeriihancial statement and tax basis of assetdiaitities
(“temporary differences”) at enacted tax ratesfiact for the years in which the temporary diffecen are expected
to reverse. A valuation allowance is recorded thuoe deferred tax assets to the amount that is hkeig than not
to be realized.

Statements of Cash Flows
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006
Cash paic
Interest (net of amounts capitalized) $10,03: $17,07¢ $35,25:
Income taxe: 15,93: 20,73: 4,69¢

Noncash investing and financing activit
Acquisition of fixed assets included in accountggide and accrued expen: 11,13: 15,78 12,731
See Notes 7, 10 and 11 for additional -cash investing and financing activiti

(a) The December 31, 2006 amount includes a $12,961pasnent of interest on payment-in-kinotes, related
the Senior Discount Notes, as later defir

Foreign Currency

At December 31, 2008, the Company owned three Sskibs, which use the Swiss Franc, their localenty,
as their functional currency. Assets and liab#itere translated into U.S. dollars at year-end &xgé rates, while
income and expense items are translated into WIfrd at the average exchange rate for the pefiodall periods
presented foreign exchange transaction gains asé$overe not material. Adjustments resulting ftioentranslatio
of foreign functional currency financial statemeint® U.S. dollars are included in the currency
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translation adjustment in stockholders’ equity (@i®f The difference between the Company’s nebine and
comprehensive income is the effect of foreign ergestranslation adjustments, which was $256, $26534.53 for
the years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 28f}&gctively.

Comprehensive Income

Comprehensive income is defined as the changeuityeaf a business enterprise during a period from
transactions and other events and circumstancesriom-owner sources, including foreign currencygration
adjustments. The Company presents comprehensigmani its consolidated statements of stockholdegsity.

Investments in Affiliated Companies

The Company has investments in two partly-ownetdgI€Capitol Hill Squash Club Associates (“CHSCAriga
Kalorama Sports Management Associates (“KSMA”) lexdively referred to as the “Affiliates”). The Caany has
a limited partnership interest in CHSCA, which pd®ms the Company with approximately 20% of the CASC
profits, as defined. The Company has a co-genearah@rship and limited partnership interests in K§Mhich
entitles it to receive approximately 45% of the K&Mrofits, as defined. The Affiliates have operaspwhich are
similar, and related to, those of the Company. Thepany accounts for these Affiliates in accordamiti the
equity method. The assets, liabilities, equity apdrating results of the CHSCA and the Companydsrata share
of the CHSCA's net assets and operating resulte wet material for all periods presented. The KShéfance
sheets for the periods presented are not materibktCompany’s balance sheets for these respquiveds. Total
revenue, income from operations and net incomeSiIK for the years ended December 31, 2008, 20072866
were as follows:

Year Ended December 31,

2008 2007 2006
Revenue $3,345  $3,622  $3,55¢
Operating expenst 2,20¢ 2,15(C 1,92¢
Operating incom: 1,13¢ 1,472 1,62¢
Net income 1,04¢ 1,362 1,513

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which potentially subject @@mpany to concentrations of credit risk are aasthcash
equivalents. Such amounts are held, primarily, simgle commercial bank. The Company holds no tmyité for
these financial instruments. Cash and cash equitsakeeld in a single commercial bank as of Decerthe2008
were $6,929. During any given month, this amountleaas high as $30,000.

Earnings Per Share

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividingnmmme applicable to common stockholders by the
weighted average numbers of shares of common statskanding during the period. Diluted earningsgiare is
computed similarly to basic earnings per sharegpixthat the denominator is increased for the asduswercise of
dilutive stock options using the treasury stockhmodt
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The following table summarizes the weighted avei@gamon shares for basic and diluted earningstsees
(“EPS”") computations.

For The Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006

Weighted average number of common share outsta— basic ~ 26,247,39 26,153,54 22,749,47
Effect of diluted stock optior 67,55: 457,68: 405,34
Weighted average number of common shares outsigréin

diluted 26,314,95 26,611,22 23,154,81
Earnings per shar

Basic $ 0.0¢ % 05z $ 0.2C

Diluted $ 0.0¢ $ 051 $ 0.2C

At December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, we did ndudestock options to purchase 957,928, 433,540 and
195,166 shares of the Company’s common stock, céspdy, in the calculations of diluted EPS becatise
exercise prices of those options were greater tiiaaverage market price and their inclusion waadntidilutive.

Stock-Based Compensation

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adoptedainealue recognition provisions of SFAS No. 128vised
2004),"Share-Based Paymentg*SFAS 123R”), using the modified prospective triéina method and, therefore,
has not restated results for prior periods. Unldisrttansition method, stock-based compensatiorresefor the
year ended December 31, 2006 includes compensatisense for all sto-based compensation awards granted
prior to, but not yet vested as of January 1, 26@6ed on the grant date fair value estimateddordance with the
original provision of SFAS No. 123Accounting for Stock-Based CompensatidfiSFAS 123"). Stock-based
compensation expense for all stock-based compensatvards granted after January 1, 2006 will bedas the
grant-date fair value estimated in accordance thighprovisions of SFAS 123R. Prior to the adoptibn
SFAS 123R, the Company recognized stock-based awsatien expense in accordance with Accounting ipies
Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 25/Accounting for Stock Issued to Employe$APB 25”). Also, prior to January 1,
2006, the Company provided pro forma disclosurewatsoin accordance with SFAS No. 148, “Accountiag f
Stock-Based Compensation — Transition and DiscBSIEFAS 148"), as if the fair value method defihiey
SFAS 123 had been applied to its stock-based cosagien. In March 2005, the Securities and Exchange
Commission (the “SEC”) issued Staff Accounting Btith No. 107 (“SAB 107") regarding the SEC'’s intezation
of SFAS 123R and the valuation of share-based patgier public companies. In December 2007, the &50ed
SAB No. 110 (“SAB 110") regarding the use of a “plified” method, as discussed SAB 107, in develgpn
estimate of expected term of “plain vanilla” shapions in accordance with SFAS 123R. In partigulee staff
indicated in SAB 107 that it will accept a companglection to use the simplified method, regardéésghether the
company has sufficient information to make moréne estimates of expected term. At the time SAB @@s
issued, the staff believed that more detailed esfeénformation about employee exercise behaviay. (employee
exercise patterns by industry and/or other categaf companies) would, over time, become readiylable to
companies. Therefore, the staff stated in SAB bAT it would not expect a company to use the siieglimethod
for share option grants after December 31, 200@. Sthff understands that such detailed informadlmout
employee exercise behavior may not be widely abkglay December 31, 2007. Accordingly, the staff eontinue
to accept, under certain circumstances, the uizeadimplified method beyond December 31, 2007. Cbmpany
currently uses the simplified method for “plain i1 share options and warrants, and will assbssimnpact of
SAB 110 for fiscal year 2009. It is not believedttkhis will have an impact on the Company’s finahposition,
results of operations or cash flows.
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The fair value of the awards was determined usimpdified Black-Scholes methodology using the faileg
weighted average assumptions:

Weighted

Risk-Free Average Expectec Fair Value

Interest Expected Expectec Dividend at Date

Common Rate Life Volatility Yield of Grant

1999 Grant: 5.7% 5year 60% — $ 30.1¢
2000 Grantt 6.€% 5year 69% — $ 47.11
2001 Grantt 4.€% 5 year 72% — $111.8¢
2003 Grantt 3.8% 6 year 55% — $ 14.5(
2005 Grantt 41% 6 yearn 49% — $ 8.0cC
2006 Grant: 4.8% 6 yearn 50% — $ 12.1¢
2007 Grantt 4.5% 6 yearn 33% — $ 17.6¢
2008 Grantt 2.2% 6 yearn 60% — $ 4.8¢

The weighted average expected option term reftbetapplication of the simplified method set ouStaff
Accounting Bulletin No. 107 issued by the Secusitid Exchange Commission, which defines the tarthex
average of the contractual term of the optionsthedveighted average vesting period for all optranches.
Expected volatility percentages were derived framvolatility of publicly traded companies consilgto have
businesses similar to the Company. The risk-fréefa periods within the contractual life of thption is based on
the U.S. Treasury implied yield at the time of dran

3. Recent Accounting Pronouncement

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. E&if,Value Measuremen{8SFAS 157"), which defines
fair value, establishes a framework for measuraigwalue in accordance with GAAP and expands dgales abol
fair value measurements. SFAS 157 is effective dignli, 2008 for the Company. In February 2008 RA&B
decided to issue a final Staff Position to alloan&-year deferral of adoption of SFAS 157 for noaficial assets
and nonfinancial liabilities that are recognizediimclosed at fair value in the financial staterseart a nonrecurring
basis. The FASB also decided to amend SFAS 15Xdiode FASB Statement No. 13 and its related imatiye
accounting pronouncements that address leasinggitdans. The Company is currently evaluating #peeted
impact of SFAS 157 on its Consolidated Financiat@&nents, however, does not believe it will havesderial
impact.

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS, No. 14iised 2007)Business Combination§' SFAS 141R"),
which replaces SFAS 141. SFAS 141R establishesiptas and requirements for how an acquirer recagnand
measures in its financial statements the identdialssets acquired, the liabilities assumed, anycoatrolling
interest in the acquiree and the goodwill acquifAS 141R also modifies the recognition for prgeasition
contingencies, such as environmental or legal s@estructuring plans and acquired research avel@ment
value in purchase accounting. SFAS 141R amends $¥A309,Accounting for Income Taxes, require the
acquirer to recognize changes in the amount afgfsrred tax benefits that are recognizable becaluadusiness
combination either in income from continuing op&nas in the period of the combination or directlyciontributed
capital, depending on the circumstances. SFAS KddRestablishes disclosure requirements whichemdible
users to evaluate the nature and financial effaittise business combination. SFAS 141R is effedtivdiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2008. The Companurnintly evaluating the expected impact of SFASRL.41 its
Consolidated Financial Statements, however, doebei®@ve it will have a material impact.

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. T8®& Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Fical
Liabilities Including an amendment of FASB No. (“SFAS 159”), which permits entities to choose teasure
many financial instruments and certain other itati&ir value. The objective is to improve finarcigporting by
mitigating volatility in reported earnings causedrbeasuring related assets and liabilities sepgiré&8€AS 159 is
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effective January 1, 2008 for the Company. The Comghas evaluated the impact of SFAS 159 on its@latatec
Financial Statements and concluded that it willglett the fair value option.

4. Fixed Assets

Fixed assets as of December 31, 2008 and 200 havensat cost, less accumulated depreciation and
amortization and are summarized below:

December 31

2008 2007

Leasehold improvemen $458,94: $413,55
Club equipmen 87,83: 80,92«
Furniture, fixtures and computer equipm 66,74 60,34
Computer softwar 18,20( 16,11(
Building and improvement 4,99t 4,99¢
Land 98¢ 98¢
Construction in progres 36,41¢ 18,93¢
674,11¢ 595,85

Less: Accumulated depreciation and amortiza (300,999 (258,709

$373,12(  $ 337,15:

Depreciation and leasehold amortization expensthioyears ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2@G6,
$51,743, $45,519 and $40,220, respectively.

Fixed assets are evaluated for impairment peritigiednenever events or changes in circumstancesaiel
that their related carrying amounts may not beverble from its undiscounted cash flows in accocgavith
SFAS No. 144, “Accounting for the Impairment or pasal of Long-Lived Assets” (“SFAS 144”). The Comy&
long-lived assets and liabilities are grouped atitidividual club level which is the lowest levet fwhich there is
identifiable cash flow. To the extent that estindafiture undiscounted net cash flows attributablene assets are
less than the carrying amount, an impairment chargecognized equal to the difference betweerténg/ing value
of such asset and its fair value. In the year emdszember 31, 2008, the Company tested 13 underpgrfg clubs
and recorded impairment charges of $2,641 on fas=ts at seven of these clubs. The seven clubsmphirment
charges have approximately $917 of net fixed aseetgining or an average of $131 per club. Thelsilss that did
not have impairment charges have $4,786 of netlfassets remaining or an average of $798 per kldmdition,
the Company recorded an impairment charge of $1g22tked assets related to the decision to tweecldubs pric
to their lease expiration dates.

5. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

Goodwill has been allocated to reporting units tasely reflect the regions served by our foudéraames:
New York Sports Clubs“NYSC"), Boston Sports Clubs (“BSC”), Washington@®s Clubs (“WSC") and
Philadelphia Sports Clubs (“PSC”), with certain moemote clubs that do not benefit from a regichater being
considered single reporting units (“Outlier Clubat)d our three clubs located in Switzerland (“SSCTHe
Company has three Outlier Clubs with goodwill. WI8&C and PSC regions do not have any goodwill. Hieyng
value of goodwill was allocated to the Companyjsorting units pursuant to SFAS No. 14&hodwill and Other
Intangible Asset.

In each of the quarters ended March 31, 2008 afid,28e Company performed its annual impairmerit Téwe
March 31, 2008 and 2007 impairment tests suppahtedecorded goodwill balances and as such no
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impairment of goodwill was required. The valuatafrintangible assets requires assumptions and asgmf many
critical factors, including revenue and market gitovoperating cash flows and discount rates.

In accordance with SFAS No. 142, the Company coteglan interim evaluation of the goodwill by rejrogt
unit due to the existence of a triggering everafd3ecember 31, 2008. The determination as to vérethiriggering
event exists that would warrant an interim revidwaodwill and whether a write-down of goodwillngcessary
involves significant judgment based on short-terd Bpng-term projections of the Company. Due todigmificant
decrease in market capitalization and a declitkérnCompany’s business outlook primarily due to the
macroeconomic environment, the Company performeidtanm impairment test as of December 31, 2008.

Goodwill impairment testing is a two-step proced®p 1 involves comparing the fair value of the @any’s
reporting units to their carrying amount. If thér fealue of the reporting unit is greater thanciésrying amount,
there is no impairment. If the reporting unit'sigémg amount is greater than the fair value, treoad step must be
completed to measure the amount of impairmentyf &tep 2 calculates the implied fair value of dwil by
deducting the fair value of all tangible and intéutg assets, excluding goodwill, of the reportimgtdrom the fair
value of the reporting unit as determined in Stephe implied fair value of goodwill determinedthis step is
compared to the carrying value of goodwill. If ihgplied fair value of goodwill is less than the igéng value of
goodwill, an impairment loss is recognized equahwdifference. The result of the Company’s analyslicated
that there would be no remaining implied valueiladttable to the Boston Sports Clubs reporting ukicordingly,
in December 2008, the Company wrote off all $15,86Goodwill associated with this reporting unida$il,843 at
two of the three Outlier Clubs that did not ben&bim being part of regional clusters. The Compditynot have a
goodwill impairment charge in the NYSC region agsult of the interim test given the profitabildf this unit.
There is one remaining Outlier Club with goodwaltaling $137.

Fair value was determined by using a weighted coatliin of two market-based approaches (weighted 25%
each) and an income approach (weighted 50%), s€timbination was deemed to be the most indicafiviee
Company’s fair value in an orderly transaction betw market participants. Under the market-baserbappes, the
Company utilized information regarding the Compahyg, Companys industry as well as publicly available indu:
information to determine earnings multiples an@sahultiples that are used to value the Commargporting units
Under the income approach, the Company determiieddlue based on estimated future cash flowsiofie
reporting unit, discounted by an estimated weiglaegrage cost of capital, which reflects the ovdezkl of
inherent risk of a reporting unit and the rateaifirn an outside investor would expect to earnefahing the fair
value of a reporting unit is judgmental in natunel aequires the use of significant estimates asdraptions,
including revenue growth rates and operating margiiscount rates and future market conditions,raputhers.

Solely for purposes of establishing inputs for fdie value calculations described above relategiomdwill
impairment testing, the Company made the follovasgumptions. The Company developed a financiatéste
through 2013 for all reporting units with the extiep of BSC, which was extended through 2016. TB&EB
reporting unit has a larger proportion of less matiubs than the other reporting units. The Comppesed discount
rates ranging between 12.1% and 18.2%, compountathhrevenue growth ranging from (0.7%) to 5.4% an
terminal growth rates ranging between 1% and 3%s&tassumptions are calculated separately forrepohting
unit. The control premium used on all reportingtsinvas 15%, calculated as annual costs associétedhe
Company’s public listing and operating synergiest thiould be considered by a market participanteinvihg fair
value in a hypothetical transaction. The sum offétiievalues of the reporting units was reconctiethe Companyg
current market capitalization (based upon the Camwgastock price) plus the estimated control premiu

Given the current economic environment and the taicgies regarding the impact on the Company’siass,
there can be no assurance that the Company’s éstimad assumptions regarding the duration of tigeiag
economic downturn, or the period or strength obvecy, made for purposes of the Comparyoodwill impairmen
testing as of December 31, 2008 will prove to baueate predictions of the future. If the Company’s
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assumptions regarding forecasted revenue or mgrgimth rates of certain reporting units are notiexdd, the
Company may be required to record additional gobdvpairment charges in future periods, whethecannectior
with the Companys next annual impairment testing in the quarteedridarch 31, 2009 or subsequent to that, if
such change constitutes a triggering event outsfidee quarter from when the annual goodwill impeent test is
performed. It is not possible at this time to deti@e if any such future impairment charge woulditesr, if it does,
whether such charge would be material.

The change in the carrying amount of goodwill fréamuary 1, 2007 through December 31, 2008 areletia

the chart below.

Balance as of January 1, 200
Changes due to foreign currency exchange rateugitions

BSC

Outlier

SSC Clubs Total

$15,76¢ $ 965 $1,98C $50,11:

53 — 53

Balance as of December 31, 2007 15,76¢  1,01¢ 1,98( 50,16¢
Changes due to foreign currency exchange rateugitions — 54 — 54
Impairment of goodwil (15,766) — (1,849 (17,609
Balance as of December 31, 20( $ — $1,07C $ 137 $32,61(
Intangible assets as of December 31, 2008 and 2@0ds follows:
As of December 31, 200
Gross

Carrying Accumulated Net

Amount Amortization Intangibles
Membership list: $10,89C $ (10,83¢) $ 54
Covenant-noi-to-compete 1,68i (1,460 227
Beneficial least 223 (223) —

$12,80C $ (12,519 $ 281

As of December 31, 200
Gross

Carrying Accumulated Net

Amount Amortization Intangibles
Membership list: $11,67¢ $ (11,300 $  37¢
Covenant-noi-to-compete 1,151 (1,059 92
Beneficial least 223 (21€) 7

$13,05: $ (12,557H $ 477

The amortization expense of the above acquiredgilde assets for each of the three years ending

December 31, 2009, 2010 and 2011 is as follows:

Aggregate Amortization Expense for the Years Endinddecember 31

2009 $17C
2010 67
2011 44

$281
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Amortization expense of intangible assets for tharg ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 was $73
$445 and $630, respectively.
6. Accrued Expenses

Accrued expenses as of December 31, 2008 and 20%7sted of the following:

December 31

2008 2007
Accrued payrol $ 6,89¢ $ 8,14t
Accrued construction in progress and equipn 10,99¢ 9,75¢
Accrued occupancy cos 7,23¢ 7,47¢
Accrued insurance clain 3,93¢ 2,557
Accrued othe 6,49¢ 6,24¢

$35,56¢  $34,18¢

7. Long-Term Debt
Long-term debt as of December 31, 2008 and 2003istadl of the following:

December 31

2008 2007

Term Loan $181,76:  $183,61:
Revolving credit borrowing 19,00( 9,00
11% Senior Discount Note 137,24 123,31(
Notes payable for acquired busines — 99

338,01( 316,02:
Less: Current portion due within one yi 20,85( 10,89¢
Long-term portion $317,16(  $305,12:

The aggregate long-term debt obligations maturimigng the next five years and thereafter are devia:

Amount Due
Year Ending December 31
2009 $ 20,85(
2010 1,85(
2011 1,85(
2012 1,85(
2013 174,36:
Thereafte 137,24

$ 338,01

Notes payable were incurred upon the acquisitioracibus clubs and are subject to the Companyts f)
offset for possible post-acquisition adjustmenisiag out of operations of the acquired clubs. ABecember 31,
2008 there were no such notes outstanding.
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February 4, 2004 Offering of Senior Discount Notes

On February 4, 2004, TSI Holdings completed anroféeof the 11% senior discount notes due in 2Qhd (
“Senior Discount Notes”). TSI Holdings receivedtat of $124,807 in connection with this issuarfeees and
expenses related to this transaction totaled appairly $4,378. No cash interest is required tpdie prior to
February 2009. The accreted value of each SensrdDint Note will increase from the date of issuanuéd
February 1, 2009, at a rate of 11.0% per annum ocomgbed semi-annually. Subsequent to February 19 2a86h
interest on the Senior Discount Notes will accroé be payable senainnually in arrears February 1 and August
each year, commencing August 1, 2009. The Sengrddint Notes are structurally subordinated and:t¥iey
rank junior to all indebtedness of TSI, LLC (fordyefSl, Inc.). The debt of TSI Holdings is not gaateed by TSI,
Inc. and TSI Holdings relies on the cash flows 81,Tinc., subject to restrictions contained in ithdenture
governing the Senior Discount Notes, to servicelétst.

On July 7, 2006, the Company paid $62,875 to red&s¥h of the Senior Discount Notes. The aggregate
accreted value of the Senior Discount Notes omdéHemption date totaled $56,644 and early termaindges
totaled $6,231. Deferred financing costs totalingP89 were written off and fees totaling $24 werairred in
connection with this early extinguishment. As oftBmber 31, 2008 the accreted value of the Sen&rddint Note
totaled $137,247 and on February 1, 2009, the textralue equaled its principal maturity value 88,450.

2003 Senior Credit Facility

On April 16, 2003, the Company successfully congalet refinancing of its debt. This refinancing irded an
offering of $255,000 of the 9 5/ 8% Senior Noti® (‘2003 Senior Notesthat would have matured April 15, 20
and the entering into of a senior secured revoleieglit facility (the “2003 Senior Credit Facilitythat would have
expired on April 15, 2008. The transaction feeamfroximately $9,600 have been accounted for asdef
financing costs. The 2003 Senior Notes accruedastat &/ 8% per annum and interest was payable semiannually
on April 15 and October 15. Effective July 7, 200& 2003 Senior Credit Facility was amended toeiase
permitted borrowings from $50,000 to $75,000. AisaJuly, the Company paid commitment fees tota$tg5s
related to this amendment. Loans under the 200®6€redit Facility would have at TSI’s option, lointerest at
either the administrative agent’s base rate pl0%3or the Eurodollar rate plus 4.0%, as definetthérelated credit
agreement. TSI was required to pay a commitmendf@75% per annum on the daily unutilized amount.

On May 18, 2006, the 2003 Senior Credit Facilityswaanended to consent to: (1) the use by TSI Hotdafighe
net cash proceeds received by TSI Holdings froriP&nhto redeem the Senior Discount Notes in an agdee
amount not to exceed 35% of the original princgralount at maturity of such notes and with the badaof such ne
cash proceeds not so used to be contributed am@eo equity contribution to TSI; (2) the use by Bbthe cash
proceeds received pursuant to clause (1) aboveastdon hand to tender for a portion of the 2008d8&otes and
(3) the amendments of and the waivers with resppedertain provisions of the Indenture governing 2003 Senior
Notes.

On June 8, 2006, the Company paid $93,001 to reé&5001 of the outstanding principal of the 20@Bi6r
Notes, together with $6,796 of early terminatioesfand $1,204 of accrued interest. Deferred fimancosts
totaling $1,601 were written off and fees total#®22 were incurred in connection with this earljirguishment.

2007 Senior Credit Facility

On February 27, 2007, the Company entered intd68 820 senior secured credit facility (the “200hiBe
Credit Facility”). The 2007 Senior Credit Facilitpnsists of a $185,000 term loan facility (the ‘fidroan
Facility”) and the $75,000 revolving credit fagilifthe “Revolving Loan Facility”) and an incremelntgrm loan
commitment facility in the maximum amount of $10@Qwhich borrowing thereunder is subject to coaruie witt
certain conditions precedent and by TSI and agraeapon certain terms and conditions thereof betvike
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participating lenders and TSI. The 2007 Senior €ieatility replaced the 2003 Senior Credit FagiliEees and
expenses associated with this transaction wereappately $335.

A portion of the proceeds were used to purchas®,$46 aggregate principal amount of the 2003 Sevdades
outstanding on February 27, 2007 and the balantieegiroceeds were irrevocably deposited in aroesaccount
to purchase the remaining $4,459, together withpramium of $215, on April 15, 2007, the redemptéate.
Accrued interest on the 2003 Senior Notes totef®@13 was also paid at closing. The Company irecu$8,759 o
tender premium and approximately $300 in fees apérses related to the tender of the 2003 SenitgdNo

Net deferred financing costs related to the 20031 Facility and the 2003 Senior Notes totaling
approximately $3,209 were expensed in the firsttgunaf 2007.

Borrowings under the Term Loan Facility will, at [TELC’s option, bear interest at either the adrsirative
agent’s base rate plus 0.75% or its Eurodollarpats 1.75%, each as defined in the related cegglitement. The
Term Loan Facility matures on the earlier of Feby¥, 2014, or August 1, 2013, if the Senior DigtoNotes are
still outstanding. TSI, LLC is required to repa®% of principal, or $463 per quarter beginninglane 30, 2007.
As of December 31, 2008, the Company has paid 8328utstanding principal.

The Revolving Loan Facility expires on February 2012 and borrowings under the facility currendly TSI,
LLC’s option, bear interest at either the admiriBite agens base rate plus 1.25% or the Eurodollar rate 2R5%
as defined in the related credit agreement. The@REg Loan Facility contains a maximum total lemge covenant
ratio of 4.25:1.00, which covenant is subject tmpbance, on a consolidated basis, only duringpééréod in which
borrowings and letters of credit are outstandirege¢binder. As of December 31, 2008, the Company&rdge ratio
was 2.35:1.00. As of December 31, 2008, there %2000 of borrowings outstanding, at an interatst of 4.5%
and outstanding letters of credit issued totale®l 2. The unutilized portion of the Revolving Ldaacility as of
December 31, 2008 was $42,808.

TSI, LLC’s applicable base rate and Eurodollar mtggins and commitment commission percentage wity
the Company’s consolidated secured leverage ralie following table summarizes the interest rategina and
commitment commission percentages applicable aetbeparate secured ratio levels as follows:

Revolving Loans Applicable
Base Commitment
Rate Eurodollar Commission
Level Secured Leverage Ratio Margin Margin Percentage
3 Greater than 1.50 to 1.( 1.25% 2.28% 0.5(%
2 Greater than 1.00 to 1.00 but equal to or less 1had to 1.0( 1.0(% 2.0(% 0.5(%
1 Equal to or less than 1.00 to 1. 0.75% 1.7%% 0.37%%

The Company’s secured leverage ratio as of DeceBthe2008 was within the Level 3 range at 2.35:1T0@
Company has been within the Level 3 range sincerieigtinto the Revolving Loan Facility in 2007 agxpects to
be in this range throughout 2009

Fair Market Value

Based on quoted market prices, the Senior Disddotes had a fair value of approximately $83,070 and
$130,835 at December 31, 2008 and December 31, r28peéctively. The Term Loan Facility had fair \eduof
approximately $126,034 and $168,924 at Decembe2®18 and December 31, 2007, respectively. The Texam
Facility had very limited trading volume during ttteee month period ended December 31, 2008 ameftite, this
fair value was based on trading activity in thedhjuarter of 2008 and adjusted downward refledtiregrelative
trend in the Loan Credit Default Swap Index (LCDXhe Company had short-term debt of $19,000 oulstgron
the Revolving Loan Facility, which approximates fealue.
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Interest Expense

The Company’s interest expense and capitalizedesteelated to funds borrowed to finance clublitzes
under construction for the years ended Decembe2(18, 2007 and 2006 were as follows:

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006
Interest costs expens $24,46°%  $26,40( $35,49¢
Interest costs capitaliz¢ 632 1,22¢ 867
Total interest expense and amounts capital $25,097 $27,62¢ $36,36:

The Company entered into a professional serviceemgent with Bruckmann, Rosser, Sherrill & Co., Inc.
(“BRS”), a stockholder of the Company for strategid financial advisory services on December 18618s of
December 31, 2007, BRS owned 26.9% of the Companytsanding common stock. Fees for such serwcaeish
are included in general and administrative expensese $250 per annum. On September 16, 2008, BRB4ted
its ownership in the Company. As a result, immexdyatollowing the distribution, BRS held no shaodghe
Company’s common stock and thus the professiomaicgeagreement was terminated. No amounts werd3& &
at December 31, 2008 and 2007.

9. Leases

The Company leases office, warehouse and multeatiomal facilities and certain equipment under-non
cancelable operating leases. In addition to base tfee facility leases generally provide for adtial rent based on
increases in real estate taxes and other costmiCkrases give the Company the right to acqhiedaased facility
at defined prices based on fair value and prowidedlditional rent based upon defined formulasgénue, cash
flow or operating results of the respective faigt Under the provisions of certain of these Isatfe Company is
required to maintain irrevocable letters of creditich amounted to $1,354 as of December 31, 2008.

The leases expire at various times through Oct8beP029 and certain leases may be extended at the
Company’s option.
Future minimum rental payments under non-cancelapdgating leases are as follows:

Minimum
Annual Rental

Year Ending December 31

2009 $ 82,06
2010 82,69¢
2011 82,10:
2012 77,51¢
2013 73,63t
Aggregate thereaftt 511,06

Rent expense, including the effect of deferredddabilities, for the years ended December 3182Q007 and
2006 was $98,763, $87,738 and $79,677, respecti8eigh amounts include additional rent of $18, 118,786 an
$15,119, respectively.

The Company, as landlord, leases space to thitgl fEarants under non-cancelable operating leasks an
licenses. In addition to base rent, certain lepsegide for additional rent based on increasegah estate taxes,
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indexation, utilities and defined amounts basetheroperating results of the lessee. The leasdreeadpvarious
times through March 31, 2028. Future minimum rentateivable under noncancelable leases are as/ll

Minimum
Annual Rental

Year Ending December 31

2009 $ 4,47:
2010 4,35¢
2011 4,01¢
2012 3,66¢
2013 2,991
Aggregate thereaftt 35,91¢

Rental income, including non-cash rental incomeftie years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and\2866
$4,452, $3,325 and $2,990, respectively. Such atsoncude additional rental charges above the berseof $735
$102 and $90, respectively. We own the buildingra of our club locations which houses a rentaréthat
generated $1,739, $1,059 and $1,041 of rental iedomthe years ended December 31, 2008, 2007 @G0, 2
respectively.

10. Stockholders’ Equity
a. Capitalization

Prior to the IPO, the Comparsytertificate of incorporation provided for theuasce of up to 42,500,000 she
of capital stock, consisting of 35,000,000 shafeSlass A Voting Common Stock (“Class Aar value $0.001 pr
share; and 7,000,000 shares of Class B Non-votorgr@on Stock (“Class B”), par value of $0.001 parshThis
also included 200,000 shares of Series B Pref&teck (“Series B”) par value $1.00 per share; #ueemable
100,000 shares Senior stock, par value $1.00 geesand 200,000 shares of Series A stock, pae\&l00 per
share. The Class A common share amounts have Heeted for the 14 for one stock split describetbhe

The Company'’s certificate of incorporation adoptedonnection with the IPO provides for 105,000,80ares
of capital stock, consisting of 5,000,000 shareBreferred Stock, par value $0.001 per share @neférred Stock”
and 100,000,000 shares of Common Stock, par valli®$ per share (the “Common Stock”).

The registration statement filed in connection wit Company’s IPO, as filed with the SEC, was aled
effective on June 1, 2006. The Company’s shar€&paimon Stock began trading on the NASDAQ Stock Mark
on June 2, 2006 under the symbol CLUB. In connactitgh the IPO, the Board of Directors approvediddr one
common stock split. See Note 1 for further detaglating to the Company’s IPO.

b. Common Stock Option

Grants vest in full at various dates between Deezrh, 2008 and December 4, 2018. The vestingrtdioe
grants will be accelerated in the event that cerdaffined events occur including the achievememtofual equity
values or the sale of the Company. The term of gaght is generally ten years.

In accordance with APB No. 2Bccounting for Stock Issued to Employettee Company recorded unearned
compensation in connection with the stock opticangg in 2001. Such amount is included within stoddtérs’
deficit and represented the difference betweemstienated fair value of the Class A stock on the ddamendmel
or grant, respectively, and the exercise price.domed compensation is amortized as compensatia@nsgpover th
vesting period. For the year ended December 315,280o0rtization of unearned compensation total€i®$5
Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted SEZ8R for the calculation of stock-based
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compensation expense (See Note 2, Summary of BigmifAccounting Policies — Stodkased Compensation) &
eliminated the unearned compensation.

As of December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, a totdP6{384, 503,870 and 624,080 Common Stock optiens
exercisable, respectively.

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopteddinealue recognition provisions of SFAS 123R ngsthe
modified prospective transition method and therefoas not restated results for prior periods. Uthertransition
method, stock-based compensation expense for trs gaded December 31, 2006 and 2007 include ccsapen
expense for all stock-based compensation awardsegtgrior to, but not yet vested as of Januag006 and 2007,
respectively, based on the grant date fair valtimased in accordance with the original provisidr8&AS 123 (See
Note 2, Summary of Significant Accounting Polic— Stock-Based Compensation for further information)

At December 31, 2008, the Company had 354,120 &7 440 stock options outstanding under its 2004K
Option Plan and 2006 Stock Option Plan, respegtividhe total compensation expense, classified witayroll anc
related on the consolidated statements of incoeiated to these plans was $1,155, $913 and $1¢t36d years
ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respeactivel

On May 30, 2006, the Board of Directors of the Campapproved the 2006 Stock Option Plan. The 2006
Stock Option Plan authorizes the Company to isgu® 1,300,000 shares of Common Stock to employpen the
exercise of Options Rights, Stock Appreciation RsgRestricted Stock, in payment of Performancea&har other
stock-based awards. Under the 2006 Stock Optiam, Btack options may be granted at a price basddeofair
market value of the stock on the date the optiagrasted, generally are not subject to re-pricing ao stock option
will be exercisable more than ten years after tite df grant. In March 2008, the Board of Directadspted the
Amended and Restated 2006 Stock Incentive Plarghiwhimong other things, increased the aggregatbeuof
shares of Common Stock issuable under the plan2®01000 shares to a total of 2,500,000 shares2066 Optior
Plan, as amended, was approved by stockholdens 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders on May R& As
of December 31, 2008, there were 1,016,969 shasmble to be issued under the Plan.
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The following table summarizes the stock optionvitgtfor the years ended December 31, 2006, 20@¥ a

2008:

Weighted

Average

Exercise

Common Price

Balance at January 1, 20 1,237,12. 6.1¢€
Granted 545,86( 11.5¢
Exercisec (58,38¢) 7.5C
Cancellec (68,600 6.0C
Forfeited (221,039 5.42
Balance at December 31, 2C 1,434,96! 8.2¢
Granted 464,50( 17.63
Exercisec (275,089 7.5C
Cancellec (5,925 11.22
Forfeited (121,420 12.0¢
Balance at December 31, 2C 1,497,03! 11.01
Granted 903,37! 4.8
Exercisec (195,700 6.1C
Cancellec (83,070 10.4¢
Forfeited (240,079 12.5¢
Balance at December 31, 2C 1,881,56! 8.3¢

The following table summarizes stock option infotimia as of December 31, 2008:

Options Outstanding
Weighted-

Options Exercisable

Average Weighteo- Weighteo-
Remaining Average Average
Number Contractual Exercise Number Exercise
Outstanding Life Price Exercisable Price

Common
1999 grant: — — 3 — — $ —
2000 grant: 12,80(C 12 month 5.3¢€ 12,80( 5.3¢€
2003 grant: 29,96( 48 month 10.2¢ 29,96( 10.2¢
2004 amended and repriced 1999 gr. — — — — —
2004 amended and repriced 2000 gr: 39,20C 12 month 1.61 39,20( 1.61
2004 amended and repriced 2001 gr 44,80C 41 month 3.3¢ — —
2004 amended and repriced 2003 gr: 137,76( 48 month 6.54 94,08( 6.54
2005 grant: 72,80C 72 month 6.54 25,76( 6.54
2006 grant: 327,74( 86 month 11.87 142,75( 12.0¢
2007 grant: 313,12! 103 month 17.72 81,83: 17.8i
2008 grant: 903,37! 117 month 4.8¢ —
Total Grants 1,881,56! 8.3¢ 426,38: 10.3¢
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Options granted during the year ended Decembe2(18 to employees of the Company and members of the
Company'’s Board of Directors were as follows:

Expectec

Number of Exercise Black Schole: Grant Date Amount Dividend Risk Free Term

Date Options Price Valuation Fair Value Expensec¢ Volatility Yield Interest Rate (Years)
January 2, 200 5,000 $ 9.3t $ 42¢ % 47 $ 20 45.% 0.C% 2.71% 5.5C
March 4, 200¢ 100,00( $ 7.7 $ 38: $ 77 $ 60 47.(% 0.C% 3.0(% 6.2
May 6, 200€ 100,00( $ 9.54 $ 497 $ 954 $ 65 49.8% 0.C% 3.3(% 6.2F
June 13, 200 120,00( $ 9.8t $ 518 $ 1,18( $ 67 50.2% 0.C% 3.3(% 6.2t
December 4, 200 578,37! $ 244 $ 15 $ 3152 % 14 66.1% 0.C% 1.7(% 6.2

Total 903,37¢

Options granted under the 2004 Stock Option Plareigdly qualify as “incentive stock options” undbe
U.S. Internal Revenue Code. Options granted urde2®06 Stock Option Plans generally qualify am“gaalified
stock options” under the U.S. Internal Revenue Cdtie exercise price of a stock option is genermdjyal to the
fair market value of the Company’s Common Stockhenoption grant date.

The fair value of share-based payment awards wasated using the Black-Scholes option pricing madth
the following assumptions and weighted averageviaines as follows as of December 31, 2008:

Weighted-
Weighted- Average
Average Remaining Aggregate
Exercise Contractual Intrinsic
Shares Price Term Value
(In thousands, (In years) ($'000s)
Outstanding at December 31, 2( 1,881,560 $ 8.3¢ 8C $ 49¢
Vested at December 31, 20 426,38 $ 10.3: 58 $ 62
Exercisable at December 31, 2( 426,380 $ 10.3¢ 58 $ 62

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table abopeasents the total pre-tax intrinsic value (théetdénce
between the estimated fair value of the Compang'sraon stock and the exercise price, multipliedh®/riumber
of in-the-money options) that would have been nexbby the option holders had all option holdersreised their
options on December 31, 2008. This amount changssdoon the fair market value of the Company’skstbhe
total intrinsic value of options exercised was $&80the year ended December 31, 2008.

As of December 31, 2008, a total of $3,389 unremeghcompensation cost related to stock optioes|rected
to be recognized, depending upon the likelihood &lcaelerated vesting targets are met in futurisgerover a
weighted-average period of 3.5 years.
c. Common Stock Grant

Restricted Stock Grants

The following restricted stock grants were issuedmployees of the Company in the year ended Deee8ih
2008. The shares contain vesting restrictions a&stl 5% per year over four years on the annivedatsy of the
grants.
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2008
Number of  Exercise  Grant Date Amount Unrecognizec
Date Shares Price Fair Value Expensec  Compensatior
June 13, 200 25,000 $ 98: $ 24€ $ 27 % 20C
December 4, 200 6,000 $ 244 $ 15 — 14
Total 31,00( $ 27 % 214

The exercise price and fair value per share ofekticted stock grants was the closing stock mitéhe date
of grant. The total unrecognized compensation esg@ef $214 is expected to be recognized througleDber 4,
2012.

Non-Restricted Stock Grants

For each of the quarters ended March 31, 2008, 30n2008, September 30, 2008 and December 31, #8098
Company issued non-restricted common stock grarttseet Company Board of Directors. The total fair value of
shares issued was expensed upon the grant datakshares issued were:

Number of Exercise Grant Date

Date Shares Price Fair Value
March 31, 200¢ 312 $ 641 $ 20
June 30, 200 2,406  $ 9.3¢ 22
September 30, 20( 3,68¢ $ 6.1C 22
December 31, 20C 7,05:  $ 3.1¢ 22

Total 16,26¢ $ 86

d. Common Stock Repurchase

On April 29, 2008, the Board of Directors approweplan to repurchase up to an aggregate of $2%000
Common Stock. The repurchase program is expecteontiinue through December 31, 2009. The stockrobaise
program may be modified, extended or terminatethbyBoard of Directors at any time.

During 2008, the company repurchased 1,848,96@&slwdrcommon stock at a cost of $4,645. As of
December 31, 2008, $20,335 remained availablesfounchase under the existing repurchase authanizati

Subsequent to December 31, 2008 and through Feti26aP009, the Company repurchased 2,041,843 share
of common stock at a total cost of $5,273.

11. Asset Acquisitions

For the year ended December 31, 2007 the Companpleted the acquisition of assets of a fitness.cliie
acquisition was not material to the financial piosif results of operations or cash flows of the @any. The table
below summarizes the aggregate purchase priceharpulirchase price allocation to assets acquirethéyear
ended December 31, 2007:

Number of clubs acquire 1
Purchase prices payable in cash at clo $4,45(
Total purchase prices $4,45(
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Allocation of purchase price

Fixed asset $4,62¢
Other net liabilities acquire (17¢)
Total allocation of purchase prices $4,45(

For financial reporting purposes, this acquisitieas accounted for under the purchase method aodrdiagly.
the purchase prices have been assigned to the asekliabilities acquired on the basis of thespeztive fair value
on the date of acquisition. The results of operatiof the clubs have been included in the Comparynsolidated
financial statements from the acquisition date.

12. Revenue from Club Operations
Revenues from club operations for the years endaiDber 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 are summarizedbelo

Years Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006
Membership due $400,87: $374,63: $346,20:
Initiation fees 13,72 12,31¢ 9,56:
Personal training revent 61,75: 56,10¢ 49,51
Other club ancillary revent 24,32¢ 24,24 22,86
Total club revenu 500,67¢ 467,29¢ 428,13t
Fees and Other reven 6,031 5,61¢ 4,94
Total revenus $506,70¢ $472,91' $433,08(

13. Corporate Income Taxes
Income before taxes for the years ended Decemh&08B, 2007 and 2006 consisted of the following:

Year Ended December 31

2008 2007 2006
United State: $10,497 $20,99: $4,32¢
Foreign 1,04¢ 797 1,03%

$11,54: $21,79.  $5,362

The provision (benefit) for income taxes for thageended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006 cahsistie

following:
Year Ended December 31, 2008
State anc
Federal Foreign Local Total
Current $4,711 $ 26€ $ 2,14t $7,12¢
Deferred 3,23¢ — (1,157 2,07¢

$7,941 $ 26 $ 98¢  $9,20¢
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Current
Deferred

Current
Deferred

Year Ended December 31, 2007

State anc

Federal Foreign Local Total
$15,887 $ 18z $ 3,98: $20,05:
(9,377) — (2,530  (11,90)
$(6,510 $ 182 $1,45¢ $ 8,14f

Year Ended December 31, 2006
State anc

Federal Foreign Local Total
$7181 $ 184 $1,40¢ $8,77¢
(5,141) — (2,919 (8,059
$2,04C $ 184 $(1,509 $ 71E

The components of deferred tax assets consisedbtlowing items:

Deferred tax asset:
Deferred lease liabilitie

Deferred revenu

Deferred compensation expense incurred in conrrestith stock option:

State net operating loss ce-forwards

Interest accretio

Accruals, reserves and ott

Deferred tax liabilities
Fixed assets and intangible as:

Deferred cost

Net deferred tax asse

December 31

2008 2007
$14,47¢  $14,03(
10,23 11,47
1,262 80€
1,01¢ 1,57¢
22,81¢ 17,81«
7,84¢ 4,781
57,65: 50,481
9,44¢  (1,53])
5,93¢ 7,67¢
15,38’ 6,14z
42,26¢  44,34F

As of December 31, 2008, the Company has pre-apped state net operating loss (“NOL”) carry-fordsiof
approximately $1,465 and post-apportioned state Marty-forwards of $15,622. Such amounts expirgvben
December 31, 2021 and December 31, 2026. The Contyznconcluded that it is more likely than not tha net

deferred tax asset balance as of December 31,20 realized.

The Company’s foreign pre-tax earnings relatedhéoSwiss entity were $1,044, $797 and $1,037 ®ytars
ended December 31, 2008, 2007 and 2006, respgctindithe related current tax provision were $3d82 and

$184, respectively.
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The differences between the U.S. federal statutamyme tax rate and the Company’s effective tas vatre as
follows for the years ended December 31, 2008, 201i72006:

Years Ended
December 31,
2008 2007 2006

Federal statutory tax ra 35% 35% 35%
Goodwill impairment 41% — —
State and local income taxes, net of federal tavefie 16 6 12
Change in state effective income tax 1 1 — (5)
State tax benefit related to self insura a1y @ @3
Foreign rate differentie @ @ (€D}
Valuation allowanct - — (32
Discrete state income tax charge related to |POg&ts — — 14
Other permanent differenc 1 1 3

80% 37% 13%

The 2008 effective tax rate of 80% was higher tenU.S. statutory tax rate primarily due to thedwill
impairment of clubs that were acquired in stockeldaisansactions in our Boston Sports club region.

The 2006 effective tax rate of 13% was lower thenl.S. statutory tax rate primarily due to a taréfit from
a corporate restructuring that allowed the Compgamgcognize certain state deferred tax assetswa previoush
reserved through a valuation allowance and a resurement of certain state deferred tax assetstidddlly, the
2006 effective tax rate was negatively impacted mpnrecurring income tax charge to reflect theicédn in tax
benefits associated with its use of the proceeaxs the IPO.

The Company has not provided for U.S. federal ine@md foreign withholding taxes on the undistribute
earnings of our non-U.S. subsidiary subsequentddtt as calculated for income tax purposes, scau
accordance with the provisions of Accounting Piptes Board Opinion No. 23, Accounting for Income@a—
Special Areas (“APB 23") we intend to reinvest tnearnings outside the U.S. indefinitely.

In June 2006, the FASB issued an interpretatidBFAS No. 109Accounting for Income Tax¢4-IN 48”).
This interpretation clarifies the accounting focartainty in income taxes by prescribing a minimprobability
threshold that a tax position must meet befor@antial statement benefit is recognized. The Compdopted
FIN 48 effective January 1, 2007 and did not haglange to the liability for unrecognized tax béseds a result «
the adoption. At January 1, 2007 and December @18,2he Company had $1,155 of unrecognized tagftisnAs
of December 31, 2008, $751 represented the amdumrecognized tax benefits that, if recognizeduldaffect
the Company’s effective tax rate in any future pési As of December 31, 2007 and 2008, interesinbecognized
tax benefits was $39 and $92, respectively. The fizmm recognizes both interest accrued related recognized
tax benefits and penalties in income tax experid&s.policy was upon adoption of FIN 48. The Comphad no
accruals for interest or penalties as of JanuapQy.

The Company files Federal income tax returns, eidorjurisdiction return and multiple state anddloc
jurisdiction tax returns. The state of New York queted its examination of the years 2003, 2004205,
resulting in total additional tax payments of $6eTCompany is no longer subject to examinatioritsdiederal
income tax returns by the Internal Revenue Seffeicgears 2003 and prior.

14. Contingencies

On or about March 1, 2005, in an action sty&dah Cruz, et al v. Town Sports International, teaw York
Sports Cluh plaintiffs commenced a purported class actionregahe Company in the Supreme Court, New York
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County, seeking unpaid wages and alleging that MSC, violated various overtime provisions of theN¥ork
State Labor Law with respect to the payment of wagecertain trainers and assistant fithness marsa@er or about
November 2, 2005, the complaint and the lawsuievetayed upon agreement of the parties pendingati@uali On
or about November 28, 2006, the plaintiffs gavaasothat they wished to lift the stay. On or abdwrhe 18, 2007,
the same plaintiffs commenced a second purportes @ction against the Company in the Supreme Qdent
York County, seeking unpaid wages and alleging Ti®it LLC violated various wage payment and ovegtim
provisions of the New York State Labor Law withpest to the payment of wages to all New York putgaihourly
employees. While we are unable at this time torestg the likelihood of an unfavorable outcome ertbtential
loss to the Company in the event of such an outceraentend to contest these cases vigorously. Ddipg upon
the ultimate outcome, these matters may have arislagelverse effect on the Company’s consolidaieaicial
position, results of operations, or cash flows.

In addition to the litigation discussed above, @wmpany is involved in various other lawsuits, mlaiand
proceedings incident to the ordinary course ofess. The results of litigation are inherently wdictable. Any
claims against us, whether meritorious or not, d¢dnd time consuming, result in costly litigatioeguire significant
amounts of management time and result in diversfaignificant resources. The results of theserdthesuits,
claims and proceedings cannot be predicted wittaicey. The Company believes, however, that thienalte
resolution of these current matters will not haveaterial adverse effect on the Company'’s finarstiaements
taken as a whole.

15. Employee Benefit Plan

The Company maintains a 401(k) defined contribufitam and is subject to the provisions of the Erypgéo
Retirement Income Security Act of 1974 (“ERISA™h& Plan provides for the Company to make discratipn
contributions. The Plan was amended, effective dgnii, 2001, to provide for an employer matchingtabution in
an amount equal to 25% of the participant’s contidn with a limit of five hundred dollars per intiual, per
annum. Employer matching contributions totaling @&8d $176 were made in March 2008 and March 2007,
respectively, for the Plan years ended Decembe2@17 and 2006, respectively. The Company expeatsake an
employer matching contribution of approximately $20 March 2009 for the Plan year ended Decembg308.

16. Quarterly Financial Data (Unaudited)

2008
First Second Third Fourth
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
(b)
Net revenue $126,32( $129,397 $128,10¢ $122,88'
Operating income (los! 14,081 16,46¢ 11,58: (9,31))
Net income 4,811 6,801 3,84( (13,119
Earnings (loss) per share:

Basic $ 01 $ 026 $ 0.1t $ (0.5))
Diluted $ 018 $ 026 $ 014 $ (0.5)
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2007

First Second Third Fourth

Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter

(c) (d)
Net revenue $115,37° $119,77¢ $118,88¢ $118,87:
Operating incom: 12,41 16,42« 13,871 15,12¢
Net income (loss (3,80)) 6,36¢ 5,07t 6,00¢

Earnings (loss) per share!

Basic $ (015 $ 024 $ 01¢ $ 0.2¢
Diluted $ (015 $ 024 $ 01¢ $ 0.2

(a) Basic and diluted earnings per share are ceedgntependently for each quarter presented. Aauglsd the
sum of the quarterly earnings per share may n@eagith the calculated full year earnings per st

(b) Netincome and loss per share for the fourth quaft2008 include $16,925 and ($0.66), respectivaehthe
effect of impairments of fixed assets and goodwidi of tax.

(c) Netincome and earnings per share for the firsttquaf 2007 include $7,387 and $0.28, respectif@lythe
effect of loss on early extinguishment of debt, afdiax.

(d) Netincome and earnings per share for the fourtiitquof 2007 include $538 and $0.02, respectif@iyhe
effect of favorable tax adjustmen

17. Subsequent Events

Reduction in Force

On January 7, 2009, the Company terminated 2% ofdh-club staff and recorded approximately $464 in
related one-time severance expenses. The termsatie accounted for under SFAS No. 14&¢tounting for Cost
Associated with Exit or Disposal Activiti”. The expense will be recorded in Payroll andteslaexpenses on the
consolidated statement of income in the three nwatided March 31, 2009.

Common Stock Repurchases

Subsequent to December 31, 2008 and through Feti26aP009, the Company has repurchased
2,041,843 shares of common stock at a total coB5@73.
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The following is a list of all exhibits filed or @@rporated by reference as part of this Report:

Exhibit
No.

3.1

3.2

4.1

4.2

4.3

101

10.2

10.7

10.8

10.9

10.10

10.11

10.12

10.13

Description of Exhibit

Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporatiohawn Sports International Holdings, Inc. (the
“Registrant”) (incorporated by reference to Exhibit of the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on

for the quarter ended June 30, 20(

Second Amended and Restated By-laws of the Regigirecorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the
Registrar’'s Current Report oForm ¢-K, filed on May 19, 2008)

Indenture dated as of February 4, 2004 by and arfioagn Sports International Holdings, Inc, and The
Bank of New York (incorporated by reference to Eitdl.1 of the Company’s Registration Statement on
Form &4, File No. 33:-114210(the“ S-4 Registration Stateme”)).

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of Febrda®004, by and between Town Sports International
Holdings, Inc. and Deutsche Bank Securities Incdiporated by reference to Exhibit 4.3 of the

S-4 Registration Statemen

Form of Common Stock Certificate (incorporated éference to Exhibit 4.5 of the Registrant’s
Registration Statement (Form £-1, File No. 33:-126428(the “ S-1 Registration Stateme”)).

Credit Agreement dated as of February 27, 200nayamong Town Sports International Holdings, Inc.
and Town Sports International, LLC, and DeutschelkBErust Company Americas, as administrative
agent, Deutsche Bank Securities, Inc., as soledeathger and book manager, and a syndicate oétend
named therein (incorporated by reference to ExAibil of the Registrant’s Current Report on

Form &K filed March 5, 2007)

Subsidiaries Guaranty dated as of February 27,,20@de by each of the guarantors named therein
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of thegRtrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed Maggh
2007).

Borrower/Sub Pledge Agreement, dated as of Feb2iar2007, among each of the pledgors named
therein and Deutsche Bank Trust Company AmericaspHateral agent (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.3 of the Registra’s Current Report oForm &K filed March 5, 2007)

Security Agreement, dated as of February 27, 20@ide by each of the assignors named therein i favo
of Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as colatgent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit:
of the Registrar's Current Report oForm &K filed March 5, 2007)

Restructuring Agreement, dated as of February @426y and among Town Sports International, Inc.,
Town Sports International Holdings, Inc. BruckmaRosser, Sherril & Co., L.P. the individuals and
entities listed on the BRS Co-Investor SignaturgeBahereto, Farallon Capital Partners, L.P., karal
Capital Institutional Partners, L.P., RR CapitaitRers, L.P., and Farallon Capital InstitutionaitRars

I, L.P., Canterbury Detroit Partners, L.P., Cabtey Mezzanine Capital, L.P., Rosewood Capital, L.P
Rosewood Capital 1V, L.P., Rosewood Capital IV Adates, L.P., CapitalSource Holdings LLC, Keith
Alessi, Paul Arnold, and certain stockholders ef @ompany listed on the Executive Signature Pages
thereto (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 1df.the S-4 Registration Statemen

Registration Rights Agreement, dated as of Febrda®004, by and among Town Sports International
Holdings, Inc., Town Sports International, Inc.uBkmann, Rosser, Sherrill & Co., L.P. the individua
and entities listed on the BRS Co-Investor SigreaReages thereto, Farallon Capital Partners, L.P.,
Farallon Capital Institutional Partners, L.P., RRp@al Partners, L.P., and Farallon Capital Ingtnal
Partners Il, L.P., Canterbury Detroit Partners,. L Ganterbury Mezzanine Capital, L.P., Rosewood
Capital, L.P., Rosewood Capital IV, L.P., Rosew@apital IV Associates, L.P., CapitalSource Holdings
LLC, Keith Alessi, Paul Arnold, and certain stoclders of the Company listed on the Executive
Signature Pages thereto (incorporated by referenEghibit 10.5 of th¢S-4 Registration Statemen
Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Rights Agreeindated as of March 23, 2006 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.21 of the Registrant’s Aalfkeport on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2005 (t*2005Form 1(-K")).

Amendment No. 2 to the Registration Rights Agreeindarted as of May 30, 2006 (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.9.1 of tIS-1 Registration Statemen

Tax Sharing Agreement, dated as of February 4, 20p4nd among Town Sports International Holdi
Inc., Town Sports International, Inc., and the osiignatories thereto (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.6 of theS-4 Registration Statemen
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Exhibit
No.

1C.14

1C.15

1C.16

1C.18

1C.19

*10.2C

*10.21

*10.22

*10.23

*10.24
*10.25
*10.26

*10.27

*10.28

*10.29
*10.3C
*10.31
*10.34

*10.35
*10.36

Description of Exhibit

Pledge Agreement, dated as of February 4, 2004eleet Town Sports International Holdings, Inc. and
Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas, as collasgyaht, for the benefit of the Secured Creditoss (a
defined therein) (incorporated by reference to BixHi0.8 of theS-4 Registration Statemen

Security Agreement, dated as of February 4, 20@4lenby Town Sports International Holdings, Inc., in
favor of Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas,disteral agent, for the benefit of the Secured
Creditors (as defined therein) (incorporated bemfice to Exhibit 10.9 of the S-4 Registration
Statement)

Holdco Guaranty, dated as of February 4, 2004, rbgdeown Sports International Holdings, Inc.
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.10 of S-4 Registration Statemen

Professional Services Agreement, dated as of Deeefifh 1996, by and among TSI, Inc. and
Bruckmann, Rosser, Sherrill & Co., L.P. (‘BRS’)dorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 of the

S-4 Registration Statemen

First Amendment to Professional Services Agreendated June 1, 2004, by and between Town Sports
International Inc., and Bruckmann, Rosser, Sharil Co. (Incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2@t
the Compan’s Annual Report oForm 1(-K for the year ended December 31, 20!

2003 Executive Stock Agreement, dated July 23, 286%ng TSI, Inc., BRS, the Farallon Entities and
Randy Stephen (incorporated by reference to Exhihit2 of theS-4 Registration Statemen

Form of Executive Stock Agreement, dated as of lraatyr4, 2004, between Town Sports International
Holdings, Inc., BRS, the Farallon Entities and eatMark Smith, Robert Giardina, Richard Pyle, Alex
Alimanestianu, and Randall Stephen, respectivelgofiporated by reference to Exhibit 10.17 of the520
Form 1(-K).

2004 Common Stock Option Plan (incorporated byresfee to Exhibit 10.7 of the S-4 Registration
Statement)

Amendment No. 1 to the Registrant’s 2004 CommolsS@ption Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant’s Quarterly Repantform 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30,
2007).

Amended and Restated 2006 Stock Incentive Plar'20@6 Incentive Plan”) (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registre’s Current Report on For8-K filed on May 19, 2008}

Form of Incentive Stock Option Agreement pursuarthe 2006 Incentive Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Regist’'s Current Report oForm ¢-K filed August 8, 2006)

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement pursita the 2006 Incentive Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Regist’'s Current Report oForm ¢-K filed August 8, 2006)

Form of the Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreementfmn-Employee Directors pursuant to the 2006
Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to ExHibil of the Registrant’s Current Report on

Form &K filed March 28, 2007)

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement pursita the 2006 Incentive Plan (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Registrant’s QemdytReport on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2007

Form of Restricted Stock Agreement pursuant t0@6 Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 of the Registre’s Quarterly Report oForm 1(-Q for the quarter ended June 30, 20(

2006 Annual Performance Bonus Plan (incorporatecefarence to Exhibit 10.22 of the S-1 Registration
Statement

Non-Employee Director Compensation Summary (incorpatdty reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the
Registrar’s Current Report oForm &K filed March 28, 2007)

Offer Letter to David M. Kastin, Senior Vice Presid — General Counsel, dated July 23, 2007
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.35 of Registrant’'s Annual Report on Form 10-K for theryea
ended December 31, 200

Amendment to Offer Letter to David M. Kastin, dat@dcember 23, 2008 (filed herewitl

Letter Agreement, dated October 4, 2007, betweetRégistrant and Robert Giardina (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company’s Quayt&é&port on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended
September 30, 2007
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*10.37

*10.38

*10.39

*10.4C

*10.41
21
231
311
31.2

32.1
32.2

* Manag

Description of Exhibit

Letter Agreement, dated January 22, 2008, betwee=Réegistrant and Richard Pyle (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.37 of the Registrant’s AaifReport on Form 10-K for the year ended
December 31, 2007

Form of Executive Severance Agreement between #ggsRant and each Executive Officer of the
Registrant (incorporated by reference to ExhibiB8Mmf the Registrant’'s Annual Report on

Form 1(-K for the year ended December 31, 20!

Form of Amendment to Executive Severance Agreeietween the Registrant and each Executive
Officer of the Registrant (filed herewitt

Form of Director and Officer Indemnification Agreent (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.25 of
the S-1 Registration Statemer

Letter Agreement, dated March 14, 2008, betweemRggistrant and Randall Stephen (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Regist’'s Current Report oForm ¢-K/A filed on March 19, 2008
Subsidiaries of the Registre

Consent of PricewaterhouseCoopers |

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amende

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuantRule 13a-14(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amende

Section 1350 Certification of Chief Executive O#fic

Section 1350 Certification of Chief Financial O#ic

ement contract or compensatory plan or arraage



Exhibit 10.35

TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL
5 PENN PLAZA
NEW YORK, NY 10001

As of December 23, 2008

David M. Kastin

c/o Town Sports International Holdings, Inc.
5 Penn Plaza, WFloor

New York, NY 10001

Dear David:

The purpose of this letter amendment is torahike letter agreement between you and Town Spuadmational Holdings, LLC (the
“Company”) dated as of July 23, 2007 (the “Lettggréement”) in a manner intended to bring the Ledigneement into compliance with
Section 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 188@mended, and the regulations issued thereuhdwoardingly, your execution of this
letter amendment indicates your agreement to ttendment of the Letter Agreement as set forth below:

1. The second sentence of the Eighth Paragrbite Letter Agreement is amended in its entitetyead as follows:

“In the event of termination of your emmypmhent by the Company other than for “cause,” ydulve paid severance equal to one year
salary at your then current salary payable asostt in the following paragraph.”

2. The following paragraphs are added as remagvaphs immediately after the Eighth Paragragheot etter Agreement:

“The severance benefits described irstttmnd sentence of the Eighth Paragraph abovéS#gwerance Benefits”) shall be paid, minus
applicable deductions, including deductions forwathholding, in equal payments on the regular plytates during the one-year period
following your termination of employment. This ting of the commencement of benefits is subjecteorthirteenth Paragraph below.

All Severance Benefits shall be compldigdand no further Severance Benefits shall balplayafter, December 31 of the second
taxable year following the year in which your tenation of employment occurs.

Your entitlement to the payments of tie¥eSance Benefits described in the Eighth Paragshph be treated as the entitlement to a
series of separate payments for purposes of Se#fi9A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as @eeén(the “Code”).




For purposes of this offer letter, “tenatiion of employment” shall mean a “separationest/ie” as defined in Section 409A of the
Code and Treasury Regulations Section 1.409A-1{thowt regard to the optional alternative defimtcavailable thereunder.

Notwithstanding any other provisionslattoffer letter, any payment of the Severance Benender this offer letter that the Company
reasonably determines is subject to Section 4092)@)(i) of the Code shall not be paid or paymemtnmenced until six (6) months after
date of your termination of employment (or, if &l your death. On the earliest date on which faaghments can be commenced without
violating the requirements of Section 409A(a)(2{{(Bof the Code, you shall be paid, in a singlehclasnp sum, an amount equal to the
aggregate amount of all payments delayed pursoahetpreceding sentence.

It is intended that any amounts payablgeu this offer letter shall either be exempt frBaction 409A of the Code (including Treasury
regulations and other published guidance relaterkth) or shall otherwise comply with such Sectoras not to subject you to payment of
any additional tax, penalty or interest imposedausrigection 409A of the Code. The provision of tffer letter shall be construed and
interpreted to avoid the imputation of any suchitaithl tax, penalty or interest under Section 4@$Ahe Code yet preserve (to the nearest
extent reasonably possible) the intended benefilpla to you. Notwithstanding the foregoing, then@any makes no representations
regarding the tax treatment of any payments heraad you shall be responsible for any and gliegble taxes, other than the Company’s
share of employment taxes on the severance paypensied by the Agreement.”

3. _Effect of this AmendmenExcept as set forth herein, the Letter Agreememiains in full force and effect. All referenceghe Letter
shall be deemed references to the Letter as amdaydilis Amendment.

Sincerely,

By: /s/ James Rizz

Name: James Rizz
Title: Senior Vice Preside— Human Resource

Agreed to /s/ David Kastin
David M. Kastin

Date: December 23, 2008
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FORM OF AMENDMENT
TO
EXECUTIVE SEVERANCE AGREEMENT

This Amendment to the Executive Severance é&ment (this “Amendment”) by and between Town Sports International, LLKe(t
Company”), and (* Executive”) is effective as of December , 2008.

WHEREAS, Executive and the Company are pattiesn Executive Severance Agreement dated asabda22, 2008 (the Executive
Severance Agreement); and

WHEREAS, Executive and the Company desirarterad the Executive Severance Agreement in a mantegided to bring it into
compliance with the final regulations issued urfBlection 409A of the Internal Revenue Code of 188&mended.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutt@lenants in this Agreement, the parties agreetiieaExecutive Severance
Agreement is amended as set forth below:

1. The definition of “Constructive Terminatiois hereby amended by adding the following atehd thereof:

“. provided, however, that none of the foregoingditions or events shall constitute ConstructivenTiaation unless (A) the Executive
shall have provided written notice to the Compaiitpiwy ninety (90) days after the occurrence of saghdition or event describing the
condition or event claimed to constitute Constueeflermination and (B) the Company shall have daiteremedy the condition or event
within thirty (30) days of its receipt of such weih notice.”

2. Section 2(c) is amended in its entiretyetad as follows:

“(c) Separation Release Agreemeihe eligibility for receipt of benefits under $h\greement as described in Section 3 (®everanc
Benefits”) is expressly conditioned upon the foliog (i) the Executive’s signing of a release inieththe Executive releases and/or
waives any and all claims the Executive may haweresg the Company within the time specified thekmihin no event later than fifty
(50) days of the Termination Date and (ii) the askebecoming effective. The Company shall provadexecutive the release no later than
three (3) days following Executive’s Terminationt®af Executive does not timely execute and delteehe Company such release, or if
Executive executes such release but revokes Bewverance Benefits shall be paid.”

3. Section 3 is amended by inserting an “é)¥he beginning thereof.

4. Section 3(a)(i) is hereby amended by dadetbeginning thirty (30) days following the Termation Date or as soon as administratively
practicable thereafter” and replacing it with “pbleas described in Section 3(b) below”.




5. The second sentence of Section 3(a)(@mended by inserting at the end thereof the folignfbut no later than March 15 of the year
following the year to which the bonus relates”.

6. Section 3 is amended by inserting new sttlise(b) at the end thereof to read as follows:

“(b) Timing of Payments.

(i) The Severance Benefits described in se@i@)(i) shall be paid, minus applicable deduajoncluding deductions for tax
withholding, in equal payments on the regular phytates during the one-year period following Ex@ceis termination of employment.
Commencement of payments of the Severance Bedeftzibed in Section 3(a)(i) shall begin on thstfirayroll date that occurs at least
60 days after the Termination Date, but which maybcelerated by no more than 30 days (the “ StaBate”) provided that Executive
has satisfied the requirements of Section 2(c).fifeepayment on the payment Starting Date simaluide those payments that would have
previously been paid if the payments of the Sevard@enefits had begun on the first payroll dateofaihg the Termination Date. This
timing of the commencement of benefits is subje@ection 15 below.

(i) All Severance Benefits shall be complebsd and no further Severance Benefits shall balplayafter, December 31 of the second
taxable year following the year in which Executs/é&rmination of employment occurs.

(i) Executive’s entitlement to the paymenfshe Severance Benefits described in the Sesfia)(i) shall be treated as the entitlement
to a series of separate payments for purposesatib8el09A of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986rasnded, (the “Code”).

(iv) For purposes of this Agreement, “termiaatof employment” shall mean a “separation of ggrvas defined in Section 409A of t
Code and Treasury Regulations Section 1.409A-1{thowt regard to the optional alternative defimtcavailable thereunder.

7. Section 15 is amended in full to read édsvis:

“(a) Potential Delay of Paymeniotwithstanding any other provisions of this Agmeent, any payment under this Agreement of the
Severance Benefits that the Company reasonablyndieies is subject to Section 409A(a)(2)(B)(i) of tBode shall not be paid or payment
commenced until six months after Executive’s Tewtion Date or Executive’s death. On the earliet da which such payments can be
made or commenced without violating the requirementSection 409A(a)(2)(B)(i) of the Code, Execatishall be paid, in a single cash
lump sum, an amount equal to the aggregate amdatitpayments delayed pursuant to the precedintgsee.
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(b)_Section 409A Savings Claudéis intended that any amounts payable undsrAlgireement shall either be exempt from
Section 409A of the Code or shall comply with Sat#09A (including Treasury regulations and othdsligshed guidance related thereto)
S0 as not to subject Executive to payment of amljtiatal tax, penalty or interest imposed undernti®ect09A of the Code. The provisions
of this Agreement shall be construed and interprédeavoid the imputation of any such additional @enalty or interest under
Section 409A of the Code yet preserve (to the ¢a@pdent reasonably possible) the intended bepayiable to Executive.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company makesepoesentations regarding the tax treatment ofpa@yynents hereunder, and the
Executive shall be responsible for any and all igpple taxes, other than the Company’s share of@mpent taxes on the severance
payments provided by the Agreement.

8. Effect of this AmendmenExcept as set forth herein, the Executive Sewerdxgreement remains in full force and effect. igfierence
to the Executive Severance Agreement shall be déeefierences to the Executive Severance Agreensaarnanded by this Amendment.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto haveceed this Amendment effective as of the dateyaad first above written.

TOWN SPORTS INTERNATIONAL, LLC

By:
Name
Title:




Company

Parent

Town Sports International, LL'
Subsidiaries

TSI 217 Broadway, LLC

TSI Alexandria, LLC

TSI Alexandria West, LLC
TSI Allston, LLC

TSI Andover, LLC

TSI Ardmore, LLC

TSI Arthrc-Fitness Services, LL!
TSI Astoria, LLC

TSI Battery Park, LLC

TSI Bay Ridge 86th Street, LL
TSI Bayridge, LLC

TSI Bensonhurst, LL(

TSI Bethesda, LL(C

TSI Boylston, LLC

TSI Broadway, LLC

TSI Brooklyn Belt, LLC

TSI Brunswick, LLC

TSI Bulfinch, LLC

TSI Butler, LLC

TSI Carmel, LLC

TSI Cash Management, LL
TSI Central Square, LL!

TSI Cherry Hill, LLC

TSI Chevy Chase, LL!

TSI Clarendon, LLC

TSI Clifton, LLC

TSI Cobble Hill, LLC

TSI Colonia, LLC

TSI Columbia Heights, LL(
TSI Commack, LLC

TSI Connecticut Avenue, LL!
TSI Court Street, LL(C

TSI Croton, LLC

TSI Danbury, LLC

TSI Davis Square, LL(

TSI Deer Park, LLC

TSI Dobbs Ferry, LLC

TSI Downtown Crossing, LL(
TSI Dupont Circle, Inc.

TSI Dupont Il, Inc.

State of
Incorporation

Doing Business A

NY

DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE

n/a

New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
Washington Sports Clu
Boston Sports Clu
Boston Sports Clu

Philadelphia Sports Clu

New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
n/a

Boston Sports Clu

Philadelphia Sports Clu

Washington Sports Clu
Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu

n/a

n/a
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Company

TSI East Brunswick, LL(
TSI East Meadow, LL(
TSI East 23, LLC

TSI East 31, LLC

TSI East 34, LLC

TSI East 36, LLC

TSI East 41, LLC

TSI East 48, LLC

TSI East 51, LLC

TSI East 59, LLC

TSI East 76, LLC

TSI East 86, LLC

TSI East 91, LLC

TSI Englewood, LLC
TSI F Street, LLC

TSI Fairfax, LLC

TSI Fenway, LLC

TSI First Avenue, LLC
TSI Forest Hills, LLC
TSI Fort Lee, LLC

TSI Framingham, LLC
TSI Franklin (MA), LLC
TSI Franklin Park, LLC
TSI Freehold, LLC

TSI Gallery Place, LL(C
TSI Garden City, LLC
TSI Garnerville, LLC
TSI Georgetown, LLC
TSI Germantown, LLC
TSI Glendale, LLC

TSI Glover, LLC

TSI Grand Central, LL(C
TSI Great Neck, LLC
TSI Greenwich, LLC
TSI Hartsdale, LLC

TSI Hawthorne, LLC
TSI Herald, LLC

TSI Hicksville, LLC

TSI Highpoint, LLC

TSI Hoboken, LLC

TSI Hoboken North, LLC
TSI Holdings (CIP), LLC
TSI Holdings (DC), LLC
TSI Holdings (IP), LLC
TSI Holdings (MA), LLC

State of
Incorporation

Doing Business A

DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE

New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
Washington Sports Clu
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Philadelphia Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a




Company

TSI Holdings (MD), LLC
TSI Holdings (NJ), LLC
TSI Holdings (PA), LLC
TSI Holdings (VA), LLC
TSI Huntington, LLC
TSI Insurance, Inc

TSI International, Inc.
TSI Irving Place, LLC
TSI Jamaica Estates, LL
TSI Jersey City, LLC
TSI K Street, LLC

TSI Larchmont, LLC

TSI Lexington (MA), LLC
TSI Lincoln, LLC

TSI Livingston, LLC

TSI Long Beach, LLC
TSI Lynnfield, LLC

TSI M Street, LLC

TSI Mahwah, LLC

TSI Mamaroneck, LLC
TSI Market Street, LLC
TSI Marlboro, LLC

TSI Matawan, LLC

TSI Mercer Street, LL(
TSI Midwood, LLC

TSI Montclair, LLC

TSI Morris Park, LLC
TSI Murray Hill, LLC
TSI Nanuet, LLC

TSI Natick, LLC

TSI New Rochelle, LLC
TSI Newark, LLC

TSI Newbury Street, LL(
TSI Newton, LLC

TSI No Sweat, LLC

TSI North Bethesda, LL¢
TSI Norwalk, LLC

TSI Oceanside, LL(

TSI Old Bridge, LLC
TSI Parsippany, LL(
TSI Plainsboro, LLC

TSI Port Jefferson, LL(
TSI Princeton, LLC

TSI Princeton North, LLC
TSI Providence Downtown, LL!

State of
Incorporation

Doing Business A

DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
NY
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE

n/a

n/a

n/a

n/a

New York Sports Clul
n/a

n/a

New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Philadelphia Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
Boston Sports Clu
No Sweal
Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu




Company

TSI Providence Eastside, LL
TSI Radnor, LLC

TSI Ramsey, LLC

TSI Reade Street, LL
TSI Rego Park, LL(C

TSI Ridgewood, LLC

TSI Rodin Place, LL(C

TSI Scarsdale, LL(

TSI Seaport, LLC

TSI Sheridan, LLC

TSI Silver Spring, LLC
TSI Smithtown, LLC

TSI Society Hill, LLC

TSI Soho, LLC

TSI Somers, LLC

TSI Somerset, LL(

TSI South Bethesda, LL
TSI South End, LLC

TSI South Park Slope, LL
TSI South Station, LL(
TSI Springfield, LLC

TSI Stamford Downtown, LL(
TSI Stamford Post, LL(
TSI Stamford Rinks, LL(
TSI Staten Island, LL(
TSI Sterling, LLC

TSI Sunnyside, LLC

TSI Syosset, LLC

TSI University Management, LL

TSI Varick Street, LLC
TSI Wall Street, LLC
TSI Waltham, LLC
TSI Washington, Inc.
TSI Water Street, LL(C
TSI Watertown, LLC
TSI Wellesley, LLC
TSI Wellington Circle, LLC
TSI West 14, LLC

TSI West 16, LLC

TSI West 23, LLC

TSI West 38, LLC

TSI West 41, LLC

TSI West 44, LLC

TSI West 48, LLC

TSI West 52, LLC

State of
Incorporation

Doing Business A

DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE

Boston Sports Clu
Philadelphia Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Philadelphia Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
Philadelphia Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
n/a

New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
Washington Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
Boston Sports Clu
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul




Company

TSI West 73, LLC

TSI West 76, LLC

TSI West 80, LLC

TSI West 94, LLC

TSI West 115th Street, LL
TSI West 125, LLC

TSI West 145th Street, LL
TSI West Caldwell, LLC
TSI West Hartford, LLC
TSI West Newton, LLC
TSI West Nyack, LLC

TSI West Springdfield, LLC
TSI Westborough, LL(
TSI Westport, LLC

TSI Westwood, LLC

TSI Weymouth, LLC

TSI White Plains City Center, LL!

TSI White Plains, LLC
TSI Whitestone, LLC
TSI Woburn, LLC
TSI Woodmere, LLC

State of
Incorporation

Doing Business A

DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE
DE

New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
Washington Sports Clu
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
New York Sports Clul
Boston Sports Clu
New York Sports Clul



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We hereby consent to the incorporation by referémtlee Registration Statement on Form S-8
(No. 333-135048 and 333-151965) of Town Sportsrivdgonal Holdings, Inc. of our report dated Mag;2009
relating to the financial statements and the effeoess of internal control over financial repogtimhich appears in
this Form 10-K .

/s/ RRICEWATERHOUSECOOPERSLLP

New York, NY
March 3, 200¢



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATIONS

[, Alexander Alimanestianu, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 1@Kthe year ended December 31, 2008 of Town Sports
International Holdings, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or dmndttate a
material fact necessary to make the statements,rimaliight of the circumstances under which sueteshents were
made, not misleading with respect to the perioceoad by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemamisother financial information included in thipoet,
fairly present in all material respects the finahciondition, results of operations and cash floithe registrant as
of and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdrAitts 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cootrer
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actddul 3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant bhade:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procsdareaused such disclosure controls and procedore
be designed under our supervision, to ensure thggmal information relating to the registrant,lirding its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during tberiod in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) designed such internal control over finanoggdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopyéeide reasonable assurance regarding the rétyabfl
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerall
accepted accounting principles;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presenteisi
report our conclusions about the effectivenest@fdisclosure controls and procedures, as of thegthe
period covered by this report based on such evahjand

(d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegit’s internal control over financial reportitigat
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fisgalrter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quartethe case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, oe#@sonably likely to materially affect, the regsit’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer andve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioernal
control over financial reporting, to the registrarguditors and the audit committee of the regigisaboard of
directors (or persons performing the equivalentfiams):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cootrer
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyatdversely affect the registrant’s ability to recgrtbcess,
summarize and report financial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that iniesmanagement or other employees who have a sim
role in the registrant’s internal control over fircéal reporting.

By: /s/ Alexander Alimanestiar

Alexander Alimanestianu
Chief Executive Officer

Date: March 3, 200



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATIONS

I, Dan Gallagher, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 1@Kthe year ended December 31, 2008 of Town Sports
International Holdings, Inc.;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does notaiorny untrue statement of a material fact or dmndttate a
material fact necessary to make the statements,rimaliight of the circumstances under which sueteshents were
made, not misleading with respect to the perioceoad by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statemamisother financial information included in thipoet,
fairly present in all material respects the finahciondition, results of operations and cash floithe registrant as
of and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer andre responsible for establishing and maintainisgldsure
controls and procedures (as defined in ExchangdrAitts 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal cootrer
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Actddul 3a-15(f) and 15d-15(f)) for the registrant bhade:

(a) designed such disclosure controls and procsdareaused such disclosure controls and procedore
be designed under our supervision, to ensure thggmal information relating to the registrant,lirding its
consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to ustbgre within those entities, particularly during tberiod in
which this report is being prepared;

(b) designed such internal control over finanoggdarting, or caused such internal control overrfaial
reporting to be designed under our supervisiopyéeide reasonable assurance regarding the rétyabfl
financial reporting and the preparation of finahsiatements for external purposes in accordantiegeinerall
accepted accounting principles;

(c) evaluated the effectiveness of the registradisslosure controls and procedures and presenteisi
report our conclusions about the effectivenest@fdisclosure controls and procedures, as of thegthe
period covered by this report based on such evahjand

(d) disclosed in this report any change in thestegit’s internal control over financial reportitigat
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fisgalrter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quartethe case of an
annual report) that has materially affected, oe#@sonably likely to materially affect, the regsit’s internal
control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer andve disclosed, based on our most recent evaluatioernal
control over financial reporting, to the registrarguditors and the audit committee of the regigisaboard of
directors (or persons performing the equivalentfiams):

(a) all significant deficiencies and material weagses in the design or operation of internal cootrer
financial reporting which are reasonably likelyatdversely affect the registrant’s ability to recgrtbcess,
summarize and report financial information; and

(b) any fraud, whether or not material, that iniesmanagement or other employees who have a sim
role in the registrant’s internal control over fircéal reporting.

By: /s/ Dan Gallaghe

Dan Gallagher
Chief Financial Officer

Date: March 3, 200



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Town Spdrtternational Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) on
Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 20@8 fivith the Securities and Exchange Commissiotherdate
hereof (the “Report”), I, Alexander Alimanestiamertify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, as adoptedyant to 906
of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exgjean
Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition
and results of operations of the Company.

Town Sports International Holdings, Inc.

/s/ Alexander Alimanestianu

Alexander Alimanestianu
Chief Executive Officer

March 3, 200¢



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Town Spdrtternational Holdings, Inc. (the “Company”) on
Form 10-K for the period ended December 31, 20@8 fivith the Securities and Exchange Commissiotherdate

hereof (the “Report”), I, Dan Gallagher, certifyyrpuant to 18 U.S.C. 1350, as adopted pursuari@mBthe
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requiremeatsSection 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exgjean
Act of 1934; and

(2) The information contained in the Report faplgsents, in all material respects, the finanaaldition
and results of operations of the Company.

Town Sports International Holdings, Inc.

/sl Dan Gallagher

Dan Gallagher
Chief Financial Officer

March 3, 200¢



